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SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS

LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE ON WORKERS’ COMPENSATION
(NRS 218.5375)

The Legislative Committee on Workers” Compensation recommends that the 69th Session
of the Nevada Legislature consider the following changes to Nevada’s workers’
compensation laws:

ADMINISTRATION

1. Amend Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 616C.020 to reduce from 90 the
number of days within which an injured employee must seek medical
treatment.

2. Amend Chapter 616A of NRS to add a requirement that an insurer provide
policy information to a policyholder within a reasonable period of time after
such information is requested. This provision is designed to prevent an
insurer from deliberately withholding information requested by a policyholder
that may be required by the Commissioner of Insurance for consideration of
an application for self-insurance.

3. Allow electronic transmission of the Employer’s Report of Industrial Injury
or Occupational Disease (C-3 form), Employee’s Claim for
Compensation/Report of Initial Treatment (C-4 form), medical bills, and
other documents.

4. Amend NRS 616B.018 and NRS 616C.020 to allow insurers greater access to
medical and claim information from other insurers.

5. Amend NRS 616C.020 and NRS 616C.025 to clarify reporting requirements.

6. Amend NRS 616C.065 to clarify that an insurer shall take certain actions
within 30 working days after being notified of an industrial accident and
having received a claim for compensation.

7. Amend NRS 616C.235 to clarify that an insurer may dispose of a claim file
six months after the date of automatic closure.

8. Amend NRS 616C.475 to clarify that a certification of disability shall not be
given for dates that are prior to the date of the physician’s examination of the
injured employee.



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Amend subsection 5 of NRS 616C.490 so that it is consistent with Nevada
Administrative Code (NAC) 616C.103 which allows 30 days for an employer
to notify the employee of the compensation to which he is entitled. The statute
currently allows only 14 days.

Amend subsection 9 of NRS 612.265 to allow self-insured employers to
participate in the program designed to identify persons who are
simultaneously receiving unemployment compensation and workers’
compensation benefits. Also, clarify in the statute that both the Employment
Security Division of the Department of Employment, Training and
Rehabilitation and insurers have authority to investigate persons suspected of
violating the law by simultaneously obtaining benefits under both the
unemployment compensation and workers’ compensation programs.

COMPENSATION PAYMENT

Correct a conflict between NRS 616C.060 and 616C.475 regarding the
number of days within which an insurer must begin paying compensation.
Subsection 1 of NRS 616C.060 requires that an insurer commence payment
of an accepted claim within 30 days after the insurer has been notified of an
industrial accident. Subsection 3 of NRS 616C.475 requires that an insurer
make the first payment within 14 working days after receiving the initial
certification of disability.

Amend the law to disallow any person from receiving workers’ compensation
benefits if that person has falsified citizenship documents to obtain
employment.

COVERAGE

Amend Chapter 616 to allow (but not require) coverage of a student in a
“volunteer” Schools to Careers related situation.

Develop a specific provision that requires a teacher’s employer to continue

coverage while the teacher is in a temporary location in an approved Schools
to Careers activity.
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15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

HEARINGS AND APPEALS

Provide peer review or management review of hearing and appeals officers of
the Department of Administration to help ensure consistency of decisions.
Also require training of hearing and appeals officers at the National Judicial
College in Reno.

Evaluate prior commitments made by the Department of Administration
regarding scheduling of hearings and related matters.

PENSIONS AND ANNUITIES

Amend Chapter 616 to specify that insurers may purchase annuities.

PERMANENT PARTIAL DISABILITIES

Consider studying alternatives to the current permanent partial disability
(PPD) rating system such as implementing a schedule of benefits for most
injuries to take out some subjective areas such as range of motion. If this
review cannot be completed during the 1997 Legislative Session, continue the
statutory committee and charge the committee with commissioning an
independent study of PPD awards. The results of the study, along with
recommendations of the committee, are to be presented to the
1999 Legislature.

Address the issue of PPD awards for dental problems. (Note: NRS 616C.485
and NAC 616C.508 govern payment of PPD awards for loss of or permanent
damage to a tooth.)

Amend NRS 616C.090 to provide that an injured employee be allowed to
choose a doctor from the rotating list for a PPD evaluation at any time,

Amend NRS 616C.090 to provide that if an injured employee’s claim is being
administered by the State Industrial Insurance System (SIIS) and the injured
employee requests a doctor from the rotating list, and the injured employee
is assigned a doctor who is employed by SIIS, then the injured employee is
entitled to request another doctor from the rotating list.

Amend NRS 616C.090 to provide that the doctor who shall rate the claimant
for a PPD shall be the claimant’s treating physician.
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23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

REGULATION OF WORKERS’ COMPENSATION INSURANCE

Consider changing the law to place responsibility for adoption of an
experience rating plan with the Commissioner of Insurance.

Correct a perceived conflict between NRS 616D.200 and the regulation
adopted by SIIS regarding the “three times penalty” imposed for failure of an
employer to secure or maintain workers’ compensation insurance.

Amend NRS 616C.260 to change the benchmark for the medical fee schedule.

Identify which regulatory responsibilities should be delegated to the
Commissioner of Insurance and/or DIR in anticipation of workers’
compensation coverage being provided by private carriers beginning
July 1, 1999,

SAFETY AND HEALTH

Amend subsection 1(d) of NRS 616C.230 to strengthen provisions for an
insurer to deny a workers’ compensation claim if an injured employee tests
positive for a controlled substance. Refusal to take a drug test would have the
same presumption of “under the influence” as in the case of driving under the
influence of alcohol. Termination of employment for failing a drug test or
refusing to take a drug test would disqualify an injured employee from
benefits.

SOLYENCY ASSESSMENT AND THE ROLE OF SIIS

Currently, NRS 616B.110 provides that the Commissioner of Insurance may
declare SIIS to be insolvent if the agency must liquidate its invested assets or
real property in order to pay its outstanding obligations as they mature in the
regular course of business. Such a declaration would trigger imposition of a
solvency assessment. Amend NRS 616B.110 to require that the decision to
impose the assessment be made by the Legislative Committee on Workers’
Compensation after it has considered all other available options.

Amend NRS 616B.110 so that if an assessment is imposed, it is based on a
percentage of paid claims of all employers. Consider allowing exemptions for
special circumstances such as cancer, heart, and lung coverage provided by
certain governmental entities. '
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REPORT TO THE 69TH SESSION OF THE NEVADA LEGISLATURE
BY THE LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE ON WORKERS’ COMPENSATION

I. INTRODUCTION

Under the provisions of Sections 120-123 of Senate Bill 458 (Chapter 587, Statutes of
Nevada 1995), the Legislature established a Legislative Committee on Workers’
Compensation to review issues related to workers’ compensation.' Section 122 of
S.B. 458 specifically allows the committee to:

L Study the desirability of establishing a preferred worker program to provide
incentives for employers to hire injured workers; and

. Review the manner used by the Division of Industrial Relations (DIR),
Department of Business and Industry, to rate physical impairments of injured

employees.

In addition, Section 122 of S.B. 458 requires that the committee:

. Review and study the financial condition of SIIS;
. Determine the extent of any apparent insolvency of SIIS; and
° Establish a formula which will be applied to calculate a surcharge that is equal in

amount to any deficiency in the cumulative amount of premiums paid by an
employer who is subject to Section 33 of S.B. 458.

Section 33 of the bill® requires that the surcharge, if imposed, be applied to:

. Each employer who was insured by the Nevada Industrial Commission (NIC) or
SIIS at any time during the period beginning on July 1, 1979, and ending on
July 1, 1995;

] Each employer who is insured by SIIS at any time after July 1, 1995;

° Each self-insured employer; and

e Each association of self-insured public or private employers.

'Sections 120-123 of S.B. 458 are codified as Sections 218.5375 through 218.5378 of Nevada Revised Statutes
(NRS). See Appendix A.

“Section 33 of S.B. 458 is codified as Section 616B.110 of NRS. See Appendix B.
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Eight legislators were appointed as members of the committee. Four members were
appointed by the Senate Majority Floor Leader in consultation with the Minority Floor
Leader of the Senate from members of the Senate standing Committee on Commerce and
Labor. Four members were appointed by the Speakers of the Assembly from the
Assembly Committee on Labor and Management. The committee members selected their
chairman and vice chairman from among their members.

The following legislators served on the Legislative Committee on Workers’
Compensation:

Assemblyman Lynn C. Hettrick, Chairman
Senator Randolph J. Townsend, Vice Chairman
Senator Kathy Augustine
Senator Joseph M. Neal, Jr.

Senator Ann O’Connell
Assemblyman David E. Goldwater
Assemblywoman Saundra Krenzer
Assemblyman Dennis Nolan

Legislative Counsel Bureau (LCB) staff services for the committee were provided by
Vance A. Hughey, Senior Research Analyst, Research Division; Jan K. Needham,
Principal Deputy Legislative Counsel, Legal Division; Sue S. Matuska, Deputy
Legislative Counsel, Legal Division; and Nenita Wasserman, Research Secretary,
Research Division.

Beginning in November 1995 and concluding in December 1996, the committee held
seven meetings to obtain expert and public testimony. Following are the dates and
locations of each meeting of the committee:

November &8, 1995;
December 19, 1995;
January 9, 1996;

May 23, 1996;
September 12, 1996;
November 7, 1996; and
December 3, 1996

All of the meetings were held in Las Vegas and, except for the November 7, 1996,
meeting, were video conferenced to Carson City.

During the course of this study, the committee reviewed existing laws and implementation
of the workers’ compensation legislation enacted by the 1995 Legislature. It received
comments and recommendations from employers, injured employees, medical providers,



vocational rehabilitation specialists, claimants’ attorneys, third-party administrators, State
agency executives, local government officials, and representatives of various self-insured
employers, business groups, and labor organizations. In addition, the committee heard
testimony by a national workers’ compensation expert from the Workers Compensation
Research Institute.

At its work session, the committee considered 66 proposed recommendations. It adopted
29 recommendations on the following topics:

L Administration;
° Compensation Payment;
] Coverage;

. Managed Care;

° Pensions and Annuities;

o Permanent Partial Disabilities;

® Regulation of Workers” Compensation Insurance;
® Reopening;

° Safety and Health; and
° Solvency Assessment and the Role of SIIS.

In this document, the committee has attempted to present its findings and
recommendations in a concise form. A great amount of information was gathered during
the course of this study, and much of it was provided in exhibits that became a part of the
minutes of the committee’s meetings. All supporting documents and minutes are on file
with the LCB Research Library. This report also contains background information on
Nevada’s workers’ compensation program and the financial condition of SIIS.

The committee wishes to thank the many individuals who contributed to this study through
their correspondence or testimony at the public hearings. The committee members also
recognize the cooperation and assistance provided by the staffs of the Hearing and
Appeals Division, Department of Administration; the Workers’ Compensation Fraud
Unit, Office of the Attorney General; DIR; the Division of Insurance; the Nevada
Attorney for Injured Workers; and SIIS.



II. OVERVIEW OF WORKERS’ COMPENSATION

Following is historical and other background information on the development of workers’
compensation in the United States and Nevada. Included is a discussion of the recent
financial problems of SIIS and major legislative reforms enacted beginning in 1991.

A. Background Information

Workers’ compensation insurance is specialized insurance purchased by employers to
provide medical care, disability compensation (indemnity) payments, and rehabilitation
services for workers who are injured on the job or who contract occupational diseases in
the course of their employment. Workers’ compensation was the first social insurance
system in the United States. It developed as a consequence of the high rate of industrial
accidents in the 19th and early 20th centuries.

Under common law, 19th century employers were required to provide a reasonably safe
place for their employees to work. If an injury occurred, however, and the employer did
not voluntarily pay compensation, then the employee had to take his case to court. The
litigation which arose out of this situation proved to be an unsatisfactory means of caring
for injured workers. Uncertainty of outcome and the costs associated with the delay in
compensating injured workers under a common law system were instrumental in the
formation of the workers’ compensation system.

Even if the employee could afford legal assistance, the employer had several defenses that
made it difficult for the employee to collect damages. The employer might plead
contributory negligence, suggesting that the employee was at fault to some degree. The
employer might attempt to prove that the real fault was lodged with a fellow worker—the
so-called fellow-servant doctrine. An employer also might apply what is called the
“doctrine of assumption of risk.” Under this doctrine, the employee was assumed to have
had knowledge that he was engaged in a dangerous occupation and, therefore, if he still
chose to work in that occupation, he had to assume the known risks of being injured.

American policymakers looked to Europe where the idea of workers’ compensation had
originated in Germany in the 1800s and later was adopted in France, Great Britain, and
other countries. Under a workers’ compensation insurance program, the right to bring
legal action against an employer on the grounds of negligence was exchanged for a system
whereby benefits were paid for all injuries arising out of and in the course of employment.
The costs of the work-related injuries were allocated to the employer, not because of any
presumption that he was to blame for every individual injury, but because the inherent
hazards of employment were considered to be a cost of production.



This “no-fault” approach to insuring employers soon became popular throughout the
United States. Between 1911 and 1920, all but six states passed universal workers’
compensation statutes. Eventually, the remaining states also enacted such laws.

B. Workers’” Compensation in Nevada

Nevada was one of the first states to enact a compulsory workers’ compensation law. The
original industrial insurance act was adopted in 1913, and a complete revision was drafted
in 1947. The State’s industrial insurance laws have been amended during every regular
legislative session since 1913.

Recent legislative sessions have brought major changes to the statutes relating to workers’
compensation. During the 1979 Session, self-insurance was authorized for qualified
employers. The self-insurance option became effective on January 1, 1980. Prior to that
time, NIC had been the only provider of workers’ compensation insurance in the State.

The 1979 Legislature removed the hearings process for contested claims from NIC and
placed it in a new Hearings Division within the Department of Administration. The
Hearings Division is responsible for the hearings and appeals process.

In 1981, the Legislature completely revised the NIC structure. Effective July 1, 1982,
NIC ceased to exist and SIIS began operation as the state-run workers’ compensation
insurance carrier. Also on that date, the Department of Industrial Relations (DIR) began
operation as the primary regulator of the State’s workers’ compensation program.®> The
DIR regulatory umbrella includes SIIS and self-insured employers, the medical fee
schedule, panels of treating and rating physicians, and the State’s Occupational Safety and
Health Administration (OSHA) program.

The Commissioner of Insurance reviews and approves SIIS premium rates and is
responsible for certifying self-insured employers who meet certain statutory qualifications.
The Division of Insurance also regulates third-party administrators of self-insured
programs and managed care organizations.

The Nevada Attorney for Injured Workers (NAIW),* a state agency separate from SIIS,
represents claimants free of charge at the Hearings Division’s appeals level, in the State’s
district courts, and before Nevada’s Supreme Court.

*The Commissioner of Insurance retained authority to approve premium rates charged by SIIS. In 1993, both the
Department of Insurance and DIR were made divisions of the new Department of Business and Industry.

4On'ginally created in 1977 as the State Industrial Claimants’ Attorney, in 1991, the Legislature changed the
agency’s name to the Nevada Attorney for Injured Workers.
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During the early- and mid-1980s, workers’ compensation did not generate an inordinate
amount of legislative interest in Nevada. Available information seemed to suggest that
there were no major problems within the workers’ compensation program.
From 1984 through 1988, SIIS paid over $50 million in dividends to policyholders.’
Additionally, from 1985 through 1988, SIIS did not request approval for any increases
in premium rates charged to its policyholders.® During the 1980s and early-1990s,
Nevada’s compensation benefits were among the best in the Western States and premium
rates were among the lowest.’

Beginning in 1988, SIIS instituted the first in a series of premium rate increases. Also
at about that time, injured workers began to express more concerns about the manner in
which their claims were being handled by SIIS and self-insured employers. In 1989, the
Legislature enacted Assembly Bill 1 (Chapter 856, Statutes of Nevada 1989). This bill
directed the Legislative Auditor to conduct a performance audit of Nevada’s workers’
compensation program. The audit covered five aspects of the program:

. Medical Benefits to Injured Workers;

. Compensation and Other Benefits to Injured Workers;
. Hearings and Appeals Process;

. State Industrial Insurance System; and

. Department of Industrial Relations.

In 1991, the Legislature enacted S.B. 7 (Chapter 723, Statutes of Nevada 1991) to resolve
many of the issues identified by the legislative audit. This measure reflected the
Legislature’s intent to reform the workers’ compensation system in the following ways:

1. Lower Nevada’s high rate of industrial injuries by promoting safety on the job;

2. Serve Nevada’s injured employees by streamlining the process for filing, hearing,
and appealing claims. The object was to make certain that injured employees and
their health care providers received compensation as soon as possible. In addition,
the injured employees were to receive appropriate medical care and rehabilitation
to allow them to return to work as soon as possible; and

3State Industrial Insurance System Business Plan, June 1992, p. 61.
6,y .
Ibid., p. 60.

"Rate and Benefit Comparison: Nevada and Surrounding States, State Industrial Insurance System, April 2,
1993.



3. Serve employers by protecting against fraudulent claims and by returning injured
employees to work as soon as possible.

This bill also established an interim Legislative Committee on Industrial Insurance. The
purpose of this committee was to study Nevada’s laws concerning industrial insurance and
to prepare a report for submission to the Governor and the 1993 Legislature.
Eight legislators were appointed as members of the committee. The committee held eight
meetings, including a two-day work session, to obtain expert and public testimony. The
committee considered 188 proposed recommendations. It adopted 62 of them covering
a variety of topics including:

. Determination and payment of benefits;

. Medical care, compensation, and other benefits to injured workers;
. Fraud in workers’ compensation;

. The organization of SIIS;

. Employer options for industrial insurance;

. Hearings and appeals of contested claims;

. Occupational safety and health; and

. Legislative oversight concerning industrial insurance.

Many of those 62 recommendations were subsequently adopted with the enactment of
Senate Bill 316 (Chapter 265, Statutes of Nevada 1993), which is discussed later in this
report.

D. SIIS’s Financial Difficulties

At the April 9, 1992, meeting of the Legislative Committee on Industrial Insurance, SIIS
announced that it was experiencing financial difficulty and presented a Financial Forecast
and Strategic Plan. The newly appointed manager of SIIS reported that invested assets
were being sold to cover current expenses. In the months following that meeting,
a financial audit conducted for SIIS by KPMG Peat Marwick (independent auditors)
concluded that SIIS’s unfunded liability as of June 30, 1992, was approximately
$1.4 billion. This audit was followed by a Department of Insurance report that estimated
SIIS’s unfunded liability at $2.2 billion. Much of the difference between the two
estimates of the level of the unfunded liability was due to differences in accounting
methods. The auditors used “generally accepted accounting principles” while the
Department of Insurance used the more conservative “statutory accounting principles.”

Regardless of which figure more accurately reflected SIIS’s financial condition at that
time, it was clear that SIIS was on the brink of insolvency. In fact, on
November 23, 1992, SIIS reported that without large increases in premium rates to



employers and/or major changes in Nevada’s laws governing industrial insurance, the
agency would be unable to pay claims by early Fiscal Year (FY) 1997.%

During the 1993 Session, the Legislature addressed many workers’ compensation issues,
including SIIS’s financial difficulties. After many months of hearings (at which testimony
was received from employees, employers, health care providers, trial lawyers, agency
officials, and others), S.B. 316 and Assembly Bill 374 (Chapter 587, Statutes of Nevada
1993) were enacted.

Senate Bill 316 was a comprehensive measure that reformed Nevada’s workers’
compensation programs and enacted cost savings provisions to deal with the financial
situation of SIIS. Some of the changes in the State’s industrial insurance laws included
provisions relating to benefit decisions, fraud, limiting or reducing the payment of
compensation benefits, limits on reopening claims, SIIS management procedures, and
subrogation recovery.

Contained in S.B. 316 were other major revisions to the State’s workers’ compensation
laws, including provisions to:

® Simplify and clarify the procedures for reporting an injury. Require employer
notification to the insurer of an accident onmly if it has required treatment or
compensation for industrial insurance.

e Clarify prohibited fraudulent acts and establish a special fraud unit in the Office
of the Attorney General with authority to investigate and prosecute criminal fraud
for industrial insurance by employees, employers, and providers.

® Strengthen various penalties and administrative fines and establish an
administrative procedure for violations of industrial insurance laws and
regulations.

® Authorize SIIS to charge uninsured employers three times the amount of premium
that would have been due for the period the employer was without industrial
isurance, but not to exceed six years.

® For two years, freeze the average monthly wage used for calculating the payment
of temporary total disability benefits.

8Pro Forma Projections of Financial Conditions: An Analytical Modeling of the Impacts of Cost Containment

Measures, Alternative Rate Scenarios, and Financial Restructuring, State Industrial Insurance System,
November 23, 1992, p. 9.



Prohibit payment of compensation if an employee has a preexisting condition or
sustains a subsequent injury that is not the primary cause of the resulting
disability.

Reduce compensation for permanent partial disabilities by revising the factor from
0.6 percent to 0.54 percent of the average monthly wage for each degree of
impairment.

Require an injured worker who disagrees with a permanent partial disability
rating, and who requests a second determination, to choose the next rating
physician in rotation from the list maintained by DIR. Furthermore, require
hearing and appeals officers, when ordering new permanent partial disability
ratings, to select rating physicians from the rotating list, unless the insurer and
the injured worker agree otherwise.

Extend various deadlines regarding the hearings and appeals process for contested
claims and eliminate the deadline for hearing or appeals officers granting stays.
In addition, provide that parties represented by legal counsel may stipulate to
forego a hearing before a hearing officer and proceed directly to the appeals
officer hearing. Furthermore, authorize the Director of the Department of
Administration to appoint hearing officers who serve in the unclassified service
and at the pleasure of the Director.

Make it unlawful for any person who is not an attorney admitted to practice law
in Nevada to represent an employee before an appeals officer. Limit the
categories of persons who may be licensed to represent employers at hearings of
contested cases.

Require the State’s workers” compensation laws to be interpreted according to the
plain meaning of the statutes.

Allow SIIS to contract with managed care organizations (MCOs) and establish
requirements for the selection of MCOs by the manager of SIIS.

Limit the ability of any MCO to provide care to not more than 25 percent of the
employees insured by SIIS in Clark County and to not more than 34 percent of
the employees insured by SIIS in Washoe County. Furthermore, require that SIIS
contract with no fewer than seven MCOs in Clark County and no fewer than
five MCOs in Washoe County. Prohibit MCO contracts based solely on the
number of employees receiving services. Provide that the principal owner of an
MCO in Clark or Washoe County, or any member of the owner’s immediate
family, may not be a principal owner of another MCO in the same county.



Provide for independent evaluations of MCOs and other medical care providers.
The manager of SIIS is required to contract with a private person to conduct
evaluations of the utilization review procedures of MCOs.

Freeze the medical fee schedule until October 1, 1995, unless SIIS signs contracts
with MCOs or the Governor approves an increase in the fee schedule. Allow DIR
to increase or decrease the medical fee schedule and authorize increases above the
medical care component of the Consumer Price Index if approved by the
DIR Advisory Council.

Authorize self-insured employers to contract with MCOs.

Require injured employees to choose their treating physician or chiropractor
according to the terms of a contract which their insurer has made with an MCO.

Provide that disputed decisions relating to accident benefits must, before going to
an appeals officer, be appealed through the procedure for resolving complaints
established by an MCO, if the insurer has contracted with an MCO.

Prohibit, in most cases, a physician or chiropractor from referring an injured
employee to a health service or facility in which a member of the physician’s or
chiropractor’s immediate family has a financial interest. Exceptions are made for
rural areas, certain arrangements with health maintenance organizations, group
practices, surgical centers for ambulatory patients, and in cases where the financial
interest represents an investment in publicly traded securities.

Limit stress as a compensable injury. Provide that stress may be compensable if
the employee proves by clear and convincing evidence that he has a mental injury
caused by extreme stress in time of danger and the employment was the primary
cause of the injury. Stress is not compensable if it is caused by gradual mental
stimulus.

Limit rehabilitation maintenance payments, limit eligibility for vocational
rehabilitation, and require the use of private and public rehabilitation counselors.

Allow SIIS to provide vocational rehabilitation services if it can do so at a cost
lower than the services available from private or public counselors, but prohibit
SIIS from developing a majority of the vocational rehabilitation plans in any one
year. Limit eligibility for vocational rehabilitation to injured employees who
return to work at less than 80 percent of their past wage, and provide 90 days of
job placement assistance for injured workers who possess marketable skills. Other
vocational rehabilitation benefits are limited as follows:

10



1. Six months of benefits for an injured worker with a permanent physical
impairment of less than 6 percent;

2. Nine months of benefits for an injured worker with a permanent physical
impairment of 6 percent or more, but less than 11 percent; and

3. Twelve months of benefits for an injured worker with a permanent physical
impairment of 11 percent or more.

Extensions in the length of the vocational rehabilitation programs and benefits may
be granted for exceptional circumstances.

Require that certified vocational rehabilitation counselors must supervise and
review the work of counselors who are not certified.

Require each employer to establish a written safety program and implement its
operation within 90 days and increase the maximum penalty from 3 percent to
15 percent of premium for violations of this requirement by employers insured by
SIIS.

Require the SIIS manager to adopt a plan for reviewing employers who have
excessive losses and allow the imposition of disincentives on such employers.
Provide for procedures to terminate an employer’s participation in such a plan.

Authorize groups of five or more public and private employers to form
associations for self-insurance effective July 1, 1995.

Abolish the SIIS Board of Directors and allow the Governor to control SIIS until
July 1, 1997. Require the Governor to report on the results of reforms to the
Legislature early in the 1995 Session.

Require SIIS to operate more like a private insurance company, remove it from
the State Budget Act, and establish clearer and stronger regulatory controls by the
Commissioner of Insurance.

For employers insured by SIIS, establish an employer-paid deductible of up to
$100 for the payment of medical benefits and provide an optional program for
additional deductible coverage at reduced premium. Require employers who have
excessive losses to pay a deductible of up to $1,000 for medical benefits for their
employees. Require SIIS to bill employers for the amount of any deductible that
is owed to the system.

11



e Limit the application of the subsequent injury fund to self-insured employers and
authorize SIIS to manage its own subsequent injury claims.

® Increase from $400 to $600 the monthly compensation for each person entitled to
receive benefits for a permanent total disability or a death benefit for an industrial
injury or occupational disease which occurred before July 1, 1980.

Assembly Bill 374 was the “trailer” legislation to S.B. 316. This bill added certain
provisions and made technical changes and corrections to S.B. 316.

The measure authorized licensed health care providers to form an organization for
managed care under a common agreement to provide comprehensive medical and health
care services for industrial injuries. Procedures and fees were specified for such
providers to apply for and obtain permits from the Commissioner of Insurance. The
Commissioner is required to evaluate and regulate these agreements.

Employers insured by SIIS were allowed to select an organization for managed care in a
manner prescribed by the manager of SIIS and pursuant to the law.

Other changes contained in A.B. 374 included provisions to:
o Establish criteria for the manager to identify an employer with excessive losses.

® (larify that any party to a dispute, not just the employee, may file a notice of
appeal in cases involving MCO dispute resolution proceedings.

® Require that an application to reopen a claim be supported by medical evidence
demonstrating an objective change in the claimant’s medical condition.

e Clarify the entitlement of compensation for dependents of an employee injured
before July 1, 1980.

® Remove a conflict in the bill relating to the placement of hearing officers in the
unclassified service.

e Authorize public agencies and nonprofit medical facilities to enter into cooperative
agreements concerning industrial insurance.

e Clarify the primary cause language of the stress provision to relate to the course
of employment rather than the conditions at the place of employment.

e Clarify that an insurer may, without limitation, extend an injured worker’s
program for vocational rehabilitation.
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® Reduce the period of time pertaining to the criteria for wage reimbursement for
a program of on-the-job training from one year to 90 days for the employer and
six months for the employee.

® Correct the sanctions for fraud violators to apply to any person, not just a
claimant, and to include liability for the costs of the Office of the Attorney
General as well as the insurer.

® Delete an erroneous reference to certification under Chapter 695F of NRS for a
managed care organization and revise the population threshold language for the
provision of managed care services.

¢ Change the references from “evaluations” to “additional independent utilization
reviews” and add certain prohibitions on such contracts by the manager.

® (larify the procedure on final determinations for disputes.

® Allow an employer representative, in hearings of contested cases, to include
a licensee who is not a third-party administrator.

F. SIIS’s Improving Financial Condition

On November 15, 1994, SIIS released a report of its financial condition for
FY 1994. According to the Financial Statements, the total accumulated deficit (unfunded
liability) of SIIS decreased by $44.1 million during the fiscal year that ended
June 30, 1994. The independent accounting firm KPMG Peat Marwick conducted the
audit of SIIS’s financial records and concluded:

Although SIIS experienced income from underwriting activities during the year
ended June 30, 1994, and the accumulated deficit decreased from $2,097,124,000
at June 30, 1993 to $2,053,047,000 at June 30, 1994, such accumulated deficit
will need to be recovered from future revenues, operating efficiencies or from
other resources to be provided to SIIS.

This improvement in SIIS’s financial condition still left the agency with an unfunded
liability of more than $2 billion. However, it is now clear that workers’ compensation
reforms enacted by the Legislature in 1991 and 1993 helped to reverse SIIS’s negative
financial trends.

G. 1995 Legislative Reforms

Workers’ compensation reform was a major topic of discussion during the 1995
Legislative Session, as it was in 1993. However, unlike the 1993 Session, the threatened
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financial collapse of SIIS, while still a concern, did not dictate the focus of legislative
attention in 1995. Instead, a variety of topics were addressed that resulted in the
enactment of the following bills:

Senate Bill 458 (Chapter 587, Statutes of Nevada 1995)—While the reforms enacted in
1993 helped to improve the financial condition of SIIS, the Legislature determined that
additional reforms were necessary. With S.B. 458, the Legislature clarified provisions
regarding exclusive remedy, created separate boards to administer subsequent injury
programs of self-insured employers, revised provisions regarding confidentiality of
records, clarified the definition of an employee leasing company, and exempted real estate
brokers and salesmen from the mandatory coverage requirements of the Nevada Industrial
Insurance Act. The Legislature also clarified provisions regarding eligibility for more
than one program for vocational rehabilitation, created a legislative committee on
workers’ compensation, and authorized collection of a solvency surcharge from certain
employers if SIIS is declared insolvent by the Commissioner of Insurance.

Assembly Bill 57 (Chapter 194, Statutes of Nevada 1995)—This bill extends workers’
compensation benefits for heart and lung disorders to forensic specialists and correctional
officers employed by the State’s Mental Hygiene and Mental Retardation Division at
facilities for mentally disordered offenders. This measure also provides these benefits to
forensic specialists employed by the Department of Prisons.

Assembly Bill 59 (Chapter 127, Statutes of Nevada 1995)—This bill allows the Attorney
General to determine the propriety of submitted evidence concerning an employer taking
money out of an employee’s paycheck to pay workers” compensation premiums. In
addition, the measure provides that, if the amount of a benefit obtained or sought in a
fraudulent manner is less than $250, a person convicted of such an offense is guilty of a
misdemeanor. The bill also allows the Attorney General, in workers’ compensation fraud
cases, to subpoena records from a financial institution without notifying the pertinent
customer.

Assembly Bill 61 (Chapter 497, Statutes of Nevada 1995)—Further adjustments to the
penalty provisions of the workers’ compensation statutes were made with A.B. 61,
including a new provision to allow certain fines to be paid directly to an injured worker,
and more severe penalties to be assessed on insurers that violate prohibitions against
certain claims management practices.

Assembly Bill 498 (Chapter 578, Statutes of Nevada 1995)—During the 1995 Session, the
Legislature enacted several measures that provide employers with industrial insurance
options. Group self-insurance was authorized in 1993, effective July 1, 1995. However,
the Legislature reviewed existing statutes and concluded that changes were necessary to
clarify the types of businesses that would be allowed to join insurance groups. In
addition, the Legislature clarified provisions regarding financial requirements of groups
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and their members, provided for regulation of solicitors, and made other changes to help
ensure that self-insurance groups will be financially viable. These provisions are included
in A.B. 498.

Assembly Bill 552 (Chapter 580, Statutes of Nevada 1995)—The Legislature also passed
A.B. 552 to0 allow private carriers to offer workers’ compensation insurance beginning
July 1, 1999 (so-called three-way insurance). The four-year delay in establishing
three-way insurance will give SIIS an opportunity to further improve its financial
condition so that it can effectively operate in a competitive market. The delay also will
give the Commussioner of Insurance time to implement any necessary regulatory controls.

Assembly Bill 587 (Chapter 544, Statutes of Nevada 1995)—Assembly Bill 587 was
enacted to enhance the ability of the Workers’ Compensation Fraud Unit to investigate
and prosecute employees, medical providers, and employers who engage in fraudulent
activities. The bill also increases penalties for committing certain violations. In addition,
A.B. 587 revises provisions relating to payment of an award for permanent partial
disability in a lump sum to an employee who is the subject of a criminal action.
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III. DISCUSSION OF RECOMMENDATIONS

Financial problems at SIIS have their beginnings in the early- to mid-1980s when the
agency’s loss ratios’ rose significantly in the face of an increasing number of registered
claims, rising costs of those incurred claims, and stable premium rates from 1985
through 1988. These trends are documented in a July 15, 1992, SIIS report entitled,
“Financial Forecast and Strategic Plan.” The most recent reserve study prepared for SIIS
by Tillinghast-Towers Perrin includes the following statistics regarding historical loss
ratios:

Fiscal Accident Year Projected Ultimate Loss Ratio (in percent)
1982 103
1983 112-115
1984 127-131
1985 141-144
1986 175-179
1987 181-185
1988 192-201
1989 190-197
1990 171-176
1991 160-166
1992 145-154
1993 111-120
1994 80-90
1995 78-88

. 1996 79_—23

According to the Tillinghast-Towers Perrin reserve study, the estimated break-even loss
ratio currently is 110 percent. Loss ratios significantly in excess of the current
breakeven ratio coincide with the period during which SIS did not increase premium
rates to its policyholders during the mid- to late-1980s. While the loss ratios have shown

?A loss ratio is calculated as ultimate losses divided by earned premiums for a fiscal accident year.

16



mmprovements since 1989, they remained well above breakeven levels until 1993. Since
1994, SIIS loss ratios are below breakeven levels.

When SIIS’s financial problems were first revealed by SIIS in 1991, it was unclear just
how serious the problem was. The first actuarial report to indicate that SIIS did not have
sufficient assets to pay its incurred liabilities was prepared by Joseph T. Flynn and
Associates on October 23, 1991. That report indicated that SIIS had an unfunded
liability as of June 30, 1991, of $199.3 million before unrealized gains on equity
securities. Taking into account the unrealized gains on equity securities of $5.6 million,
the deficit was $193.7 million.

An actuarial review covering the same period was conducted by Tillinghast-Towers
Perrin in June 1992 and confirmed that SIIS was experiencing financial difficulties.
However, the Tillinghast report estimated the value of the unfunded liability to be $377.6
million on a fully discounted basis, and $608.6 million on a partially discounted basis.
(Partial discounting reflected that fact that approximately 33 percent of SIIS’s discounted
loss reserves were not supported by assets.)

Tillinghast-Towers Perrin also conducted an actuarial review of SIIS for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 1992. According to that report, dated November 24, 1992, SIIS had an
undiscounted unfunded liability of $1,623 million. (The figure booked by SIIS in its
Financial Statements that year was $1,413 million.)

In January 1993, the Department of Insurance released a report entitled, “Solvency
Investigation of the Nevada State Industrial Insurance System.” In that report, the
Department of Insurance concluded that SIIS had an accumulated deficit as of
June 30, 1992, in excess of $2.2 billion.

Due in large part to the reforms enacted by the Legislature in 1991 and 1993, the
financial position of SIIS has improved dramatically in recent years. The following
five-year financial summary documents this improvement:

State Industrial Insurance System

Five-Year Financial Summary

(ddliars in thousands) 1996 1995 1994 1993 1992
Net Premium Income $ 458979 § 451,243 § 419103 $ 378146 $ 338,682

Claims Expense 248,529 266,288 322,628 428,522 435,266

Net Investment Income 76,736 50,831 40,617 57,479 54,003
Net Realized Investment Gains 32,643 11,652 13,586 18,688 6,664
Net Income (Loss) 363,470 276,664 98,718 (699,797) (1,260,273)
Total Assets 1,409,444 981,545 734,721 710,042 748,359
Total Liabilities 2,761,732 2,713,185 2,787,768 2,807,166 2,161,291

Total Accumulated Deficit (1,352,288) (1,731,640) (2,053,047) (2,097,124) (1,412,932)

Source: SlIS 1996 Annual Report
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Particularly noteworthy in the above figures are the improvements in net income,
reductions in claims expense, and reduction in the unfunded liability (accumulated
deficit). Net income increased by 31.4 percent from FY 1995 to FY 1996. Claims
expenses fell by 6.7 percent in FY 1996 and by nearly 43 percent since FY 1993. The
unfunded liability has decreased from $2,097 million in FY 1993 to $1,352 million in
FY 1996. More recent estimates provided to the committee by the SIIS manager indicate
that the unfunded liability as of October 31, 1996, may be approximately
$1,259 million."

Even though the turnaround of SIIS’s financial condition has been dramatic, concerns
exist among members of the committee that the agency may not be able to continue to
improve its financial condition as it faces increased competition from individual and
group self-insurance, and from private carriers beginning July 1, 1999.

According to the Division of Insurance, SIIS is continuing to lose business as employers
exercise their options to self-insure. As of December 1, 1996, the Division of Insurance
had on file 254 active certificates of individual self-insurance covering approximately
328,900 employees. The Division also had certified nine self-insurance groups
(one public and eight private). These group self-insurance certificates represent
approximately 327 individual former policyholders of SIIS and cover approximately
17,700 employees.

Charles B. Knaus, Actuary, Division of Insurance, reported to the committee that SIIS
estimates that it could lose as much as $125 million of its current $450 million premium
base when private carriers enter Nevada’s workers’ compensation market for the first
time on July 1, 1999. Mr. Knaus further indicated that if SIIS’s financial condition
deteriorated to the point where it was again experiencing negative cash flow, he did not
think that the agency could “recover to a better financial position than just prior to the
onset of negative cash flow.”"!

The concern expressed by Mr. Knaus is similar to the concern expressed by the Nevada
Legislature when it created the Legislative Committee on Workers’ Compensation and
gave it a responsibility to review and study the financial condition of SIIS, determine the
extent of any apparent insolvency of SIIS, and establish a solvency formula. In addition,
however, the committee was given authority to considered many other issues related to
Nevada’s workers’ compensation program. Following is a discussion of the
recommendations adopted by the committee at its December 3, 1996, work session in
Las Vegas. The recommendations as approved by the committee are denoted by bullets
and text in bold print.

"“See unaudited SIIS Financial Statements included as Appendix C of this report.

'See a November 26, 1996, memorandum from Charles B. Knaus to Vance Hughey which is included in this
report as Appendix D.
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A. Administration

During the course of its study, the committee received considerable testimony regarding
administration of the workers’ compensation program. For example, NRS 616C.020
provides that an injured employee must file a claim for compensation with the insurer
within 90 days after an accident if either (a) the employee has sought medical treatment
for an injury arising out of and in the course of his employment, or (b) the employee was
off work as a result of an injury arising out of and in the course of his employment.
Testimony was provided to the committee by employers and third-party administrators
(TPAs) contending that 90 days was too long a period of time within which to seek
medical treatment for an industrial injury. They suggested that if treatment was sought
sooner, many medical conditions could be resolved more quickly and at a lower cost.
To address this concern, the committee made the following recommendation to the
1997 Legislature:

1. Amend NRS 616C.020 to reduce from 90 the number of days within which
an injured employee must seek medical treatment.

A company that assists employers secking to become members of associations of
self-insured employers expressed concern that insurers may be reluctant to provide
certain information in a timely manner to a policyholder who is considering some form
of self-insurance. The information referred to is required to be supplied to the
Commissioner of Insurance for comsideration of a policyholder’s application for a
certificate of self-insurance. The company that raised this issue felt that a delay in
providing information might be used either to allow an insurer an opportunity to try to
convince the employer to keep his coverage with the insurer, or to keep the policyholder
account for as long as possible before it becomes self-insured. To minimize the chance
of such delays occurring, the committee made the following recommendation:

2. Amend Chapter 616A of NRS to add a requirement that an insurer provide
policy information to a policyholder within a reasonable period of time after
such information is requested.

Representatives of employers and TPAs testified that a number of changes in certain
provisions in the statutes would help streamline the administration of claims. The
committee agreed with those representatives and adopted the following recommendations:

3. Allow electronic transmission of the Employer’s Report of Industrial Injury
or Occupational Disease (C-3 form), Employee’s Claim for
Compensation/Report of Initial Treatment (C-4 form), medical bills, and
other documents.

4. Amend NRS 616B.018 and NRS 616C.020 to allow insurers greater access to
medical and claim information from other insurers.
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5. Amend NRS 616C.020 and NRS 616C.025 to clarify reporting requirements.

6. Amend NRS 616C.065 to clarify that an insurer shall take certain actions
within 30 working days after being notified of an industrial accident and
having received a claim for compensation.

7. Amend NRS 616C.235 to clarify that an insurer may dispose of a claim file
six months after the date of automatic closure.

8. Amend NRS 616C.475 to clarify that a certification of disability shall not be
given for dates that are prior to the date of the physician’s examination of the
injured employee. '

9. Amend subsection 5 of NRS 616C.490 so that it is consistent with Nevada
Administrative Code (NAC) 616C.103 which allows 30 days for an employer
to notify the employee of the compensation to which he is entitled. The
statute currently allows only 14 days.

10. Amend subsection 9 of NRS 612.265 to allow self-insured employers to
participate in the program designed to identify persons who are
simultaneously receiving unemployment compensation and workers’
compensation benefits. Also, clarify in the statute that both the Employment
Security Division of the Department of Employment, Training and
Rehabilitation and insurers have authority to investigate persons suspected
of violating the law by simultaneously obtaining benefits under both the
unemployment compensation and workers’ compensation programs.

Suggested wording changes to the statutes referred to in recommendations three through
ten are included as Appendix E to this report.

B. Compensation Payment

Subsection 1 of NRS 616C.060 requires that an insurer commence payment of an
accepted claim within 30 days after the insurer has been notified of an industrial
accident. However, subsection 3 of NRS 616C.475 requires that an insurer make the
first payment within 14 working days after receiving the initial certification of disability.
It was pointed out to the committee that an insurer may be required to make the first
payment of temporary total disability before it has complieted its investigation of the
compensability of a claim for compensation. If an insurer ultimately determines that the
claim is not compensable under the Nevada Industrial Insurance Act, the injured
employee will have received a payment to which he or she is not entitled. To avoid this
situation from occurring, the committee made the following recommendation:
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11. Correct a conflict between NRS 616C.060 and 616C.475 regarding the
number of days within which an insurer must begin paying compensation.

A self-insured employer provided the committee with information regarding a case where
one of its employees had falsified documents to obtain employment. The employee had
used a false Social Security number and a forged resident alien card to complete her I-9
form at the time of employment. The employee filed a workers” compensation claim just
prior to the discovery of the falsified documents. The employer argued that it is wrong
for a person who has entered this country illegally and produced false documents in
order to obtain employment to be able to receive workers’ compensation benefits. The
committee made the following recommendation:

12. Amend the law to disallow any person from receiving workers’ compensation
benefits if that person has falsified citizenship documents to obtain
employment.

C. Coverage

A representative of the Schools to Careers Council explained to the committee that
student participants in programs administered by a school district, a licensed private
school, or a post secondary educational institution designed to provide exposure,
training, or work experience are not covered by workers’ compensation insurance even
though they are subject to risks similar to those faced by employees of the participating
companies. In addition, when a teacher participates in an unpaid “externship,” where he
or she works at a business for a few weeks during the summer or between school
sessions, the teacher cannot be covered by the school district’s workers” compensation
insurance. Because teachers in these circumstance also cannot be paid by an external
source for such activities, they cannot be covered under the business’s workers’
compensation policy. In order to address these school to careers issues, the committee
voted to have a separate bill drafted that will include the following recommendations:

13. Amend Chapter 616 to allow (but not require) coverage of a student in a
“volunteer” Schools to Careers related sitnation.

14.  Develop a specific provision that requires a teacher’s employer to continue
coverage while the teacher is in a temporary location in an approved Schools
to Careers activity.

D. Hearings and Appeals
Employers and TPAs expressed concern that many decisions rendered by hearing officers

and appeals officers of the Department of Administration lack consistency when the facts
of the cases suggest otherwise. They further complained that prior commitments
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regarding scheduling of hearings and related matters have not been adhered to by the
Department of Administration. In an effort to deal with these issues, the committee
made the following recommendations for legislative action:

15.  Provide peer review or management review of hearing and appeals officers
of the Department of Administration to help ensure consistency of decisions.
Also require training of hearing and appeals officers at the National Judicial
College in Reno.

16.  Evaluate prior commitments made by the Department of Administration
regarding scheduling of hearings and related matters.

E. Pensions and Annuities

The committee received testimony that suggested that Nevada’s workers’ compensation
laws are not clear regarding whether an insurer may purchase an annuity to satisfy its
obligation to provide long term benefits in certain cases. Self-insured employers testified
that they currently purchase annuities in some cases. In order to clarify the Legislature’s
position regarding the purchase of annuities by workers’ compensation insurers, the
committee made the following recommendation:

17.  Amend Chapter 616 to specify that insurers may purchase annuities.

At the May 23, 1996, meeting of the committee, Dr. Richard Victor, Executive Director,
Workers Compensation Research Institute (WCRI), Cambridge, Massachusetts, made a
presentation regarding PPD benefit structures and delivery systems.”> The WCRI is a -
nonpartisan, not-for-profit research institute that specializes in conducting research on
workers’ compensation issues.

Dr. Victor’s presentation highlighted the adversarial nature of many PPD benefit delivery
systems which leads to litigation, delay of benefit payments, and distrust between injured
employees and insurers. He outlined the following key system features that can improve
PPD benefit delivery systems:

] Rules that generate predictable payments;

“Dr. Victor’s slide presentation is included in this report as Appendix F.
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° Practices that encourage nonpartisan experts;

° A system that fosters early payment;
° Agencies that help parties (especially injured employees) navigate the system; and
° An adjudication process that deters litigation.

Dr. Victor explained that injured employees often retain attorneys merely to obtain
information, not necessarily to dispute decisions affecting their claims. He noted that a
less complex system that generates more predictable outcomes probably would lead to
fewer disputes and less litigation. In addition, he advised workers’ compensation
agencies to seek ways of improving communication with their clients.

Return-to-work strategies can help minimize economic losses to both employees and
employers. According to Dr. Victor, the primary factors that shape return-to-work
outcomes include the following:

. Economic incentives, including benefit levels and reemployment wage levels;
L Return to preinjury employer;

o Worker attributes reflected in unstable employment history; and

. Return to work in six months or less.

“Laboratory studies” from California demonstrate the subjectivity associated with PPD
ratings that can contribute to disputes regarding the amount of benefits to which an
injured employee may be entitled. Dr. Victor explained that even asymptomatic
individuals (those persons with no industrial injuries) are likely to have measurable
impairments, and that the amount of impairment increases with age (from 2 percent on
average for a young person to nine percent on average for an older person).

Dr. Victor also noted that when benefit levels are relatively high, incentives exist for
injured employees to contest even small differences in impairment ratings. He cautioned,
however, that policy makers must balance equity issues (such as the adequacy of
compensation for work-related impairments) with cost savings associated with lower
benefit levels and reduced litigation.

Mr. Hughey and Ron Swirczek, Administrator, DIR, presented the results of a 50-state
survey on PPD awards with the assistance of Deb Braun, Chief Administrative Officer,
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DIR, and Ruth Ryan, Management Analyst, DIR.” The survey compared the amount
of PPD awards in different states under several assumptions regarding the wage of a
hypothetical injured employee and the severity of the employee’s injury.

After considerable deliberations regarding alternative methods of determining appropriate
benefits for permanent partial impairments, the committee made the following
recommendations:

18.  Consider studying alternatives to the current PPD rating system such as
implementing a schedule of benefits for most injuries to take out some
subjective areas such as range of motion. If this review cannot be completed
during the 1997 Legislative Session, continue the statutory committee and
charge the committee with commissioning an independent study of PPD
awards. The results of the study, along with recommendations of the
committee, are to be presented to the 1999 Legislature.

19.  Address the issue of PPD awards for dental problems. (Note: NRS 616C.485
and NAC 616C.508 govern payment of PPD awards for loss of or permanent
damage to a tooth.)

20.  Amend NRS 616C.090 to provide that an injured employee be allowed to
choose a doctor from the rotating list for a PPD evaluation at any time.

21.  Amend NRS 616C.090 to provide that if an injured employee’s claim is being
administered by SIIS and the injured employee requests a doctor from the
rotating list, and the injured employee is assigned a doctor who is employed
by SIIS, then the injured employee is entitled to request another doctor from
the rotating list.

22. Amend NRS 616C.090 to provide that the doctor who shall rate the claimant
for a PPD shall be the claimant’s treating physician.

G. Regulation of Workers” Compensation Insurance

Many of the public comments during the first two meetings of the committee were in the
form of complaints regarding a regulatory change to the formula used by SIIS to
calculate experience modification factors.' The concern expressed by these SIIS
policyholders was that the new formula is unfairly discriminatory because it results in:

"*The results of the survey are included in this report as Appendix G.

"*The credibility formula was changed by SIIS from C =B/ (1.1E +40,000) to C = E / (E + 100,000), where
C=credibility and E=expected losses.
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1. An increase in standard premiums for policyholders with better than average loss
experience; and

2. A reduction in standard premiums for policyholders with worse than average
experience.

At the second meeting of the committee, Mr. Hughey gave a presentation on experience
rating and the effects of a change to the experience rating formula adopted by SIIS.?
Mr. Hughey explained that experience rating is a pricing tool that distinguishes each
employer as better than, equal to, or worse than his or her industry average in terms of
controlling losses. Two primary goals of experience rating are “predictive accuracy” and
“safety incentive.” In addition, credibility is used to gauge the level of confidence that
an insurer has in the available data as an indicator of a policyholder’s future losses.

The basic formula for calculating experience modification factors (e-mods) has been part
of the Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) since at least 1983. The SIIS did not change
this basic formula, although it did revise the credibility component of the formula. The
change in the formula caused concern among many policyholders, especially smaller
policyholders with e-mods less than one that also experienced stable or declining losses
during the preceding year. Employers who had better than average loss experience and
less than $600,000 in expected losses, complained that their premiums were increased
as a result of the change in the e-mod formula, while premiums were reduced for
employers who had worse than average premiums and less than $600,000 in expected
losses.

Robert Conger, a consulting actuary with Tillinghast-Towers Perrin, explained the
changes to the experience modification plan and discussed some of the difficulties the
agency had to address in making those changes. He stated that experience rating may
help turn an employer with poor claims experience into a good policyholder by:

1. Establishing a premium charge that is adequate to cover the risks of that
employer;
2. Providing a mechanism to encourage the commercial market to provide coverage

for an employer with worse than average claims experience. With the benefit of
experience rating, the commercial market or SIIS may be interested in writing
coverage for that employer; and

3. Providing an incentive to the employer to improve its claims experience.

PMr. Hughey’s slide presentation is included in this report as Appendix H.
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He also explained that an experience rating plan is not the cause of all premium
increases. An employer’s premium may increase due to growth in payroll or changes
to any of the following other factors:

1. Operation or type of business;
2. Claims experience of the employer’s industry; and
3. The employer’s own claims experience.

According to Mr. Conger, changes to the experience rating formula recently adopted by
SIIS include:

1. An increase in the “eligibility requirement” to be experience rated;

2. A change to the credibility formula. Credibility factors for most employers were
reduced;

3. An increase in the dollar cap on individual claims; and

4. An offsetting 6 percent reduction in manual premium rates.

After considering the testimony and recognizing that neither the committee nor the
Commissioner of Insurance had jurisdiction over the regulation adopted by SIIS, the
committee made the following recommendation.

23.  Consider changing the law to place responsibility for adeption of an
experience rating plan with the Commissioner of Insurance.

Public testimony was received from the owner of a custom wood working company
regarding a “three times” penalty (NRS 616D.200) imposed by SIIS for a period of time
when the company was uninsured in Nevada. The owner explained to the committee that
his Nevada employees were covered by a California policy during the period of time for
which SIIS imposed the penalty. He argued that the regulation adopted by SIIS provided
the agency with no discretion to wave or reduce the amount of the penalty in cases such
as his. He contended that the regulation was contrary to the Legislature’s intent to
provide SIIS with discretion in imposing the penalty. The committee made the following
recommendation regarding penalties for failure of an employer to secure or maintain
workers’ compensation insurance:

24.  Correct a perceived conflict between NRS 616D.200 and the regulation

adopted by SIIS regarding the “three times penalty” imposed for failure of an
employer to secure or maintain workers’ compensation insurance.

26



Mr. Swirczek testified regarding the annual review of the medical fee schedule. Such
a review is required by subsection 2 of NRS 616C.260. The committee discussed the
issue of setting maximum fees and how the medical fee schedule worked in conjunction
with managed care organizations (MCOs) who typically require physicians on their
provider panels to agree to substantial discounts from the approved medical fee schedule.
The committee agreed to make the following recommendation:

25. Amend NRS 616C.260 to change the benchmark for the medical fee schedule.

The commuttee spent a considerable amount of time discussing the role of various entities
involved in the workers’ compensation program, especially in view of private carriers
entering the market beginning July 1, 1999. The committee received testimony that
currently certain regulatory functions are performed by SIIS (such as imposing a penalty
for failure of an employer to secure or maintain workers’ compensation insurance). In
addition, employers complained that the regulatory responsibilities of DIR and the
Commissioner of Insurance are often duplicative and confusing. In an effort to clarify
regulatory responsibilities in a more competitive insurance environment, the committee
made the following recommendation:

26.  Identify which regulatory responsibilities should be delegated to the
Commissioner of Insurance and/or DIR in anticipation of workers’
compensation coverage being provided by private carriers beginning
July 1, 1999.

H.  Safety and Health

Testimony was provided to the effect that employees sometimes prevail upon appeal in
cases involving a claim by an employer that an injured worker was injured as a result of
being under the influence of a controlled substance. Employers explained that it is
difficult to prove that an employee was intoxicated or “under the influence” at the time
of an industrial injury because no levels have been established for controlled substances
as they have for alcohol. The committee was advised of a position taken by the
Employment Security Division (ESD), Department of Employment, Training, and
Rehabilitation, in similar cases involving eligibility determinations for unemployment
compensation. According to testimony, if an employee is terminated by an employer for
violating a written drug policy, the ESD upholds the denial of unemployment
compensation benefits. The agency does not address the issue of whether the employee
was under the influence at the time of the termination of employment, but rather upholds
state laws that prohibit the use of illegal substances. This position was upheld in a recent
case decided by the Supreme Court of Nevada (Nevada Employment Security Department
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v. Cynthia Holmes) in a claim against the San Remo Hotel in Las Vegas. The committee
adopted the following recommendation:

27. Amend subsection 1(d) of NRS 616C.230 to strengthen provisions for an
insurer to deny a workers’ compensation claim if an injured employee tests
positive for a controlled substance. Refusal to take a drug test would have
the same presumption of “under the influence” as in the case of driving under
the influence of alcohol. Termination of employment for failing a drug test
or refusing to take a drug test would disqualify an injured employee from
benefits.

L Solvency Assessment and the Role of SIIS

Chairman Hettrick offered several proposals regarding the solvency assessment formula.
First, he suggested that the mechanism for determining if and when a solvency
assessment is to be imposed be changed. Currently, NRS 616B.110 provides that the
Commissioner of Insurance may declare SIIS to be insolvent if the agency must liquidate
its invested assets or real property in order to pay its outstanding obligations as they
mature in the regular course of business. Such a declaration would trigger imposition
of the solvency assessment. Chairman Hettrick stated his opinion that the Commissioner
could make such a declaration at any time, which would require that a solvency
assessment immediately be imposed on employers. He expressed concern that
automatically imposing an assessment before considering other available options to deal
with SIIS’s financial difficulties might not be in the best interest of Nevada’s workers’
compensation program. Chairman Hettrick instead suggested that the decision to impose
the assessment be made by the committee after it has considered all other available
options.

Second, Chairman Hettrick suggested that if the assessment must be imposed, that it be
an assessment on all insurers in the amount of 4 percent of paid claims. He noted that
an analysis by the Division of Insurance suggested that a 4 percent assessment on paid
claims likely would be adequate if it became necessary to impose an assessment. He also
stated that the figure of 4 percent could be higher or lower depending upon the extent of
any insolvency of SIIS at the time a decision is made to impose an assessment. Chairman
Hettrick argued that by placing the decision to impose an assessment with the committee,
the most recent financial information could be considered before setting the assessment
rate.

The committee discussed several options regarding the base upon which an assessment
should be applied including premiums, employees, and paid claims. Chairman Hettrick
explained that using paid claims had several advantages over the other options. First,
the current formula used by DIR to assess insurers for the administrative expenses of
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regulating workers’ compensation insurance is based on paid claims. From an
administrative standpoint, appending a solvency assessment to the current DIR
assessment formula would be relatively easy. Second, basing a solvency assessment on
paid claims provides an incentive for employers to improve workplace safety and to
provide return to work opportunities for their injured employees. Under such a plan, a
company with no paid claim costs would not pay an assessment. Likewise, an employer
with high losses would pay a larger share of the assessment.

Representatives of governmental entities in Clark County suggested that the committee
consider excluding from the solvency assessment formula payments for cancer, heart,
and lung claims under NRS 617.453, 617.455, and 617.457. These sections of Nevada’s
occupational disease statutes provide a conclusive presumption that cancer, heart, and
lung diseases arise out of and in the course of employment for fire fighters and police
officers. The local government representatives argued that city and county governments
are uniquely affected by these statutory provisions. They explained that they can neither
prevent such claims nor defend against them. Because the law prohibits requiring that
injured employees afflicted with these conditions return to work in alternative positions,
there 1s little that a local government can do to mitigate costs of such claims.

After much deliberation, the committee considered and adopted the following
recommendations regarding the solvency assessment issue:

28. Amend NRS 616B.110 to require that the decision to impose the assessment
be made by the Legislative Committee on Workers’ Compensation after it
has considered all other available options.

29. Amend NRS 616B.110 so that if an assessment is imposed, it is based on a
percentage of paid claims of all employers. Consider allowing exemptions for
special circumstances such as cancer, heart, and lung coverage provided by
certain governmental entities.
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IV, CONCLUSIONS

All reform efforts are experimental and represent innovation on the part
of the states who have undertaken them. Cost containment mechanisms,
particularly managed care programs which have been used for years in
other health care systems, are just beginning to be tested in workers’
compensation. When the old answers no longer work, it takes leadership
and creative thinking to institute reforms—and this is the tack that many
states have taken.'®

The Nevada Legislature is faced with the difficult task of dealing with the potential
insolvency of SIIS, the State’s largest workers’ compensation insurance carrier, while
providing for obligations of SIIS to pay benefits to injured employees. In addition, the
Legislature is faced with problems of promoting a business environment that is conducive
to creating and maintaining high quality employment opportunities to Nevada’s workers,
while attempting to ensure the future funding of liabilities incurred by SIIS at least a
decade ago.

The reasons for SIIS’s financial problems are varied and complex. Successful resolution
of those problems are likely to be the same. The recommendations contained in this
report, and the bill draft requests included in Appendix I are designed to minimize the
chance that drastic measures will need to be taken in the future. Even so, future Nevada
Legislatures will likely face additional challenges in their attempts to maintain a
cost-effective, comprehensive program of industrial insurance that is fair to employers
and injured employees alike.

YThe State of Workers” Compensation, National Conference of State Legislatures, January 1994, p. 78.
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LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE ON WORKERS’ COMPENSATION

218.5375 Creation; membership; chairman and vice chairman; vacancies.

1. There is hereby created a legislative committee on workers’ compensation.
The committee consists of:

(a) Four members appointed by the majority leader of the senate, in consultation
with the minority leader of the senate, from the membership of the senate standing
committee on commerce and labor during the immediately preceding session of the
legislature.

(b) Four members appointed by the speaker of the assembly from the member-
ship of the assembly standing committee on labor and management during the
immediately preceding session of the legislature. The members must represent each
political party represented in the assembly in the approximate proportion that they
are represented in that house, but at least one member must be chosen from each
political party.

2. The members of the committee shall elect a chairman and vice chairman from
among their members. The chairman must be elected from one house of the legisla-
ture and the vice chairman from the other house. After the initial election of a
chairman and vice chairman, each of those officers holds office for a term of 2 years
commencing on July 1 of each odd-numbered year. If a vacancy occurs in the
chairmanship or vice chairmanship, the members of the committee shall elect a
replacement for the remainder of the unexpired term.

3. Any member of the committee who is not a candidate for reelection or who is
defeated for reelection continues to serve until the convening of the next session of
the legislature.

4. Vacancies on the committee must be filled in the same manner as original
appointments.

(Added to NRS by 1995, 2162)
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218.5376 Meetings; compensation of members.

1. The members of the committee shall meet at least quarterly and at the times
and places specified by a call of the chairman. The research director of the legislative
counsel bureau or a person he has designated shall act as the nonvoting recording
secretary. Five members of the committee constitute a quorum, and a quorum may
exercise all the power and authority conferred on the committee.

2. Except during a regular or special session of the legislature, the members of
the committee are entitled to receive the compensation provided for a majority of the
members of the legislature during the first 60 days of the preceding session, the per
diem allowance provided for state officers and employees generally and the travel
expenses provided pursuant to NRS 218.2207 for each day or portion of a day of
attendance at a meeting of the committee and while engaged in the business of the
committee. The salaries and expenses of the members of the committee and any
other expenses incurred by the committee in carrying out its duties must be paid
from assessments imposed pursuant to NRS 232.680.

(Added to NRS by 1995, 2163)

218.5377 Powers and duties. The committee:

1. May review issues related to workers’ compensation. :

2. May study the desirability of establishing a preferred employee program
which provides exemptions from the payment of premiums and other financial
incentives for employers who provide suitable employment for injured employees
and any other program for returning injured employees to work.

3. May review the manner used by the division of industrial relations of the
department of business and industry to rate physical impairments of injured
employees.

4. Shall, to ensure the solvency of the state industrial insurance system:

(a) Review and study the financial condition of the state industrial insurance
system,

(b) Determine the extent of any apparent insolvency of the system; and

(c) Establish a formula which will be applied to calculate a surcharge that is equal
in amount to any deficiency in the cumulative amount of premiums paid by an
employer who is subject to the provisions of NRS 616B.110.

5. May conduct investigations and hold hearings in connection with carrying out
its duties pursuant to this section.

6. May direct the legisiative counsel bureau to assist in its research, investiga-
tions, hearings and reviews.

(Added to NRS by 1995, 2163)

218.5378 Fees and mileage for witnesses. Each witness who appears before the
committee by its order, except a state officer or employee, is entitled to receive for
his attendance the fees and mileage provided for witnesses in civil cases in the courts
of record of this state. The fees and mileage must be audited and paid upon the
presentation of proper claims sworn to by the witness and approved by the chairman
of the committee.

(Added to NRS by 1995, 2164)
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616B.110 Solvency surcharge: Collection by administrator; credit of money
received to account for solvency surcharges; cessation of collection when system
is no longer insolvent; civil liability for failure to pay.

1. If, after conducting an examination of the affairs, transactions, accounts,
funds, records and assets of the system, the commissioner determines that the system
is insolvent, he shall give written notice of his determination to the manager and
administrator.

2. Except as otherwise provided in this subsection, upon receipt of such a notice,
the administrator shall impose and collect a solvency surcharge from:

(a) Each employer who was insured by the Nevada industrial commission or the
systeérgsat any time during the period beginning on July 1, 1979, and ending on July
1, 1995;

§b) Each employer who is insured by the system at any time after July 1, 1995;

c) Each self-insured employer; and

(d) Each association of self-insured public or private employers,
in an amount calculated to produce the revenue that is required to pay the outstand-
ing obligations of the system as they become due. The formula used by the adminis-
trator to calculate the surcharge must be approved by the legislative committee on
workers’ compensation created pursuant to NRS 218.5375. The surcharge must be
paid in the manner prescribed by the administrator. The manager shall collect the
surcharge imposed against those employers who are insured by the system at any
time after July 1, 1995.

3. All money received by the administrator and manager from any surcharge
imposed pursuant to this section must be credited on the records of the system to the
account for solvency surcharges, which is hereby created in the state insurance fund.
The money in the account: ,

(a) Constitutes a part of the assets of the state insurance fund.

(b) Must be used solely to pay the operating expenses of the system and any
obligations of the system as they become due. The money in the account may not be
used by the system to incur any additional obligations.

4. If, at any time after the imposition of a surcharge pursuant to this section, the
manager determines that the system is no longer insolvent, he shall file a request
with the commissioner to cease the collection of any surcharge imposed pursuant to
this section. Upon the receipt of the request, the commissioner shall, for the purpose
of determining the financial condition of the system, conduct an examination of the
affairs, transactions, accounts, funds, records and assets of the system. If, after
conducting the examination, the commissioner determines that the system is no
longer insolvent, the commissioner shall approve the request.

5. Any employer, self-insured employer or association of self-insured public or
private employers that fails to pay any surcharge imposed pursuant to this section is
liable in a civil action commenced by the administrator for:

(a) The amount owed pursuant to this section;

(b) The reasonable expenses incurred by the administrator in enforcing this sec-
tion; and

(c) Payment of interest on the amount due at the rate fixed pursuant to NRS
99.040 for the period from the date upon which the surcharge was due to the date
upon which the surcharge is paid.

Any money collected by the administrator pursuant to this subsection must be
deposited into the account for solvency surcharges.

6. For the purposes of this section, the system is insolvent if the system is
required to sell or otherwise liquidate any of the invested assets or real property of
the system for the purpose of paying its outstanding obligations as they mature in the
regular course of business.

(Added to NRS by 1993, 2128)
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UNAUDITED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY

STATE INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE SYSTEM
Balance Sheet

As of October 31, 1996 and June 30, 1996

ASSETS

Investment Securities (note 2):
Marketable Equity Securities
Bonds
Mortgages

Total Investment Securities

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash held in escrow (note 3):

Premiums receivable

Accrued interest and dividends receivable
Due from brokers for security sales

Property, Plant & Equipment (note 4):
Land
Buildings
Furniture & Equipment
Systems in development

Less Accumulated Depreciation
Net Property, Plant & Equipment

Other assets

LIABILITIES AND ACCUMULATED DEFICIT

Liability for incurred but unpaid claims and claims

adjustment expense (note 5 and 8)
Reserve for retrospective rating plans
Policyholders premium deposit
Accounts Payable and other liabilities
Pending security purchases
Obligations under capital leases

Total Liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (notes 6 and 9)

Accumulated deficit
Net unrealized gain on investment

Total accurnulated deficit

* See accompanying notes

(In thousands)

As of As of
31-Oct-96 30-Jun-96 Changes
% 370,536 $ 338,030 $ 31,508
396,464 308,793 87,671
307,153 293,968 13,185
1,074,152 941,791 132,361
220,239 297,303 (77,064)
2,807 3,405 (598)
86,350 100,350 {14,000)
5,265 5,276 {11)
14 978 26,221 (11,243)
3,779 3,779 -
15,378 15,302 76
27,289 26,937 352
9,698 6.859 2,839
56,144 52,877 3,267
23,094 22,528 566
33,050 30,349 2,701
4,897 4,749 148
% 1,441,739 3 1,409,444 $ 32,295
$ 2,443,000 $ 2,443,000 $ -
18,500 18,500
42 881 48 692 {5,811)
17,526 17.211 315
170,196 222,851 (52,655)
8,581 11,478 {2,897)
2,700,683 2,761,732 {61,049)
(1,345,763) (1,420,533) 74,770
86,819 68,245 18,574
(1,258,944) (1,352.288) 93,344
$ 1,441,739 3 1,409,444 $ 32,295
Page 1
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UNAUDITED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY

STATE INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE SYSTEM
Statement of Operations and Changes in Accumulated Deficit
For the period July 1, 1996 to October 31, 1996

(In thousands)

Period Ending Current Month
31-Oct-96 Oct-96
Net premium income (note 7 and 8) $ 141,252 $ 37,258
Operating expenses
Claims expense 66,451 16,280
Change in reserve for claims - -
MCO fees (note 10) 1,405 (428)
Salaries and benefits {note 11) 13,524 3,226
Operating 9,827 1,701
Administrative expense 1,967 437
Depreciation and amortization ‘ 982 251
94,158 21,467
Underwriting income (loss) 47 095 15,791
Other income
Miscellaneous income 884 184
Delinquent penalties 646 181
Other 1,784 417
3,313 782
Net investment income (note 2):
Interest and dividend income 14,024 2,664
Net realized investment gain 10,337 3,637
24,361 6,300
Net income (loss) $ 74,770 $ 22,874
Accumulated deficit beginning of period 1,420,533 1,368,637
Accumulated deficit end of period $ 1,345,763 $ 1,345,763

* See accompanying notes

Page 2
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UNAUDITED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY

STATE INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE SYSTEM
Statement of Cash Flows
For the period July 1, 1996 to October 31, 1996

(In thousands)

Period ending

31-Oct-96
Cash flow from operating activities:
Premiums received $ 153,493
Claims paid (68,183)
MCO expense (1,405)
Salaries and benefits paid to employees (12,236)
Deductible income-net 1,363
Operating and other expenses paid (18,019)
Other operating receipts 4,733
Net cash provided by operating activities 59,746
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Systems in development {2.838)
Acquisitions of property and equipment, net (845)
Payments on obligations under capital leases (2,897)
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (6,581)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases (776,906)
Sales 632,044
Interest & dividends received 14,036
Net cash provided by investing activities (130,826)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash (77,661)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 300,707
Cash and cash equivalents, year to date 3 223,047
Reconciliation of underwriting gain to net cash used in operating activities:
Underwriting income $ 47,095
Adjustments to reconcile underwriting income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amotization 982
Changes in operating assets & liabilities:
Premiums receivable 14,000
Allowance for uncoliectibie accounts -
Accounts payable and other liabilities 315
Other income 3,312
Other assets (148)
Premium deposits (5,811}
Liability for incurred but unpaid claims -
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ 59,746

* See accompanying notes

Page 3
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UNAUDITED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY

STATE INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE SYSTEM
Notes to Financial Statements
October 31, 1996

(Dollar amounts in thousands)

(1) Basis of Accounting

As a separate self-supporting agency of the State of Nevada, SIS follows the Accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recognized when eamed regardiess of when received and expenses are
recognized when incurred regardless of when paid. For purposes of financial presentation, SHS has
adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board Opinion 10, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Risk Financing and Related Insurance Issues . Interim financial statements are prepared internally, are
unaudited, and are intended only for internal use.

(2) Investment Securities

investment securities are carried at market value. The resuiting unrealized gains and losses on these
securities are reported as a separate component of the balance sheet. Realized gains or losses are
recognized as income upon the maturity or disposition of the investment or when a decline in vaiue is
considered other than temporary. For purposes of computing gains and losses, the cost of bonds and
mortgages sold is determined by specific identification. The cost of marketable equity securities sold is
determined on the average cost method.

On an interim basis an estimated accrual of investment activities is booked. This estimate includes:
dividend income, interest income, mortgage principal, security lending income, and unrealized gain.

Market value for investment securities is determined from prices quoted on national exchanges as of
October 31, 1996. Market values for investment securities that are not traded on national exchanges are
determined based upon quotes from several licensed securities brokers as of October 31, 1996.

(3) Cash Held In Escrow

Cash held in escrow represents the balance of monies held in escrow for the claims document imaging
project. Payments made on accepted deliverables are paid from the escrow account to Unisys

Corporation.
Beginning Current Year to date
Balance Month Disbursements Balance
$ 3,405 0 508 $2,807

{4) Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant, equipment and externally developed software costs are stated at cost, less accumulated
depreciation. Lease obligations for which SIS assumes substantially all the property rights and risks of
ownership are capitalized and reported as furniture and equipment. Maintenance, repairs and minor
renovations are charged o expense as costs are incurred.

On an interim basis, property, plant and equipment purchased is booked based on the date placed in
service.

Property and equipment is depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of
the assets:

Buildings and improvements _ 5 to 40 years
Furniture, equipment and software 4to7 years

Page 4

49



UNAUDITED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY

Leasehold improvements and assets under capital leases are amortized using the straight-line method
over the lives of the leases or the estimated useful lives of the assets, whichever is shorter.

Systems in development represents the claims document imaging project currently under development
(notes 3 and 6). Acceptable deliverables are paid from the escrow account and are capitalized to
Systems in development. Interest expense ($127 year to date) from the lease obligation and interest
income ($72 year to date) from an escrow account incurred during the development of the project are
also capitalized, in accordance with Statements of Financial Accounting Standards pronouncement 34.

(5) Incurred but Unpaid Claims

Claims expenses, on an interim basis, are recorded as paid. The liabilities for incurred but unpaid claims
and loss adjustment expenses is based on the estimated ultimate cost of settling the claims. An external
actuarial review was conducted as of June 30, 1996.

Incurred but unpaid claims and claims adjustment expense represents: (a) individual case estimates for
reported claims, (b) bulk reserve estimates for reported and unreported claims based on past experience
modified for current trends, and (c) estimates of expenses for investigating and settling claims. The total
of such items is reduced by estimated future employer deductibles and subrogation recoveries.

(6) Lease Obligations

SliS has entered into noncancelable lease agreements for computer equipment and related
maintenance contracts. Ownership of the computer equipment will be fransferred to SIIS at the end of
the lease term. The estimated capital lease and operating payments are $5,805 and $1,272 respectively
for fiscal year 1997. The future minimum lease payments under capital and operation leases are as

follows:
Capital Operating
Fiscal Year:

1998 $ 2,338 1,008
1999 2,338 1,021
2000 2,206 898
2001 - 898
Thereafter - 3,299
Total minimum lease payments . 6,882 7,124

Less amount representing interest : 659
Total future minimum lease payments $ 6,223 8,396

In July 1985, SIS entered into a capital lease for the imaging system which includes: computer
equipment, software, and development for $9,282, to be amortized over five years. As part of the
imaging lease the finance company advanced the full amount of monies, $9,282, to an escrow account
(see note 3). Imaging development and materials costs are paid from the escrow account.

(7) Premiums

Premiums are based on individual employers’ reported payroll using predetermined insurance rates
based on the employee risk classifications and are recognized as income over the coverage period. In
addition to regular premium plans, a refrospective premium rating plan under which premiums are
adjusted annually for four years following the plan year based on individual employers’ loss experience
is available. Adjustments to the original premiums are paid to or collected from the employers
approximately six months after the end of each plan year. Policyholders’ premiums due to SIIS are
recorded as premiums receivable, net of reserve for uncollectible accounts.

Premium income, on an interim basis, is an estimate of premium income earned for the current month.
This estimate is based on the premium activity of the preceding three months seasonalized over the
prior year's activities. The premium income is only an internal estimate and is not a function of an
actuarial review.

Page 5
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UNAUDITED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY

@

Reinsurance

In the ordinary course of business, the System cedes premiums for purposes of risk diversification and
limiting maximum loss exposure from catasfrophic events through contractual agreements with
reinsurers.

The following amounts have been deducted in the accompanying financial statements as a result of
reinsurance ceded:

1996

Gross liability for incurred but unpaid claims and claims

adjustment expense 3 2,450,000
Reinsurance recoverable on unpaid claims and claims

adjustment expense (7,000)
Liability for incurred but unpaid claims and claims

adjustment expense $ 2,443,000
Premium income $ 142,418
Ceded premiums (1,166)
Net premium income $ 141,252

The System’s reinsurance program provides coverage for loss occurrences involving one person subject
to a limit of $7,000 in excess of a $3,000 retention. Reinsurance for loss occurrences involving two or
more persons is subject to a limit of $125,000 in excess of a $3,000 retention.

(8) Commitments

An agreement for a Policyholder Services Business Process Analysis and a Policyholder Services
Computer System has been entered into with an outside contractor. The contract began in February
1996 and is scheduled for completion in February 1999. The expected cost for fiscal year 1997 is
$14,965, which is allocated to the following functions;

Operational consuiting $ 9,910
Computer consulting 925
Computer hardware 930
Computer software 3,200

The agency has entered info an agreement with an outside contractor to provide for the implementation
of a Claims Business Process Analysis. The contract was entered into in January 1996 and is
scheduled for completion in September 1996. The expected cost for fiscal year 1997 is $6,209.

(10)Managed Care Organization Fees

The managed care organizations (MCQO) manage claims by arranging to provide medical and health care
services, Tne expense is based on the number of claims accepted and closed while managed by the
MCO. On an interim basis, the SIS prepares an estimate of fees that have accrued for the current
period. This estimate is based on historical activity.

(11)Salary and Benefit Expense

Salary and benefit expense for the interim periods includes an accrual for expenses incurred yet not paid
as of the end of the interim period.

Page6
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TO:

FROM:

DATE:

SUBJECT:

STATE OF NEVADA
DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS & INDUSTRY
DIVISION OF INSURANCE

MEMORANDUM

Vance Hughey, Senior Research Analyst
Legislative Counsel Bureau

Charles B. Knaus, Actuary Il ;< %=
Division of Insurance T

November 26, 1996

7
Answers to Questions Posed During SB 458 Meeting held on November £, 1996

nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn

For the purposes of continuity, I have elected to answer the questions in a different order
than they were presented.

QUESTION: WHAT IS THE AMOUNT OF THE UNINSURED EMPLOYER FUND?

ANSWER:

(Question 2)

The balance in the uninsured employer fund is $4,533,092.06 (as of 10-30-96).
Claims are paid as they come due and monies are added to the fund quarterly, but

an employer may pay on an annual basis. Source: Ms. Debbie Braun, Division
of Industrial Relations, 684-8024.

QUESTION: WOULD THE SIIS BE CONSIDERED INSOLVENT? HOW WOULD THE

ANSWER:

DIVISION OF INSURANCE MAKE THAT DETERMINATION? IS THAT
ANY DIFFERENT FROM ANY OTHER FUND? (Question 3)

There are different insolvency triggers for the SIIS from those for insurers
licensed pursuant to chapter 680A of NRS. In fact, NRS 680A.120 defines
capital and surplus requirements for the licensed insurers.

The Life and Health Guaranty statutes in chapter 687C of NRS and the Guaranty
Association statutes in chapter 687A of NRS control insolvency proceedings for
licensed insurers. Chapter 687A of NRS would control workers’ compensation
by licensed insurers because it is defined as casualty insurance (NRS
681A.020(1)(c)).
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QUESTION:

ANSWER:

The Commissioner has an implied statutory duty (NRS 687A.107) to hold a
hearing for the purpose of determining whether an insurer is insolvent pursuant
to NRS 687A.035(2). In my opinion, the grounds for holding such a hearing
would be the determination that an insurer is unlikely to have the capital and
surplus required by NRS 680A.120.

It is an easy determination that the SIIS does not have the required capital and
surplus. The information which substantiated this fact includes the SIIS financial
statements dated 1992-1996 and the 1993 examination report. (The examination
was conducted by Douglas D. Dirks, then an independent contract examiner for
the Division of Insurance.)

As noted above, there is a different trigger than NRS 680A.120 for the SIIS.
NRS 616B.110(6) is the controlling provision, and negative cash flow from
operations is the requisite trigger. SIIS is not insolvent according to NRS
616B.110(6).

IF THE COMMITTEE’S RESPONSIBILITIES WERE NOT IN PLACE,
WHAT WOULD BE THE RESPONSIBILITY AND JURISDICTION OF
THE DIVISION OF INSURANCE? ALSO, PLEASE EXPLAIN THE
GUARANTY FUND SITUATION. (Question 1)

The SIIS is a governmental entity and, therefore, not part of the Guaranty
Association. Insurers could not be assessed through the guaranty association for
SHS insolvency.

Pursuant to NRS 687A.020, effective until July 1, 1999, the Guaranty applies to
all direct insurance except:

9 Any insurance provided by or guaranteed by a governmental agency.

Under current law, the commissioner has responsibility/jurisdiction over the SIIS
as follows: NRS 616B.110 allows the commissioner to conduct an examination
of SIIS and to establish insolvency pursuant to NRS 616B.110(6). If insolvency
is determined, the commissioner must give written notice to the manager and the
administrator.
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The following points do not apply to the commissioner’s responsibility/jurisdiction
over the SIIS. They apply to licensed insurers only.

1. Issue the financial examination report showing the insurer
to be insolvent;

2. Hold a hearing to have oral and written testimony on
record to confirm the insolvency;

3. Issue an order declaring the insurer to be insolvent;

4. Apply to the court of jurisdiction for an order
appointing the commissioner as receiver;

5. Take possession of the assets of the insurer and then, as
receiver, either conduct the business of the insurer or take
the authorized statutory steps for the purpose of
rehabilitating, liquidating, or conserving the affairs or
assets of the insurer.

6. File with the court the reports of the insurers’
affairs including progress toward accomplishing the
objectives of the receivership;

7. With respect to the SIIS operations over the past few years,
the current General Manager has accomplished very
acceptable variations of steps 5 and 6 above. His reports,
however, are to parties other than a court.

QUESTION: WHAT WOULD THE DIVISION OF INSURANCE NEED TO DO TO

ANSWER:

DETERMINE IF THE SIIS QUALIFIES FOR CONSERVATORSHIP
VERSUS LIQUIDATION? (Question 5)

To decide if the SIIS best qualifies for conservatorship (run as an ongoing
business for as long as practical) or liquidation (sale of both assets and liabilities),
the Commissioner would consider the information presented at the insolvency
hearing. The most relevant information would be the schedule of maturity of
claims liabilities as compared to projected flow of income. In my opinion, the

57



Vance Hughey
November 26, 1996

Page 4

QUESTION:

ANSWER:

QUESTION:

ANSWER:

SIIS could not sustain negative cash flow for any period of time and then recover
to a better financial position than just prior to the onset of negative cash flow.

IF THE SIIS IS DETERMINED TO BE INSOLVENT, WHAT IS THE
RESPONSIBILITY OF THE DIVISION OF INSURANCE? (Question 4)

The Commissioner has responsibility/jurisdiction over the SIIS as follows: NRS
616B.110 allows the commissioner to conduct an examination of SIIS and to
establish insolvency pursuant to NRS 616B.110(6). If insolvency is determined,
the commissioner must give written notice to the manager and the administrator.

IS THE INSURANCE DIVISION COMFORTABLE WITH
ASSEMBLYMAN HETTRICK’S PROPOSAL OF A 4 PERCENT
ASSESSMENT TO PAY OFF THE UNFUNDED LIABILITY? WHAT
ABOUT THE BENEFITS FOR HEART-LUNG DISEASE WHICH ARE
NOT TO BE FUNDED BY THE ASSESSMENT? (Question 6)

Given that certain specified benefits such as heart-lung disease would mot be
funded by assessments (that is, not paid for by the SIIS), the following analysis
explains how I would determine whether a 4 percent assessment on claims paid
would generate sufficient funds to pay off the unfunded liability of $1.35 billion.

Listed below are my observations:

1. The $1.35 billion number used to define the unfunded liability is a
projection into the future. It is, in fact, an estimate which would better
be represented as a range. For the purpose of this writing, I will assume
it to be an exact number.

2. I previously mentioned the schedule of maturity of SIIS liabilities as
compared to projected flow of income. From consultation with Mr.
Dirks, it does not appear there is an unforeseen or unusual front end
maturity of liabilities;

3. It is very possible that the SIIS assets such as bonds and real estate might
have to be sold in an unfavorable environment. This possibility, as much
as any other assumption, may actually determine if the SIIS will be
unable to pay claims;
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The base for the assessment is the aggregate of paid claims for all self-
insureds and the SIIS for a fiscal year. Information from the
Administrative Services Unit of the Division of Industrial Relations is that
for the fiscal year ending 6-30-95, this aggregate was $338,107,486.20.
Contact person is Ms. Mary Keating, telephone number 687-3308.

A 4 percent assessment on a base of $340 million produces $13.6 million
annually. I expect that the growth of Nevada will increase this number
by 3 to 5 percent per year.

Assuming that assessments would begin and continue for 40 vears. the
average annual collection will be about $18 million.

An average assessment of $18 million over 40 years is the amount to
balance against the estimate of the unfunded liability. The aggregate
assessment amount projects to $720 million (excluding any investment
income the accumulation might earn). Thus, if the unfunded liability of
$1.35 billion (as of June 30, 1996) is correct, then there is an apparent
short fall as measured by the difference between $1.35 billion and $720
million.

The $1.35 billion represents "full value" of the claims. If the reserve
liability could be discounted according to usual actuarial tables, the true
unfunded liability is very probably in the range of $1 billion. This
suggests a short fall of $280 million. However, if interest income on the
accumulated assessments is factored in, the $280 million tends to
disappear over time and the 4 percent assessment is plausible.

It is apparent that any of several alternative scenarios might play out. I
represent that item 7 above, where interest accrues on the assessment
money to the extent that all liability is funded, is a very likely outcome.
The worst case is that SIIS will run out of money in about the year 2016

due to the estimated unfunded liability being much higher than $1.35

billion.

The best case outcome is reflected by examining the value of compound
interest. If left untouched, the first assessment of $13.6 million, would
accumulate to over $36 million at 5 percent over a 20 year period. It is
similarly true that an extra increment of either current unfunded liability
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(this makes the outcome worse) or overstatement of unfunded liability
(this makes the outcome better) would accumulate under compound
mnterest.

9. The best control available to the legislature and other influential persons
1s that the professional staff of the SIIS, including their consulting actuary,
will continue to provide periodic updated reports of the unfunded liability.
The yearly report of the consulting actuary for the period ending June 30,
2001 will, in all probability, define how the current estimate of unfunded
liability relates to any assessments collected. Stated another way, it will
very likely be apparent by late 2001 whether the SIIS has sufficient assets
to fund past liabilities.

QUESTION: WHAT IS THE POTENTIAL LOSS OF PREMIUM TO SIS DUE TO

ANSWER:

"3-WAY" AND HOW WOULD THIS BE FACTORED INTO THE 4
PERCENT FORMULA? (Question 7)

The effect of "3-Way" as of July 1, 1999 will certainly be to reduce SIIS
premium revenue. The $450 million could easily drop by over $125 million as
of July 1, 1999. This $125 million figure is an estimate based on information
available at the current time, as provided by Mr. Dirks to Mr. Knaus.

NRS requires that each SIIS rate filing address the “provision for contingencies.”
The last SIIS rate filing thus projected a $31 million dollar addition to the
“provision for contingencies.” To the extent that a reduced premium base will
generally require a smaller dollar provision for contingencies,” there could be a
smaller amount left to accrue as a valid asset of the SIIS. Such accruals will
reduce the unfunded liabilities. In this context, any proposed addition to the
“provision for contingencies” must relate to SIIS operations and cannot be an
artificially high amount.

The most important consideration, in my opinion, is that the SIIS have adequate
rates in a the "3-Way" environment. This would mean that, at worst, the
unfunded liability will not increase due to the continuing insurance underwriting
operation.
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QUESTION: IS THERE A WAY TO CREATE A LINE ITEM TO PAY UNFUNDED
LIABILITY? (Question 8)

ANSWER: Currently, the rate law does not allow for a line item in the SIIS rate filings for
unfunded liability. However, it is within the legislative prerogative to create such
a line item for future SIIS and/or NCCI rate filings.

CBK/pd

cc: Alice A. Molasky, Commissioner
Claudia K. Cormier, Director
Douglas D. Dirks, Manager

Ron Swirczek, Administrator

hugheyt.n%6
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Appendix E
Suggested wording regarding administrative proposals

(Recommendation Nos. 3 through 10), provided by
Larry Zimmerman, President, CDS of Nevada.
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STATE OF NEVADA JOHN P. COMEAUX

Director

BRYAN A. NIX
Senior Appeals Officer

DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION
HEARINGS DIVISION

Appeals Officer
555 E. Washington Avenue
Suite 3300
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
(702) 486-2525 . Fax (702) 486-2555

April 23, 1996

Larry Zimmerman

CDS of Nevada

3700 Grant brive #cC
Reno, NV 89509

Re: NOTICE OF INJURY

Dear Larry:

NRS 616C.025 provides exceptions to the requirement that a claim be
reported within 7 days. Section 1 of this statute Provides that

"Except as otherwise provided in subsection 2, an employee or,
in the event of the death of the employee, his dependent, is
barred from recovering compensation pursuant to the provisions

a notice of injury pursuant to NRS 616C.015 or a claim for
compensation pursuant to NRS 616C.020."

The use of the word oI rather than and means that either the
notice pursuant to 616C.015 OR the claim pursuant to 616C.020 is
sufficient to satisfy this requirement. While I believe it was the
legislative intent to require both, the pPlain meaning of this
language does cause confusion.

Next the wording of subsection 1 of NRS 616C.020 requires an
injured employee to file a claim for compensation within 90 days
if:

"(a) The employee has sought medical treatment for an

injury...; or

(b) The employee was off work as a result of an injury..."

In cases where the employee neither sought treatment nor was
off work as a result, must that employee comply with this section?
While I believe it was the legislative intent to require the filing
of a claim within 90 days in all cases, the language of this
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section is confusing on its face. This section should be redrafted
to make the intent of this section clear.

As always I am available to discuss any issue concerning the
interpretation of these statutes. While I may disagree with how
these sections are occasionally interpreted, I have no independent
authority to direct appeals officers to interpret these according
to my view. The best approach is to draft these provisions in a
clear and simple manner capable of application in the event of
litigation. 1If I can assist you in this regard please do not
hesitate to contact me.

Ve Truly Yours,
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L.R. Zimmerman
cds of nevada

Certain laws in our state will have to be changed for insurers,
administrators, emplovers and medical providers to exchange data
electronically. Some suggestions are as follows. I have also
enclosed copies of NRs 616D.380 as NAC €16.5985 and NAC 616.562 for
discussion.

616A. NEW "EDI defined.
EDI means electronic data interchange.

616C.NEW
All forms, bills and reports required by this section and section
NRS617 may be transmitted by EDI. The division shall adcopt

regulaticns for the development and implementation of an EDI system
for the transmission of forms and reports required.
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L.R. Zimmerman
cds of nevada

TREATMENT AND RATING OF INJSURED EMPLOYEES

NRS 616C.130 Insurer’s payment to physician or chiropracter
attending iniured employee conditioned upon receipt of itemized
statement. [ and certificate.]

The insurer shall not authorize the payment of any money to a
physician or chiropractor for services rendered by him in attending
an injured employee until an itemized statement for the services
has been received by the insurer laccompanied by a certificate of
the physician or chiropractor stating that a duplicate of the
itemized statement has been mailed or perscnally delivered to the
employer of the injured employee].

{Added to NRS by 15957, 232; A 1981, 1167, 1471; 1985,
1543) -- (Substituted in revision for NRS 616.353)
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L.R. Zimmerman
cds of nevada

REPORTS OF INJURIES AND CLAIMS FCR COMPENSATION

NRS 616C.045 Duty of employer to complete and mail repoxrt of
injury or disease; form; contents; completion of report by employes
of system prohibited; excepticns; penalty.

1. Within 6 working days after the receipt of a ciaim for
compensation from a physician or chiropractor, an employer shall
complete and [maill semd to his insurer or third-party
administrator an employer’s report of industrial injury or
occupational disease.

2. The report must:

(a) Be on a form prescribed by the administrator;

{(b) Be signed by the employer or his designee;

(c) Contain specific answers to all questionms required by the
regulations of the administrator; and

(d) Be accompanied by a statement of the wages of the employee if
the claim for compensation received from the treating physician or
chiropractor indicates that the injured employee is expected to be
off work for 5 days or more.

(e) If the report is sent by EDI, the original report containing
the signature of the employer must be sent within 30 days.

3. An employee of the system shall not complete the report
required by subsection 1 or any other form relating to the accident
on behalf of the employer unless the employer:

(a) Is not in business;

(b) Has not been located by the system within 5 working days
after receipt cf a claim for compensaticn; or

(c) Refuses to complete the report.

4. The administrator shall impose an administrative fine of not
more than $1,000 on an employer for each viclation of this section.

(Added to NRS by 1993, 661; A 1995, 649)--(Substituted in
revision for NRS 616.5013)
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L.R. Zimmerman
cds of nevada

REPORTS OF INJURIES AND CLAIMS FOR COMPENSATION

NRS €16C.040 Duty of treating physician or chiropractor to
complete and [mail}] send claim for compensation; form; contents:
duty to maintain supply of forms; penalty.

1. A treating physician or chiropractor shall, within 2 working
days after he first treats an injured employee for a particular
injury, complete and [mail] send to the employer of the injured
employee and to the employer’s insurer, a claim for compensation.
If the employer is a self-insured employer, the treating physician
or chiropractor shall [mail] send the claim for compensation to the
employer’s third-party administrator. If the claim for compensation
is sent by EDI, the original claim for compensation form containing
the injured workers’ and pPhysician’s signatures must be sent by
mail within 30 days.

2. A claim for compensation required by subsection 1 must be on
a form prescribed by the administrator.

3. If a claim for compensation is accompanied by a certificate
of disability, the certificate must include a description of any
limitation or restrictions on the injured employee’s ability to
work. _

4. Each physician, chiropractor and medical facility that treats
injured employees, each insurer, third-party administrator and
employer, and the division shall maintain at their offices a
sufficient supply of the forms prescribed by the administrator for
filing a claim for compensation.

5. The administrator shall impose an administrative fine of not
more than $1,000 on a physician or chiropractor for each violation
of subsection 1.

q

(Added to NRS by 1993, 661; A 1995, 549)-- (Substituted in

revision for NRS 616.5012)
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FRAUDULENT PRACTICES
NRS 616D.380 * Invoices containing false information; signature
required; presumption.

1. Each invoice for payment for accident benefits provided to an
injured employee must:

{a) Contain a statement that all matters stated therein are true
and accurate; and

(b) Be signed by a natural person who is the provider of health
care or 1s authorized to act for the provider of health care.

2. A person who, by any act or omission, signs or submits, or
causes to be signed or submitted, the statement required by
subsection 1, knowing that the invoice contains information which
is false, in whole or in part, is guilty of a gross misdemeanor.

3. For the purposes of this section, a person who signs on
behalf of a provider of health care is presumed to have the
authorization of the provider of health care and to be acting at
his direction.

4. As used in this section, to "sign" means to affix a signature
directly or indirectly by means of handwriting, a typewriter, a
stamp, a computer impulse or other means.

(Added to NRS by 1993, 681)--(Substituted in revision for NRS
616.679)
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L.R. Zimmerman
cds of nevada

GENERAL PROVISIONS
NRS £163.018 Index of claims: Preparatiocn; use; fee. [Effsctive
until July i, 1999.7

1. The administrator shall establish a method of indexing claims
for compensation that will make information concerning the
claimants of cne insurer available to other insurers.

<. Every self-insured employer, association of self-insured
pubiic or private employers and the system shall .prcvide
information as required by the administratecr for establishing and
maintaining the index of claims.

3. If an employee files a claim for compensation with an
insurer, the insurer is entitled to receive from the administratcr
a list of the prior claims of the employee. If the insurer desires
Lo inspect the files of other insurers related to the pricr claims,
he must [obtain the written consent of the employeel] provide the
insurer with a copy of the claim for compensation.

4. Any information obtained from the index of claims must be
admitted into evidence in any hearing before an appeals cfficer, a
hearing officer cr the administrator.

5. The division may assess and collect a reasonable fee for its
services provided pursuant to this section. The fee must be payable
montily or at such other intervals as determined by the
administrator.

(Added to NRS by 1891, 352; A 1353, 702, 1858; 1995, t531,
539)-- (Substituted in revision for NRS 616.1925)

£16b.018
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L.R. Zimmerman
cds of newvada

REPCRTS Cr INJURIZS AND CLAIMS FOR CCMPENSATICN

NRS 616C.C20 Claim for compensation: Requirsments for iniured
employee, his dependent cor his representative to file claim; form.
1. EXcept as otherwise provided in subsec-ion 2, an injured

employes, or a person acting on his behalf, shall file a claim for
cmpensation with the [insurer within 90 days after an accident if:

(2) The employee has sought medical treatment for an injury
arising out of and in the course of his employment; or

(b) The employee was off work as a result of an injury arising
out of and in the course of his employment.] imitial treating
physician at time of first treatment. Treatment if needed, must be
sought within 90 days after the accident.

2. In the event of the death of the injured employes resulting
from the injury, a2 dependent cf the employee, or a person acting on
his behalf, shall file a claim for compensation with the insurer
within 1 year after the death of the injured employee.

3. The claim for compensation must ke filed on a form prescribed
by the administrator.

4. The form prescribed by the administrator shall include a
provision for a medical release section. The injured employee’s
signature on this form shall constitute his authorization for any
insurer, medical provider, employer or other agency to release to
each other any medical or other information acquired.

(Added to NRS by 1983, 661)--(Substituted in revision for NRS
61l6.501)
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cds of nevada

REPORTS OF INJURIES AND CLAIMS FOR COMPENSATION
NRS 616C.C25 Reccvery of compensaticn barred if notice cof injury
[or] and claim for compensation [is] are nct filed; exceptions.

1. Except as ctherwise provided in subsection 2, an emplovee or,
in the event of the death of the employee, his dependent, is karred
from recovering compensation pursuant to the provisions of chapters
616A to 616D, inclusive, of NRS i1f he fails to file z notice of
injury pursuant to NRS 616C.015 [or] and a claim for compensation
pursuant to NRS 616C.020.

2. An insurer may excuse the failure to file a notice of injury
or a claim for compensation pursuant to the provisions of this
section if:

(a) The injury to the employee or another cause beyond his
control prevented him from providing the nctice or claim;

(b) The failure was caused by the employee’s or dependent’s
mistake or ignorance of fact or of law;

(¢) The failurs was caused by the physical or mental inability of
the employee or the dependent; or

{(d) The failure was caused by fraud, misrepresentaticn or deceit.

(Added to NRS by 1993, 661)--(Substituted in revisicn for NRS
616.5011)

616C.025
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L.R. Zimmerman
cds of nevada

REFCRTS OF INJURIES AND CLAIMS FOR COMPENSATION

NRS 616C.065 Insurer to commence payment of claim or deny claim
within certain time after insurer notified of industrial accident;
notification cf claimant and administrator of denial 6f claim;
penalty for unreascnable delay or refusal to pay claim. [Effective
=July 1, 1999.1 7

1. Within 30 working days after the insurer has been notified of
an industrial accident and received a claim for compensation, every
insurer shall:

(a) Commence payment of a claim for compensation; or

(b) Deny the claim and notify the claimant and administrator that
the claim has been denied.Payments made by an insurer pursuant to
this section are not an admission of liability for the claim or any
portion c¢f the claim.

2. If an insurer unreasonably delays or refuses to pay the claim
within 30 working days after the insurer has been notified of an
industrial accident and received a claim for compensation, the
insurer shall pay upon order of the administrator an additional
amount egual to three times the amount specified in the order as
refused or unreascnably delayed. This payment is for the benefit of
the claimant and must be paid to him with the compensation assessed
pursuant to chapters €61l6A to 617, inclusive,
of NRS.

(Added to NRS by 19985, 2001, effective July 1, 1999)
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L.R. Zimmerman
cda of nevada

DETERMINATION AND PAYMENT OF BENEFITS

NRE 616C.235 Closure of claim by insurer: Notice required; right
Lo regquest resolution of dispute; effect of notice; service of
decision of hearing officer:; autcmatic closure of claims with
medical benefits of less than $500.

1. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 2:

(a) When the insurer determines that a2 claim should be closed
before all benefits to which the claimant may be entitled have been
paid, the insurer shall send a written notice of its intention to
close the claim to the claimant by first-class mail addressed to
the last known address of the claimant. The notice must include a
statement that if the claimant does not agree with the
determination, he has a right to request a resolution cf the
dispute pursuant to NRS 616C.305 and 616C.315 to 616C.385,
inclusive. A suitable form for reguesting a resolution of the
dispute must be enclosed with the notice. The closure of a claim is
not effective unless notice is given as required by this
subsection.

(b) If the insurer does not receive a request for the resolution
of the dispute, it may close the claim.

{c) Notwithstanding the provisions of NRS 233B.125, if a hearing
is conducted to resclve the dispute, the decision of the hearing
cfficer may be served by first-class mail.

2. If the medical benefits required to be paid for a claim are
less than $500, the claim closes automatically if the claimant does
not receive medical treatment for the injury for at least 6 months.
The claimant may not appeal the closing of such a claim. Six
months after the date of automatic closure the insurer may dispose
of the file of the claim.

(Added tc NRS by 1879, 707; A 1981, 1140, 24%2; 1589, 333; 1%91,
2421; 1983, 746)--(Substituted in revision for NRS 6€16.567)
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cds of nevada

CONTZSTED CLAIMS
NRS 615C.3%0 Reopening claim: Procedurs;
applicability.

limitaticons;

1. I an applicaticn to recpen a claim tc increase or rearrange
compensation is made in writing more than 1 year after the date on
which the claim was closed, the insurer shall reopen the claim if:

(a) A change of circumstances warrants an increase or
rearrangement of compensation during the life of the claimant;

() The primary cause of the change of circumstances is the
injury for which the claim was originally made; and

(c) The application is accompanied by the certificate of a
physician or a chiropractor showing a change of circumstances which
would warrant an increase or rearrangement of compensation.

2. Afrer a claim has been closed, the insurer, upon receiving an
aprlicaticn and for good cause shown, may authorize the reopening
of the claim for medical investigation only. A hearing officer or
appeals officer may not order a claim be reopened under medical
investigation. The application must be accompanied by a written
request for treatment from the physician or chiropractor treating
the claimant, certifying that the treatment is indicated by a
change in circumstances and is related Lo the industrial injury
sustained by the claimant.

3. If a claimant applies for a claim to be recpened pursuant to
subsection 1 or 2 and a final determination denying the recpening
is issued, the claimant shall not reapply to reopen the claim until
at least 1 year after the date on which the final determinacion is
issued.

4. Except as otherwise provided in subsection S, 1f an
application to rzopen a claim is made in writing within I year
after the date on which the claim was closed, the insurer shall
recpen the claim only if:

(a) The application is supported by medical evidence
demonstrating an cbjective change in the medical condition of the
claimant; and

to) There is clezr and convincing evidence that the primary cause
of the change of circumstances is the injury for which the clzim
was coriginally made.

S. An application to reopen a claim must be made in writing
within 1 year after the date on which the claim was closed if:

(a) The claimant was not cff work as a resulc of the injury; and

() The claimant did not receive benefivs for i permanent partial
disabilizy.
If an applicaticn to rsopen a claim to incvease or reaxranc
compensation is made pursuant te this subsection, the insurer shall
racren the claim if the reguirements se:t farch in caragrachs (a)
(2) and (c) of subsecticn I are mer.

2. II an emplovee’'s claim is racpened pursuant to this secticn,

M
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he i1s not entitled to vocational rehabilitation services or
benefits for a tempcrary total disakility if, before his claim was
recpened, he:

{a) Retired; or

(b) Otherwise voldnta*“y removea himself £rom the work force, for

easons unrelated to the injury for which the claim was originall
made .

7. Cne year after the date on which the claim was clesed, an
insurer may dispose of the file of a claim authorized to be
reopened pursuant to subsection 5, unless an application to recopen
the claim has been filed pursuant to that subsection.

8. An increase or rearrangement of compensation is not effective
before an application for reopening a claim is made unless good
cause is shown. The insurer shall, upon good cause shown, allow the
cost of emergency treatment the necessity for which has been
certified by a physician or a chiropractor.

9. A claim that avtomatically closes pursuant to subsection 2 of
NRS 616C.235 may not be recpened pursuant to this section.

10. The provisions of this section apply to any claim for which
an application to reopen the claim or to increase or rearrange
compensation i1s made pursuant to this section, regardless of the
date of the injury or accident to the claimant. If a claim is
recpened pursuant tc this section, the amount of any ccmpensation
or benefits provided must be determined in accordance with the
provisiocns cf NRS 616C.425.

[S56:168:1547; 1943 NCL Sec. 2680.56] + [57:168:1947; 1943 NCL
Sec. 2680.57]--(NRS A 1971, 770; 1981, 1198, 1831; 1583, 285, 1294;
1585, 1547; 1993, 741, 2441; 1995, 2132)--{Substitured in revision
for NRS €16.345)
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cds of nevada

COMPENSATION FOR INJURIES AND DEATH
Temporary Total Disabilits
NRS 616C.475 Amcunt and duratiocn of compensaticn; limita-icrs.

1. Except as otherwise provided in this secticn, NRS 616C.17%
and .616C.390, every emplovee in the employ cf an employer, within
the provisions of chapters §i6A :to 616D, incliusive, of NRS, whoc is
injured by accident arising out of and in the course cf employment,
or his dependents, is entitied to receive for the vericd of
temporary total disability, 66 2/3 percent of the average monthly
wage.

2. Except as otherwise provided in NRS €16B.18%, an injured
employee or his dependents are not entitled ro zccrue or ke pail
any benefits for a temporary total disability during the time the
injured employee is incarcerated. The in-ured employee or his
dependents are entitled to receive such penefits when the injured
employee is released from incarceraricn if he is certified as
temporarily totally disabled by a chysician or chircpractor.

3. If a claim for the period of temporary total disability is
allowed, the first payment pursuant to this section must be issued
by the insurer within 14 working days after recelipt of the initial
certification of disability and regularly thereafter.

4. Any increase in compensation and benefics effescred by the
amendment of subsection 1 is not retroactive.

5. Payments for a temporary total disability must csase wh

(2) A physician or chiropractor determines that the employe
physically capable of any gainful emplovment for which the employ
is suited, after giving consideration to the emplicyee’s educaticn
training and experience;

(b) The employer offsrs the employee light-duty employment or
employment that is modified according to the limitart:ons or
restrictions imposed by a physician or chiropractor pursuant to
supsection 7; or

(c) Except as otherwise provided in NRS 6153.185, the empioyee is
incarcerated.

5. Each insurer may, with each check -ha:z it
injured employee for a temporary tetal disabilisz
approved by the division for the in-ured emplcye
continued compensation for the tampcrary total

7. A certification of disakility issu=d by a
chircpractor must:

{(2) Include the pericd of disability and a descripticn of any
physical limitations or restricticns imgosed uporn the work of ths

employee;
{(b) Specify whether the limitacticns or rastricrions ars permanent
or temporary; and ‘

(c) Be signed by the treating phvsician or ChiYorracIor
authorized pursuant to NRS £143.513 or §£152.327

79



8. 1If certification of disability specifies that the physical
limitations cor restrictions are temporary, the employer of the
employee at the time of his accident is not required to comply with
NRS 616C.545 to 616C.5753, inclusive, and 616C.59%0 or the
regulations adopted by the division governing vocational
rehabilitation services if the employer offers the employee a
position that is substantially similar to the employee’s position
at the time of his injury in relation to the location of the
employment, the hours he is required to work and the salary he will
be paid. '

9. A certification of disability shall not be given for dates
which are prior tc the date of the physicians examination of the
injured employee.

[Part 595:168:1947; A 1549, 659; 1951, 485; 1953, 292; 195%,
901] -~ (NRS A 1957, 72; 1959, 201; 1963, 837; 1965, 226; 1966, 43;
1969, 472; 1871, 322; 1973, 531; 1975, 253; 1983, 1295; 1985, 1548;
1991, 2422; 1993, 747, 1870, 2442; 1995, 579, 2155) -- (Substituted
in revision for NRS 616.585)

616C.475
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cds of nevada

COMPENSATION FOR INJURIES AND DEATH
Permanent and Temporary Partial Disabilities
NRS 616C.4390 Permanent partial disability: Compensation.

1. Except as otherwise provided in NRS €16C.175, every employee,
in the employ of an employer within the provisions of chapters §i6a
to 616D, inclusive, of NRS, who is injured by an accident arising
out of and in the course of employment is entitled to receive the
compensation provided for permanent partial disability. As used in
this section, "disability" and "impairment of the whole man" are
equivalent terms.

2. Within 30 days after receiving from a physician or
chiropractor a report indicating that the injured employee may have
suffered a permanent disability and is stable and ratable, the
insurer shall schedule an appointment with a rating physician or
chiropractor to determine the extent of the employee’s disability.
The insurer shall select a physician or chiropractor from a group
of rating physicians and chiropractors designated by the
administrator, to determine the percentage of disability in
accordance with the American Medical Association’s Guides to the
Evaluation of Permanent Impairment as adopted and Supplemented by
the division pursuant to NRS 616C.110. Rating physicians and:
chiropractors must be selected in rotation from the list of
qualified physicians and chiropractors designated by the
administrator, according to their area of specialization and the
order in which their names appear on the list.

3. At the request of the insurer, the injured employee shall,
before an evaluation by a rating physician or chiropractor is
performed, notify the insurer of:

(a) Any previous evaluaticns performed tc determine the extent of
any of the employee’s disabilities; and

(b) Any previous injury, disease or condition sustained by the
employee which is relevant to the evaluation performed pursuant :to
this section.The notice must be on a form approved by the
administrator and provided to the injured employee by the insurer
at the time of the insurer's request.

4. Unless the regulations adopted pursuant to NRS 616C.110
previde otherwise, a rating evaluation must include an evaluation
of the loss of motion, sensation and strength of an injured
employee i1f the injury is of a type that might have caused such a
loss. No factors other than the degree of physical impairment of
the whole man may be considered in calculating the entitlement to
compensation for a permanent partial disability.

5. The rating physician or chiropractor shall provide the
insurer with his evaluation of the injured employee. After
receiving the evaluation, the insurer shall, wichin [14] 30 days,
provide the emplcyee with a copy of the evaluaticn and notify the
employee:
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(a) Of the compensation toc which he is entitled pursuant to this
section; or

(b) That he is not entitled to benefits for permanent partial
disability.

6. Each 1 percent of impairment of the whole man must be
compensated by a monthly payment:

(a) Of 0.5 percent of the claimant’s average monthly wage for
injuries sustained before July 1, 1981;

(b) Of 0.6 percent of the claimant’s average monthly wage for
injuries sustained on or after July 1, 1981, and before June 18,
18393; ancd

(¢) Of 0.54 percent of the claimant’s average monthly wage for
injuries sustained on or after June 18, 1993.

Compensation must commence on the date of the injury or the day
following the termination of temporary disability compensation, if
any, whichever is later, and must continue on a monthly basis for
5

years or until the claimant is 70 years of age, whichever is later.

7. Compensation benefits may be paid annually to claimants who
will be receiving less than $100 a month.

8. Where there is a previous disability, as the loss of one eye,
cne hand, cne foot, or any other previous permanent disability, the
percentage of disability for a subsegquent injury must be determined
by computing the percentage of the entire disability and deducting
therefrom the percentage of the previous disability as it existed
at the time of the subsequent injury.

2. The division may adopt schedules for rating permanent
disabilities resulting from injuries sustained before July 1, 1973,
and reasonable regulations to carry out the provisions of this
section.

10. The increase in compensaticn and benefits effected by the
amendment of this sectiocn is not retroactive for accidents which
occurred before July 1, 1973.

11. This section does not entitle any person to double payments
for the death of an employee and a continuation of payments for a
permanent partial disability, or to a greater sum in the aggregate
than if the injury had been fatal.

[63:168:1947; A 1949, 659; 1953, 292]--(NRS A 1959, 204; 19¢6,
46; 1967, 691; 1969, 475; 1971, 326; 1973, 531; 1975, 605; 1977,
1006; 1975, 1057; 1981, 1170, 14953, 1653; 1983, 428, 1295; 1985,
308, 374; 1987, 78; 1991, 493, 2423, 2424; 1993, 748, 1871; 1995,
379, 2156)--(Substituted in revision for NRS 616.605)

£16C.4530
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cds of nevada

Modify NRS 612.265 as follows.

Delete [Effective until July 1, 19589] and [Effective July 1, 199§]

Modify subsection 9 to read as follows..

division regarding persons claiming benefitg pursuant to chapter
612 of NRS for the same period. The informaticn submitted by the
[manager] insurer must be in a form determined by the administrator
and must contain the social Security number of each such person.
Upon receipt of such a request, the administrator shall make such
a comparison and provide to the [manager] insurer a list
containing the name, address and social Security number of each
person who appears, from the information submitted, to be

the actual costs of any related administrative expenses The
[manager] insurer shall use the information obtained pursuant to
this subsection only to further a current investigation. The

purpose.

612.265
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Appendix F

Slide presentation entitled “PPD Benefit Structures and Delivery
Systems: Lessons from WCRI Research,” by Dr. Richard Victor,
Executive Director, Workers Compensation Research Institute,
Cambridge, Massachusetts.
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B Disability Evaluation is Often Adversarial
But Not Necessarily

B Use of AMA Guides Intends to Reduce

Adversariness, But Not Necessarily

M System Design Can Improve Outcomes,
But Not Guides Alone

M Return to Work is the Key to Success

B Benchmarking the Nevada Fee Schedule
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Disability Evaluation
4 Often Adversarial

G / % R R R A Rl 7 R

B Disputes Can be Prevented

Percent of PPD Claims
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Voluntary Payment of
| PPD Possmle

System Features Shape Outcomes

Percent of Claims
90
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No Attorney Voluntary Payment
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M Rules Generate Predictable Payments

M Practices Encourage Non-Partisan Experts

" M Agency Fosters Early Payment

B Agency Helps Parties Navigate the System

B Adjudication Process Deters Litigation
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B Key System Features
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Wlsconsm

B Treating MD Ratings

B Minimum PPD Ratings

M "Final Offer" Adjudication

B Active Administrative Oversight

B Workers Kept Informed
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il Key SystemFeatures I

B Initial Evaluations by Treating Physicians
B State-Employed Evaluators

B Objective PPD Guidelines

B Benefits Often Paid Early

B Litigation Moderate
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B Design Must be Appropriate to Setting
B Features Must Work Together
B Active Oversight Essential
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California Has Made Changes to
Reduce Adversarmess
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Non-Partisan Experts

-

Treating MDs, QMEs, IMEs, Med-legal Fees

Requiring Early Payment

80% of PPD

Information Provision

Benefit Notice Letters

Adjudicator Behavior

"Baseball Arbitration," but not well-used

Predictable Payments

-----
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Some Success Evident:
"Duelmg Docs" Declmed

Percent of PPD with "Dueling Docs"
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Percent Disability
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Important Issues Remaln

B Providing Clarity in PPD Owed
Clear Impairment Guidelines

B Training Treating Physicians

B Making "Baseball Arbitration" Happen

B Providing Needed Information in
Most Useful Form
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Are AMA-Guides
Ratings Consistent?

B Somewhat

B Examples: Range of Motion

- Laboratory Studies
- Maryland and Oregon
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about Rotation
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Lumbar Impairment
| Increases with Age

Asymptomatlc Volunteers

Percent of Impairment
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Age (Years)
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| Maryland: Impact of AMA Guides

M All Evaluators Use Same Rules
B Evaluation Still Adversarial
' Maryland Still Litigious
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Adversarial Eval
Still Common

Percent of Claims
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PPD Evaluations:
Benchmarked on Oregon

B
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70

60
50
40
30
20
10

0

Treating Only Dueling Docs
Old Maryland AMA Maryland

i Oregon

A R e

.



90l

M Subjective Add-Ons

M Non-Partisan Evaluations Not Encouraged
B Adjudicators Still Split the Difference
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Attorney Involvement
Still Hig
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Percent of Claims
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B Guides Must be Clear
M But Uncertainty Will Remain
Bl Guides Alone Do Not Work

B Adjudication Process Critical

M Adequacy and Equity Not Assured
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Factors Shapmg Return to Work -

B Economic Incentives

- Benefit Levels
- Reemployment Wage Levels

Il Return to Preinjury Employer

B Worker Attributes Reflected in
Unstable Employment History

M Return to Work in 6 Months
Or Less is Important
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R Nevada Medicare Fee Schedule
1 1th nghest of 39 States

Percent of Median State
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j Premium Over Medicare

Percent over Medicare Fees
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Fee Schedule Pays
7% Over Medlcare

Percent of Median State
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Appendix G

Slide presentation entitled “Permanent Partial Disability Survey,”
dated September 12, 1996, by Division of Industrial Relations,
Department of Business and Industry, and Research Division,
Legislative Counsel Bureau.
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Propared by:

Dlvislon of Industrial Relations,
Depariment of Business and Industry and
Research Divislon,

Legislative Counsal Bureau

September 12, 1998

v

Essential Task of Workers'
Compensation Programs

An essential task of a workers'
compensation program is to pay
appropriate benefits to employees
who have been injured while in the
course and scope of employment.

Permanent Partial Disability
Defined

Workers' compensation programs pay injured
employees for permanent physical impairment or
loss of physical functioning that results from an
injury incurred in the course and scope of
employment or that results from an occupational
disease. This compensation is called a
permanent partial disability (PPD) award.

Page 1-4

v
Permanent Partial Disability

In Nevada, a permanent partial disability benefit
is awarded to an injured employee who:

1. Sustains a work-related injury or disease
and

2. As aresult of that injury or disease incurs a
permanent physical impairment.

NRS 616C.490.
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v

Economic Impairment Theorles

Reason for compensating for injury:
1. Actual wage loss; or

2. Loss of earning capacity.

v

Economic Impairment Theories

Actual Wage Loss--Under this method of
compensation, a comparison of actual
postinjury and preinjury wages would be made.
A payment would then be made to the
employee for the appropriate period of time
during which actual earnings were either zero
or less than preinjury earnings.

v

Actual Wage Loss Cansequence
of a Permanent Impairment

1 2

¢ ;

[1}]

g

=
3 4

Injury RTW  Time

Occurs

Page 5-8

Economic Impairment Theories

Loss of Earning Capacity--This theory holds
that an injured employee should be ‘
compensated for the loss of earning capacity
that stems from a work-related physical
impairment,
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v

Earning Capacity Consequence
of a Permanent Impairment

3. 4
Injury RTW Time
Occurs

Summary
Economic
Impalrment
[
.
Actual Wage Loss of Earning
Loss Capaclty

|

Expressed as a parcentage off | Expressed as a percentage of the

the difference batween difference between post-injury
postnjury earnings and eamings and polential earings
actual pre-injury earnings, had no injury occurred,

v

Physical impairment Theories

Under a physicat impairment theory, an
injured employee is compensated for a
physical impairment regardiess of the effect
of the impairment on current wages or future
earning capacity.

v

Physical Impairment Theories

Basis of determining amount of
compensation:

1. Scheduled injury;
2. Nonschedufed injury; or

3. Combination.

Page 9-12
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v

Physical Impairment

Scheduled Injuries--A specific dollar amount

or number of weeks of benefit payments for an
accident or disease causing a permanent loss

or a permanent loss of use of a specified body
part.

v

Physical Impairment

of total disability.

Nonscheduled Injuries--Physical impairments
or functional limitations that are consequences of
work-related injuries are rated as a percentage

v

Physical Impairment

Combination--Some jurisdictions provide for
compensation of certain injuries using a
scheduls. Other injuries are compensated on
the basis of a formula.

Page 13-16

v

Summary

Physical
Impairment

]

Fixed Dollar Amount
Number of Weeks
Degrees of Impaiment
And g0 an,

Scheduled Nonscheduled
Injurles Injurles
—Expressed interma of: Medical Impairment Rating

(% of whole person)

AMA Guides

State-specific regulations and manuals

And so on,
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v

/

A\

Summary
PPD Awards
Economic Physlcal
Impalrment Impalrment

/

N

Aciual
Wage Loss

Loss of
Earning

Scheduled
tnjuries

Capacity

Nonscheduled
Injuries

Comblinallon of Methods

v

Measuring Physical Impairment in
Nevada: An Historical Perspective

1913 actual wage loss provision:

For partial disability, one-half the difference
between the wages earned before the injury
and wages which injured is able to earn
thereafter, but not more than $40 a month for
a period not to exceed sixty months.

v

L

1913 pﬁysical impairment
provision

Specific payments of injuries as per the following
schedule, subject to a maximum of $60 and a
minimum of $20 per month:

Loss of thumb--50% of average monthly wage

during 15 months;

Loss of a first (index) finger--50% of average
monthly wage during 9 months;
Loss of a second finger--50% of average
monthly wage during 7 months;
And so on,

v

1915 actual wage loss provision

For temporary partial disability, one-half the
difference between the wages earned before
the injury and wages which injured is able to
earn thereafter, but not more than $40 a
month for a period not to exceed sixty
months.

Page 17-20
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v

1916 nonscheduled injury provision

In all cases of permanent partial disability,
not otherwise specified in the foregoing
schedule, the disability shall be determined
according to the percentage thereof, taking
into account, among other things, any
previous disability, the occupation of the
injured employee, the nature of the physical
injury or disfigurement, and the age of the
employee at the time of the injury;

v

1915 nonscheduled injury provision

and the compensation paid therefor shall be
the percentage of the disability caused by the
injury times fifty percent of the average
monthly wage (but not more than fifty doflars
a month) for not exceeding 100 months
during the life of the injured employee.

1917 clarification for nonscheduled
injuries

In alt cases of permanent partial disability, not
otherwise specified in the foregoing schedule,
the percentage of disability to the total disability
shall be determined. For the purpose of
computing compensation for a disability that is
partial in character but permanent in quality,
the sum of sixty dollars per month for a period
of one hundred months shall represent a one
hundred percent disability.

v

Measuring Physical Impairment in
Nevada: An Historical Perspective

Between 1919 and 1971, only relatively minor
changes to the PPD statutes were enacted by
the Legislature.

Page 21-24
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v

Measuring Physical Impairment in
Nevada: An Historical Perspective

In 1973, the Legislature repealed the statutory
schedule of benefits and adopted a new
method of determining compensation for a
PPD that involved an impairment determination
made by a physician designated by the
Commission in accordance with the current
edition of the AMA Guides.

v

Measuring Physical Impairment in
Nevada: An Historical Perspective

In 1981, the Legislature changed from 0.5% to
0.6% the factor used to calculate the amount of
a PPD award.

In 1983, the Legislature enacted a schedule
that gradually increased from 65 to 70 the age
at which a PPD award ceases.

v.
Measuring Physical Impairment in
Nevada: An Historical Perspective

In 1993, the Legislature changed the factor
used to calculate the amount of a PPD award
for injuries sustained on or after June 18, 1993,
from 0.6% to 0.54%.

Page 25-28

A 4
Research Methodology

1. ldentify major research topics;

2. Draft written survey instrument (Appendix 1);

3. Distribute written survey instrument to all states;

4, Te!dephone follow-up for clarification of responses;
an

5. Compile comparative results and report to
Committee.
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v

Survey Response

Thirty-eight (38) states responded to the 50-state
survey. The response rate was 76 percent.

These responses include the foliowing western
states:

Arizona California Colorado
Idaho Montana New Mexico
Oregon Utah Washington
Wyoming

\ 4
PPD Survey Topics

Four major topics were addressed in the survey:

1. Methodology and theorles used to determine
PPD benefits.

2. Methods of payment of PPD awards.
3. Extent of litigation reiating 1o the determination
and/for payment of PPD awards.,

4. Six examples of workers with injurles:
Speclfic PPD awards.

v

PPD Survey Topics

Other topics addressed by the survey for
DIR and LCB informational purposes were:

1. Methods available to employers for
providing workers' compensation
insurance; and

2. Copies of statutes, regulations,
organizational charts, bill summaries,
and so on.

Page 29-32

Survey Findings
1. Methodology and theories

Physical v Scheduled Injuries Only
Impairment — v Combination of Scheduled
Methods and Nonscheduled Injuries

v Medical Impairment Rating

Economic v Loss of Earning Capacity
Impairment — + Actual Wage Loss
Methods v Other
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v

Survey Findings
1. Methodology and theories

Legend
gt onty

I Combination
[T MeResponse

\4

Survey Findings

Examples of Elements Considered by Other
States When Calculating a PPD Award

Age, Wage, Date of Injury, Job Description,
Education, Number of Dependents, Medical
Impairment (objective factors), Marital Status,
Employment History, Work Restrictions Upon
Release o Retum to Work, Pain Leve! (subjective
factors), Compensability of the Injury, Labor
Market, and Full Time vs. Part Time Employment
at Time of Injury.

Survey Findings

Elements Considered by Nevada When
Calculating a PPD Award

Age, Wage, and Medical Impairment.

v

Survey Findings
2. Methods of payment

Instaliments--Weekly, Biweekly, Monthly,
Bimonthly, Quarterly, Annually

Lump Sums--Under certain conditions

Annuities--Under certain conditions

Page 33-36
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Survey Findings

3. Extent of litigation
State of Washington findings:

+ "..closure of indemnity claims (especially those
involving a disputed degree of permanent partial
disability) continues to be a major problem..."

There do not appear to be any available
formulas or statistical techniques for measuring
litigiousness. According to the WCRI, this is
due to a lack of adequate data.

v
Survey Findings

State of Washington findings (cont.):

s A general conclusion of the Washington analysis
is that "attending physician impairment ratings are
an essential factor in obtaining non-adversarial
initial ratings, and ultimately contribute
significantly to reducing disputes and litigation."

Reforms that work in one state to reduce litigation
may not work in another state, Also, some
reforms may be more effective if they are part of a
package of related reforms.

v

Survey Findings

4. Six examples of workers with injuries

INJURIES
Minor Modezate Major
Cenvlcal Righl Rolalor |Lumbar
Slrain/Sprain.- | Cuff Tear.- Fuslon/Discaclomy.-
2% Whole 10% Whole 20% Whole Parson
Pearson Persoh Impaliment
Impalrment Impalrment
WORKERS
orke

$1200 per month

Dishwasher/Bushoy Example 1 Example 2 Example 3

Worker B

$3000 par monih

Office Manager Example 4 Example § Example 6

Page 37-40

This chwrl depkts valuma rsporiad by tespondents and s1e unsudted. Due tothe
numbes and vasety of slements uted 1o calcutete PPD swards In aach ttale, IR
. <autions that generakrations tannol be mede fom indvidusl cherts,

Examplé 1--Low wage employee,
minor injury--no wage loss upon
return to work

WESTERN STATES
42,500
Nevada Award = § 2,123
$2,000 Latgest Award = § 2,283
$1,500 Median Award = $ 1,248
$1,000

$500

No award given.
$0

D NY co NM MT ur OR  AZ cA WA WY
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This chwt deplcts vahoes 1aported by mipondants snd are unsudted. Dus o the
number snd variety of shiments ul?dlo Coikutute PPD awwds In asch siste, DIR
tauticas thel génarsllzaions cannot ba made kom Indvidu charts,

Example 2--Low wage employee,
moderate injury--no wage loss
upon return to work

This chael depicts valooy od by re candeis unpdted. Dyebothe
numbet and veriely dmhw utzum PED wwards in aach stats, DIR
cairbons il Oin o altrtons cannat be mede Fom indvidual charte.

Example 3--Low wage employee,
major injury--no wage loss upon
return to work

WESTERN STATES
$00,000
Havada Award = § 20,928
$50,000 Lergest Award = § 56,785
$45,000
$30.000
Median = § 19,44t
| $20.000
$10.000
No award
e,
T L
CA WA D N 0 N OR M UT Az wy

WESTERNSTATES
$14,000
Nevada Award = § 10,473
$12,000 Largest Award = § 13,840
$10,000
$8,000 Medlan Award = § 8,805
$4.000
34,000
$2,000
$0
OR WA D N N CA M U CO AZ WY
bl ¢hoet du) e o d died. Dustalhe
v A A
saqtions thet gensrskzations eannct ba mads fom indvidsad therty.

Example 4--Higher wage employee,
minor injury--no wage loss upon
return to work

WESTERN STATES

$6,000

Nevada Award = § 8,313
Largasi Award = $ 5,313

$5.000
$4.000
$3.000

12000 Median Award = § 1,330

#H.000

No ewerd glwan,
W oo L] 0 ur MT ol AZ CA WA WY

Page 41-44

This thart deplcts vales reported by raspondedia and aes Lnaudted. Dus tothe
v numbes and variely of slemdnts uredto ceiculals PPD awwds n sach stale, DR

<aubont thal Qe sllzaions canndd be made fom bhdukusd chary,

Example 5--Higher wage employee,
moderate injury--no wage loss
upon return to work

WESTERN STATES
430,000
Nevada Award = § 28,158

260 Largest Award = § 28,258
$20,000
18,000
$10,000 Median Award = § 8,850
$5,000 Ho award

$0
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This chart depicts vele b teported by denis andare d. Durato the
Purchad wid veriely of shimicts used 1o ¢ sicidete PPD awards In each date, DIR

oty
coutiont thil gen WekzaBons cerncl be made fomhchddual charts,

Example 6--Higher wage employee,
major injury--no wage loss upon
return to work

WESTERNSTATES

$40,000

Nevada Award = § 82,214
Largest Award = § 52,214

$50,000
$40.000

$30,000 Medlan = § 22,823

$20,000

$10,000 No award

given,
RV €O CA WA NM D UT MT OR Al Wy

30

v Ths chort deghets vuloe resordod by rowponderts snd Brs unsudted, Dus bo the

Aumbet nd varety of elements ured to ciculite PPD awaeds b esch slate, DIR
eoution thel gen s alkestions eanact be made fom indvidust charts.

Summary--no wage loss upon
return to work

ALL RESPONDENTS - COMPARATIVE AWARD
LEVELS FOR6 EXAMPLES

450,000
00000 [— g LARGEST AWARD
370,000 | AVARD
60,000 | wAVERAGEAVRRD
se000 | DHERNARARD
40,000
30,000
120,000
$10.000 |

%

DAMILE!  BAMMLEZ DAMIEY DAWAEd  DAMAES  DAWLES

This chaet depicts valuas rep "y AP wnd e Cusiothe
numbee and variety of slements vted to ealiudets PPD awirds b sach state, DIR
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Wage Loss

For the purposes of this study, the term
"wage loss" refers to a situation in which an
injured employee returns to the work force at
a wage lower than that which he earned at
the time of injury. "No wage loss" refers to a
situation in which an injured employee
returns to the work force at a wage equal to
or higher than that which he earned at the
time of the injury.
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Example 2--Low wage worker,
moderate injury--wage loss upon
return to work vs. no wage loss
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Example 3--Low wage worker, major
injury--wage loss upon return to work
vs. ho wage loss
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Example 5--Higher wage worker,
moderate injury--wage loss upon
return to work vs. no wage loss
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E;ample 6--Higher wage worker,
major injury--wage loss upon return
to work vs. no wage loss
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Summary (Wage Loss)
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Concluding Remarks

* The scope of this study was limited to comparing PPD
awards paid in Nevada to those in other states for
specific workers with specific Injurles. 1t was not
designed to be an analysis of all components and types
of permanent partial disabllity benefits In Nevada and
other states. It was not designed to compare other
compensation benefits which could impact PPD such as
temporary total disabliity, vocationat rehabilitation,
reopening, or medical benefits. What the study does
depict is a limited view of PPD awards of a limited
number of examples;

Concluding Remarks

« The data received from the responding states was not
audited to determine if the calculations were made in
accordance with each state's laws and regulations; and

* Even though we categorized states by type of PPD
system, each state Is unique. Comparisons can be
misleading and should be viewed with caution as all
relevant factors regarding PPD must be taken into
conslideration.
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Appendix H
Slide presentation entitled “Experience Rating Presentation,”

dated December 19, 1995, by Vance A. Hughey, Senior Research Analyst,
Research Division, Legislative Counsel Bureau
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Experience Rating

Workers' compensation experlence rating is designed to provide a
mechanism to charge higher than avera&a premlums te pollcyholders

with higher than average losses and to

arge lower than average

premiums to policyholders with lower than average losses.

Example A:

Pollcyholder A has average
exparience and an experlence
modificatlon factor of 1.00. if the
mantsal premium rate for this
polleyholder was $5.00 per $100
of payroll, this policyholder would
gay 03 standard premlum rate of
5.00.

Example 8:

Policyholder B has better than
average experlence and an
axperlence medificatlon factor of
0.80. It the manual premium rate
for this employer was $5.00 per
$100 of payroll, this employer
would pay a standard premium
rate of $4.00.

v

Primary Goals of Experience
Rating

» Predictive Accuracy--To the extent that the experience modification
factor helps predict future loss e:rallenoe of a policyholder, it allows
the premium to be tailored more closely te each poficyholder's own
loss polential. This Is the equlty contributlon of experlence rating.

» Safety Incentiva.-By charging a policyholder for Incurred costs of
accldents that accur, a financial Incentive for safety is added to olher
incentives that may exist.

v
Credibility

Conceptually, If past experience was a perfect Indicator of
future experience, the experience modification factor could
be derived by dividing actual losses by expected losses,
Because past experience Is not a perfect indicator of future
experience, a credibllity factor is used In the experience
rating formula. This factor represents an estimate of the
predictive power of the policyholder's past loss experience.

Page 1-4
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Credibility

The statistical "law of large numbers” suggests that a larger data base
generally has better predictive power than a smaller data base,

Consequantly, the credibliily assigned to a policyholders experlence Is
a function of the slze of the policyholder (In terms of expacted losses):

» The targer a policyhoider Is, the more welght will be given to its own
experlence, other things being equal. This allows for deeper
discounts from the manual premium rate through lower experience
modification factors, or higher slandard premiums through higher
experlence modificatlon factors for larger policyholders.

» The smaller a policyholder Is, the more reliance is placed on the
manual premium rate, other things being equal.

v

Experience Rating Formula
(Nevada Administrative Code 616.298)

E-Mod = (fA/E]x C) +(1-C)

where;

A=Actual Losses
E=Expacted Losses
C=Credibility

v

Credibility Formulas

Previous Credibillty Formula (NAC 616.298)
C =E/(1.1E + 40,000)

where;
E = Expected Losses

New Credibility Formula (SIIS Regulation 95-5)

C =E/(E +100,000)

where:
E = Expecled Losses

v
Effect of New Credibility Formula

Some policyholders have observed that If a policyholder's
1996 experlence modification factor would have been less
than one under the previous formula, it will go up under the
new formula.

Likewise, If a policyholder's 1996 experience medification
factor would have been greater than one under the previous
formula, It will go down under the new formula.

This relationship has been observed for any policyholder
with expected losses under $600,000, At expected loss
levels higher than $600,000, the effect Is reversed.

Page 5-8
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v
Effect of New Credibility Formula

Example A:

Company A has no actual losses and $10,000 of expected losses. Under
the previous formula, Company A would expect to receive an experlence

meodification factor of 0.80. Under the new formula, Company A recelves
an experlence modiflcation factor of 0.91.

Example B:

Company B has $20,000 of aclual

losses and $10,000 of expacted Previous New
losses. Under the previous formula, Formula| Formula

Company B would expect to recelve alyCompany A 0.80 0.91
expetiance modlfication factor of 1,20,

Under the new formula, Company B [Company B 1.20 1.08
recelves an experience modification

factor of 1.08,

v

Comparison Under Previous and
New Experience Modification
Formulas
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BDR 53--952

BDR 53-953

BDR 53-954

BDR 53-955

BDR 53--956

BDR S--957

Appendix 1

Suggested Legislation

Revises provisions governing administration of

wOrkers’ COmpensation. . ... .................

Revises provisions governing benefits for workers’

COMPENSAtON. . . ... v vt ie it ceeneneennnn,

Provides workers’ compensation coverage for
teachers and pupils participating in the program
to provide pupils with the skills to make transition

fromschooltowork. .............0.0.........

Revises requirements for imposition of solvency

surcharge. . ... ... ... ... ..

Transfers all authority to regulate workers’
compensation to the Commissioner of Insurance and

the Administrator of Department of Industrial Relations .

Requires the Legislative Committee on Workers’
Compensation to commission an independent study of

awards for permanent partial disabilities. ..........
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SUMMAR Y—Makes various changes to provisions governing administration and payment
of berefits for industrial insurance. (BDR 53-952)

FISCAL NOTE: Effect on Local Government: No.
%ctonﬂzeSmeoronIndnsu:ialInsmance:No.

ANACrrelaﬁngmindmthIhsmance;pmvidingformeelecmnicuanmﬁssionof

documemsremdtoc]aims;c}aﬂﬁringthemhoﬁtyofinmstopmchase

pmhibiﬁnganhﬁmedanployeeﬁomremveﬁngbeneﬁtsforanindustﬁalhjmy
orogcupaﬁonaldisasemlsshereceivsmediwlumemfortheinjmym
disase;mﬁshgtheﬂainhgmqﬁrememsforhmﬁngandappdsoﬁcers;and
providing other matters properly relating thereto.

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEVADA, REPRESENTED IN
SENATE AND ASSEMBLY, DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. NRS 612265 is hereby amended 10 read as follows:
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612265 1. Except as otherwise provided in this section, information obtained from

anyemployh:gmitorpemonpmsmmmﬂ:eadmhﬁsuaﬁonofﬁﬁschapterandany

ofﬁ:edivision,mdaeextmnweswryforthcproperermofhisciaimhmy
proeeeding.ptmnmmﬂﬁschapter.Aclaimmaranemployhgmﬁismtenﬁﬂedm
infonnaﬁonﬁ'omtherwordsofthedivisionforanyo&erpmpose.

3. Snbjectmsuchrsujcﬁonsastheadmhﬁmmaybyreguhﬁonprescﬁbe,ﬂm
information obtained by the division may be made available to:

gg)Anyaggzcyofthismmyotherstateoranyﬁdemlagencychagedwiﬂlﬂm
admhﬁsuaﬁmorenfomemqnofmmemploymentcompensaﬁonlzw,pubﬁcassistame
hw,woﬂ:man’swmpensﬁmorhborlaw,orﬁlem&asymofpnbﬁc
employment offices;

) Anystateorlomlagemyfortheenforcemmofchﬂdsuppon;

©) IheMenanevenueServiceoftheDepamnmoftthrmsmy;

(d) The department of taxation; and

(e)l'hestateconracmrs’boardinthepedomanceofitsdmiesmenfomethe

provisions of chapter 624 of NRS.
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Information obtained in connection with the administration of the employment service may
bemadeavaihblempersommagenciwforpmpos&sappmpﬁatewtheoperaﬁonofa
public empioyment service or a public assistance program.

4. Upon written request made by a public officer of a local government, the
Mmﬁﬁmshaﬂfmﬁshﬁommemordsofmediﬁsionmeme,addr&ssmdplmeof
employmmtofanypersonﬁmdhtherecordsofenq:loymentofthedivisionThereqm
must set forth the social security mumber of the person about whom the request is made and
mnminasmtemmsimdbypmperanﬂmﬁtyofthelodgovemmcmwﬁfyingﬂmthe
reémismadetoauowthepmperamhorhytoenfomealawtomcoveradebtor
obﬁgaﬁmowedmthclomlgovemmmThEinfonnaﬁonobtainedbythelod
gwemmemisconﬁdenﬁalmdmynotbeusedmdisdosedformypmposeothenhanthe
ml}pcﬁonofa@ebtmobﬁgaﬁmowedmthatlodgovemmm&eadminimammy
charge a reasonable fee for the cost of providing the requested information.

5. The administrator may publish or otherwise provide information on the names of
emplom&ekﬁdrm,ﬁeﬁ@mchsofbmh&mhdns&y,mdﬁeappmﬁmﬂe
number of employees employed by each such employer, if the information released will
assistmemployedpmmmobminemplomewiﬂbegmmﬂyusefulindevclopﬁ:g
and diversifying the economic interests of this state. Upon request by a state agency which
is able to demonstrate that its intended use of the information will benefit the residents of

thissme,meadminisumamay,maddiﬁonwthehfomaﬁonﬁmdmﬂﬁsmbsecﬁon,
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disclose the mumber of empioyees employed by each employer and the total wages paid by
mhemployer.lheadmﬁﬁsuatormayclmgeafeewwvertheacMWslsofany
admhisuaﬁvea:pmsmmhﬁngmmedisdosmeofthisinfomaﬁmmamagmcy.lhe
admﬁﬁsuaormayreqzﬁremeMeagmcytooaﬁfymwrhingﬂmtheagemywmhkeaﬂ
acﬁomnmwymmaiminthewnﬁdenﬁaﬁtyofﬂminfomaﬁonandpwvunﬂs
unauthorized disclosure,

6. Uponreqzmttherefortheadminisma:orshaufnnﬁshmmyagmyofﬁeUnimd
Smmedwithﬂxeadnﬁnisuaﬁmofpubﬁcwoﬂsmasistmcethmughpubﬁc
employmen, and may fanish 1o any sate agency simlary charged, the name, addres,
mdimryoecupaﬁonL]andemploymemstamsomecipiemOfbeneﬁxsandthe
recipiem’sﬁghtstofmﬂ:erbeneﬁtspmmtoﬂﬁscbapter.

7 Toﬁr&gracmemaﬁminalhv&sﬁgaﬁon,ﬂlechiefexecuﬁveofﬁwofanylaw
mfomementagmcyofthissmtemaymbmhawﬁuenreqmmﬁzeadmhﬁmrﬁmhe
fMSh,ﬁomthemmrdsofﬂlediﬁﬁon,themme,addrasmdphceofemploymemofmy
pmonﬁﬂedinﬁerecmdsofmloym@ofﬁwdivisimﬁeregn&ﬂmustsetfm&the
socialsemﬁtymmberofﬁzepersonabomwhomﬂlereqmismadeandcomaina
smememﬁgnedbymecMefex&uﬁveoﬁiwrmthamereqmismademﬁwﬂzﬁ
acﬂnﬁnalinvesﬁgaﬁmamenﬂybehgwndzﬂedbytheagmcy.lfpmrweiptofmcha
mmeadmhismmuﬁmﬁshthemfmaﬁmreqmmﬁemaychmgeafeem
covertheactualoostsofanyrelatedadminisﬂaﬁveexpénses.
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8. In addition to the provisions of subsection 5, the administrator shall provide Hsts
containing the names and addresses of employers, the number of employees employed by
mhemployerandthemmlwagespaidbymhemployertoﬂmdeparmentofw:aﬁon,
uponrequsgfmusehveﬁfyingrenmsforﬂxebminasmﬂeadmﬁﬁMrmay
chatgeafe:moovenheacmalcostsofanyrelatedadminisnaﬁvemcpm

9. Hhemmgerofﬂxesmeindlmuialinsumcesystem]&dzmershaﬂsnbmﬁw
theadmhis&atoraﬁstwnﬁnhgthenameofmchpmnwhomeeivedbmeﬁsm
tochaptcrs616At0616D,inciusive,or617ofNRSduringﬂ1eprecedingmonthand
mmme]theammmmmpme&ehfomzﬁmwpmﬁdedwhhﬂwmdsof
thediﬁsimregmdingpemomclaimingbeneﬁ&pmsmmchapterﬂzofNRSforthe
same period. The information submitted by [the manager] an insurer must be'in a form
determined by. the administrator and must contain the social security number of each such
personUpmrweiptofsuchamqmﬂmadminisnatorsbaﬂmakesmhammpmiwnmd
providemﬂ:e[mamgﬂ]bma'aﬁstwnminingthenme,addressandsoda!my
nmberofwchpasonwhoappmﬁomthehfomaﬁmmhnmeimbesimnlmeomly
claimingbmeﬁsmderchapwrGIZOfNRSmdmderchapmﬂ&mGIGD,inchsive,
or 617 of NRS. Upon receipt of a request therefor, the administrator shall provide to the
insurer a copy of the form used by any person whose name appears on the list to claim
benefits under chapter 612 of NRS. The administrator shall charge a fee to cover the actual

costs of amy related administrative expenses. The [manager] insurer shall use the
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mfomaﬁmobmhedpmsnmmmismwcﬁmMymfm&eracminvsﬁgaﬁmﬂe
[manageﬂinswershannmdisclosethehfomaﬁonfmanyotherpmposadsmedmm
subsection, “insurer” has the meaning ascribed 10 it in NRS 6164.270.

10. TheachninisuatormayrequsttheComp&oneroftthmencyofﬂzeUnited
Smtesmqmeaneminaﬁonofmeoonecmessofanyremmmreponofanynaﬁmal
bmldngasociaﬁonrenduedpmsuammﬂaepmvisionsofﬁﬁschéptet,mdmayh
comecﬁonwi&lthereqmtansnitanysmhreponmrenmmﬂ:eCompuoﬂerofthe
Cmmcyofﬂ)eUniwdSmasproﬁdedinSecﬁonBOS(c)ofmeInmmIRevmeCode
of 1954,

11. Ifanyemployeeormembex-ofﬁxeboaxdofreviewortheadministraororany
employee of the administrator, in violation of the provisions of this section, -discloses
infgmmjmobtainedﬁomanyemployingunﬁmpmoninﬂzeadmhﬁsuaﬁonofﬂﬁs
chapter,orifanypemonwhohasobtainedaﬁstofappﬁmtsforwo:k,mofciaimamsor
recipienBofbencﬁtspmmthischapterussorpemisﬂ:enseofﬁeﬁstfmmy
political purpose, he is guilty of a gross misdemeanor.

12 Aﬂlewem,reporlsorcommmi@aﬁonsofanykind,oralorwﬁtten,ﬁomﬁxe
employeroremployeetomhotherortomedivisionoranyofitsagenm,repmentmivs
orcmployemarepﬁvﬂegedandmustnotbeihesubjectmatterorbasisforanylawszﬁtif
ﬂleleﬁer,reponmwmmuniwﬁoniswrmmsengdeﬁveredmprepaedpmsmmﬂle

requirements of this chapter.
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Sec. 2. Chapter 616A of NRS is hereby amended by adding thereto a new section to
read as follows:

1. Except as otherwise provided in chapters 6164 to 617, inclusive, of NRS, a jorm,
notice, claim, bill or other document reguired to be filed, mailed or delivered pursuant to
thepraviﬁqmg‘ﬂmeckaptm,mmreguhﬁomadopkdpwsmthaao,maybeﬁled
or delivered by electronic transmission.

2 Forthepwposesoftkeprow‘siansofdquterx6l6Ato6]7,indwive,ofNRS,and
any regulations adopted pursuant thereto, a signature on a form, notice, claim, bill or
other document that is filed or delivered by electronic transmission has the same legal
effect as the original signature.

3 Theadmbnk#mormayadaptsuchregulmiowasmenecessmymmﬁrﬂw
ﬁlz:zzgorddivqyofmchdoaanemsbyelecﬂ'onic#mzi&ﬁm |

Sec. 3. Chépter616BofNRSisherebyamendedbyaddingﬂwretothepmvisionsset
forth as sections 4 and 5 of this act.

Sec. 4. An insurer shall, wiﬂ:inIDdaysqierreceivingﬁommenplayerawrizten
requeﬂfmhjomaionrelm@gwtheemloyakpaﬁcyofwmmprmdem
theeng)lqverthebfomaﬁonrequmedifthmbjomaimismthemssessionofw

reasonably available to, the insurer.
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Sec. 5. An insurer may purchase an armuity in any form to ensure the payment of a
claim filed with the insurer pursuant to chapters 6164 to 616D, inclusive, or chapter 617
of NRS.

Sec. 6. NRS 616B.012 is hereby amended to read as follows:

616B.012 1. Except as otherwise provided in this section and in NRS 616B.015,
616B.021 and 616C.205, information obtained from any insurer, employer or employee is
confidential and may not be disclosed or be open to public inspection in any manner which
would reveal the person’s identity. '

2. Any claimant or his legal representative is entitied to information from the records
of the insurer, to the extent necessary for the proper presentation of a claim in any
proceeding under chapters 616A to 616D, inclusive, of NRS.

/3. Anbmqgr,ﬂzea&;ﬁris&manmemployerwaproviderafhedthweisemﬁledw
mmedicdwéthabybrmmionrdmedbymbjwedenployeepmmtosubseaion3
of NRS 616C.020 or subsection 3 of NRS 617.344.

4. The division and administrator are entitled to information from the records of the
msurer which is necessary for the performance of their duties. The manager may, by
regulation, prescribe the manner in which otherwise confidential information may be made
available to:

(a) Any agency of this or any other state charged with the administration or

enforcement of [workers’ compensation law,] laws relating to industrial insurance,
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unemployment compensation , [law,] public assistance [law] or labor law;] and industrial
relations;

(d) Anystateorlomlagencyfortheenforcementofchﬂdsupport;

(© ‘I'helntemalRevenneServiceofﬁeDepamnentoftheTmsnry;

(d) The department of taxation; and

(¢) The state contractors’ board in the performance of its duties to enforce the
pmvisionsofchapter624ofNRS.

Information obtained in connection with the administration of a [workers’ compensation]
pfogmnofindmﬁdmmmaybemadeavaﬂablempamsmagmi&sforpmpom
appropriate to the operation of a fworkers” compensation program.

4.] program of industrial insurance.

- Uponyﬁﬁenreqwstmadebyapubﬁcoﬁeerofalowlgovemcm,ﬂlemmger
daaﬂﬁmnish&émﬂerecordsof&cM,ﬁxemme,adedphwofemloymmof
mypemonﬁstedhﬁermordsof&ehsmer.ﬁerequstmnﬂsﬁfor&ﬂ:ewciﬂsecuﬁty
number of the person about whom the request is made and contain 2 statement signed by
proper anthority of the local government certifying that the request is made to allow the
proper authority to enforce 2 law to recover a debt or obligation owed to the local
governmem.The'infomaﬁmobtaimdbyﬂaelomlgovemmemismnﬁdenﬁdmdmaym

beusedordisclosedforanypmposeothertbanﬁ:eooﬂecﬁonofadebtorobligaﬁonow‘ed
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to that Jocal government. The manager may charge a reasonable fee for the cost of
providing the requested information.

[5.] 6. Toﬁmﬂ:cracmremcriminalinvsﬁgaﬁon,ﬁechiefexew&veoﬂieerofany
hwenforcememagencyofﬂﬁssmemaysubmhawﬁuenmquestmthemanagerﬁmhe
ﬁlmishﬁomtherewrdsofthehsm,ﬁleme,addr&ssmdphceofmploymemﬁmy
pemonﬁstedhtberwordsoftheinsmer.lhemqmmsetforththesoddsecuﬁty
nmberofthepemonaboﬂwhomﬁzerequstismadeandmmainastatememsimdby
the chief executive officer certifying that the request is made to further 2 criminal
ﬁ&sﬁgaﬁoncunenﬁybeingwndnﬁedbythaagency.Upmmceiptofamqmﬂn
manager shall fornish the information requested. He may charge a reasonabie fee to cover

_LG.]Z Thgmanagershaﬂpmvidelistsmmainhgthemandaddmss&sof
employers, the number of employees employed by each employer and the total wages peid
by&chemployermthedepmmmnofmmﬁon,uponmquesgforitsnsehlverﬁ‘ying
mumsfmthehsinmﬂxlhcmamgermydmgeammblefeewwvermymlawd

[7] & Ifﬂlemanageroranyemployeeofﬂlemanager,inviolaﬁonofthissecﬁon,
discloses information obtained from files of claimants or policyholders, or if any person
whohasobtainedalistofclaima:nsorpoﬁcyholdetsnnderchapters616At0616D,
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inclusive, of NRS uses or permits the use of the list for any political purposes, he is guiity
of a gross misdemeanor.

[8] 9. All letters, reports or communications of any kind, oral or written, from the
insurer, or any of its agents, representatives or employees are privileged and must not be
thembjeamwhasisformthsmtifﬂ:elener,reponmcomnﬁmﬁmiswm
sent, defivered or prepared pursuant to the requirements of chapters 616A to 616D,

inclusive, of NRS.
Sec. 7. NRS 616B.018 is hereby amended to read as follows:

616B.018 1. The administrator shall estzblish a method of indexing claims for
compensation that will make information conceming the claimants of one insurer available
to other insurers.

2’: Every self-msured employer, association of self-insured public or private employers
mdﬂ:esyswmd:aﬂpmﬁdehfomaﬁonasmqukedbymeadmhisuatorfofmbﬁshing
and maintaining the index of claims.

3. I an employee files a claim [with an insurer,] for compensation, or if a claim for
compensation is filed on behalf of an employee, the insurer is entitled to receive from the
administrator a list of the prior claims of the employee. If the insurer desires to inspect the
files of another insurer that are related to one or more of the prior claims, he must Jobtain
the written consent] provide the other insurer with a copy of the claim for compensation

filed by or on behalf of the employee.
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4. Any mnformation obtained from the index of claims must be admitted into evidence
in any hearing before an appeals officer, a hearing officer or the administrator.

S. Thedivisionmaymandmﬂectarwsonablefeeforitsservicespmﬁded
pursuznt to this section. The fee must be payable monthly or at such other intervais as

Sec. 8. NRS 616B.021 is hereby amended to read as follows:

616B.021 1. H‘heiﬁsm‘ermnst]AnimurershaIIpmvideamtotheﬁl&sofclaims
i its offices.

2. Aﬁleisavai]ableforinspecﬁmhﬁngregulmbusinesshoumbyﬁeanployeem
his designated agent, the employer or his designated agent and the administrator or his
designated agent.

3 Upongeqmtheinsmer[must]shaﬂmakewpisofanythinghtheﬁlemdmay
chmgearmonébleﬁefmthissaﬁce.%esofmﬂeﬁdshﬁeﬁlewhichmmqu&ed
by the administrator or his designated agent, or the Nevada attorney for injured workers or
his designated agent must be provided free of charge.

4. [If] Except as otherwise provided in NRS 616C.233, if a claim has been closed for at
lmstlyw,theinsmermaynﬁuophowgmphmﬁhnmyofitsmcordsmlaﬁngm&at
claim. The microphotographs or films must be placed in convenient and accessible files,

and provision must be made for preserving, examining and using the records.
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5. [Nothing in this section requires] This section does not require the insurer to allow
mspwﬁonmrepromcﬁunofmmeﬁﬂmgardingwﬁchalegalpﬁvﬂegeagahadimlosme
has been conferred.

Sec. 9. NRS 616B.024 is hereby amended to read as follows:

616B.024 Except as otherwise provided in NRS 616C.235:

1. Upon written approval of the administrator, the insurer may destroy accumulated
and noncurrent detail records such as payroll reports, checks, claims [.} and other records of
similar importance for the period July 1, 1913, to January 1, 1947, if:

(&) Claims from Janmary 1, 1940, and afier are first microphotographed: and

(b) A brief inventory of the destroyed records is retained.

2.Theinsm'ermaydisposeoford&slmyanyrecordwhichh_asbem
microphotographed or filmed if the procedure required by NRS 239.051 has been followed.

3. Ihepziﬁcipalmords,suchasthegenerdandregnlarjomalsandﬂlegmal
ledgers, must be retained intact until audited and then must be microfilmed for retention
until their destruction pursuant to NRS 239.051.

Sec. 10. NRS 616B.033 is hereby amended to read as follows:

616B.033 1. Every policy of insurance issued pursuant to chapters 616A to 617,
inclusive, ofNRSmustconminaprovisionforthereqxﬁmmentsofsubwcﬁWS and a

provision that insolvency or bankruptcey of the cmployer or his estate, or discharge therein,
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or any default of the empioyer does not relieve the insurer from liability for compensation
resuiting from an injury otherwise covered under the policy issued by the insurer.

2. No statement in an employer’s application for 2 policy of industrial insurance voids
the policy as between the insurer and employer unless the statement is false and would
have materially affected the acceptance of the risk if known by the insurer, but in no case
does the invalidation of a policy as between the insurer and employer affect the insurer’s
obﬁgaﬁonmpmvidewmpmsaﬁmmclahnamsaﬁsingbefore.themceﬂzﬁmofﬁe
policy. If the insurer is required pursuant to this subsection to provide compensation under
an invalid policy, the insurer is subrogated to the claimant’s rights against the employer.

3. Han insurer or employer intends to cancel or renew a policy of insurance issued by
the insurer pursuant to chapters 616A to 617, inclusive, of NRS, the insurer or employer
mqstgivenoﬁcemﬁxateﬁeamwﬁﬁngmtheadminisuamrmdmﬂ:eotherpmyﬁxhg
ﬂ:edateonwhichitispmpowdﬂmthemeﬂmimmmwdbemm&eﬂ'ecﬁve.m
potices must comply with the provisions of NRS 687B.310 to 687B.355, inclusive, and
must be served personally on or sent by first-class mail or electronic transmission to the
administrator and the other party. If the employer has secured insurance with another
insurer which would cause double coverage, the cancellation must be made effective as of
the effective date of the other Insurance.

4. As between any claimant and the insurer, no defense based on any act or omission

of the insured employer, if different from the msurer, may be raised by the insurer.
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5. For the purposes of chapters 616A to 617, inclusive, of NRS, as between the
employee and the insurer:

(@) Except as otherwise provided in NRS 616C.065, notice or knowledge of the injury
to or by the employer is notice or knowiedge to or by the insurer;

(b) Jurisdiction over the employer is jurisdiction over the insurer; and

© Ihehxsmerisbomdbyandsubjectmmyjudgmems,ﬁndingséfﬁcgwmhsims
ofhw,awmdgdeaeegordasordedsimsrmdaedagainsttheemployermthesamel
manner and to the same extent as the employer.

| Sec. 11. NRS 616B.327 is hereby amended to read as follows:

616B327 1. Except as otherwise provided in NRS 616D.120, before any action may
be taken pursuant to subsection 2, the commissioner of insurance shall arrange an informal
mceungwnhﬂae self-insured employer to discuss and seek correction of any conduct
which would be grounds for withdrawal of the self-insured employer’s certificate of self-
Insurance.

2. Except as otherwise provided in NRS 616D.120, before the withdrawal of the
certification of any self-insured employer, the commissioner of insurance shall give written
notice to that employer by certified mail or electronic transmission that his certification
will be withdrawn 10 days after receipt of the notice uniess, within that time, the employer

corrects the conduct set forth in the notice as the reason for the withdrawal or submits a
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wﬂmreqmtfwahmhgmthemmmissiomofmsumce.Befommquesﬁngahmﬁng
the employer must make the deposit required by NRS 616B_300.

3. [fthe employer requests a hearing:

@ ThecommisionerofinsumceshaﬂsetadateforahmingwithEZOdaysaﬁer
receivingﬂz_eappwlreqmandshaﬂgiveﬁ:eemployeratbast 10 business days’ notice
of the time and place of the hearing.

® Arecordofthchéﬁngmnstbekeptbmitneedmtbeuanscﬁbedmlssrequ&aed
bytheemployerwiﬁthecostochﬁpﬁontobeclnrgedtoﬁzeemployer.

' (c) Within 5 business days afier the hearing, the commissioner of insurance shall cither
aﬁmordimﬁmtbewiﬂldmwalmdgivetheemployerwﬁﬁmmﬁcethmfbycaﬁﬁed
mail [.) or electronmic transmission. If withdrawal of certification is affirmed, the
wnhdrawalbeoomesef&cnve 10 business days after the employer receives notice of the
afﬁmcemlsswiﬁﬁnmatpaiodofﬁmeﬂlemphyercmtsthemn&wtwhichwas
ground for the withdrawal or petitions for judicial review of the affirmance.

4. If the withdrawal of certification is affimed following judicial review, the
withdmwalhecomseﬁmﬁveSdaysaﬁerenuyofﬂmﬁmI&ueeofaﬁnnance.

Sec. 12. NRS 616B.431 is hereby amended to read as follows:

616B.431 1. Except as otherwise provided in NRS 616D.120, before any action may

bemkenpumuammsubwcﬁonlﬁwwmmissionershaﬂmgemmfonnalmeeﬁngwiﬂl
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an association of self-insured public or private empioyers to discuss and seek correction of
any conduct which would be grounds for withdrawal of the certificate of the association.

2. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 3 and NRS 616D.120, before the
withdrawal of the certificate of any association of self-insured public or private employers,
the commissioner shall give written notice to the association by certified mail or electronic
transmission that its certificate will be withdrawn 10 days afier receipt of the notice unless,
within that time, the association corrects the conduct set forth in the notice as the reason for
the withdrawal or submits a written request for a hearing to the commissioner.

3. The commissioner may grant additional time, not to exceed an additional 120 days,
before the withdrawal of the certificate of an association ift

(@ The grounds for withdrawal of the certificate of the association are ‘based on
mh @ of subsection 2 of NRS 616B.428; and

(b) The association is financially sound and capabie of fulfilling its commitments.

4. If the association requests a hearing:

(3) The commissioner shall set a date for a hearing within 20 days after receiving the
request and give the association at least 10 business days’ notice of the time and place of
the hearing.

(b) A record of the hearing must be kept, but it need not be transcribed unless requested

by the association with the cost of transcription to be charged to the association.
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(c) Within 5 business days after the hearing, the commissioner shall either affirm or
disaﬁmmewkhdrawdmdgivetheassodaﬁmmiuennoﬁcemmfbyoerﬁﬁedmaﬂ{.]
or electromic transmission. If withdrawal of certification is affirmed, the withdrawal
becomes effective 10 business days after the association receives notice of the affirmance
ml&ssw&hinthapeﬁodﬂ:eassodaﬁoneommewndnawhichwasgmmdsfmthe
withdrawal or petitions for judicial review of the affirmance. |

S. Ifthewithdmwﬁofcerﬁﬁmﬁonisaﬁmedfoﬂowingjudicialreview,the
withdrawal becomes effective 5 days after entry of the final decree of affirmance.

Sec 13. NRS616B.472 is hereby amended to read as follows:

616B.472 1. The commissioner shall suspend the authorization of a private carrier to
provide industrial insurance for 1 year, if the commissioner finds that the private carrier has
mfgnﬁomllyqrrep&nedlyﬁﬁedmwmplym&epmvisimsofchapmﬂGAm 616D,
inclusive, or chapter 617 of NRS or the regulations of the division.

2. Before the commissioner suspends the authorization of a private carrier, he shall
arrange an informal meeting with the private carrier to discuss and seek correction of any
conduct which would be grounds for saspension.

3. Before the suspension of the authorization, the commissioner shall give written
notice to the private carrier by certified mail or electromic transmission that its

mnhoﬁzmionwﬂlbesuspendedwiminmdaysaﬂerﬁmceivesthemﬁoeml&ss,wﬂhm
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that time, the private carrier corrects the conduct set forth in the notice as the reason for the
withdrawal or submits a written request for a hearing to the commissioner.

4. If the private carrier requests a hearing:

(@) The commissioner shall set a date for a hearing within 20 days after receiving the
noﬁoeofﬂ:_eappealandshaﬂgiveﬂ:epﬁvatecanieratlmst10busimdays’noﬁeeofﬂ:e
time and place of the hearing.

(b) A record of the hearing must be kept but it need not be transcribed unless requested
by the private carrier. The cost of transcription must be charged to the private carrier.

5. Within 5 days afier the hearing, the commissioner shall affirm or deny his order
suspending the authorization of the private carrier and notify the private carrier by certified
mail or electronic transmission of his decision.

6. If the private carrier does not comply with the order of the commissioner during the
peﬁodgfsspensimofmeauﬁxoﬁzaﬁommemmmisiomrshaﬂﬁlemorderpmhmg
the private carrier from issuing new policies until the order has expired. A copy of the order
must be sent by certified mail or electrornic transmission to the private carrier.

Sec. 14. NRS 616C.020 is hereby amended to read as follows:

616C.020 1. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 2, an injured employee [.]
who wishes to recover compensation pursuarit to the provisions of chapters 6164 to 616D,

inclusive, of NRS, or a person acting on his behalf, shall , a7 the time of the employee’s first
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medical examination for kis injury, file a claim for compensation with the finsurer within
90 days after an accident if: |

(a) The employee bas sought medical treatment for an injury arising out of and in the
course of his employment; or

(b)Thee_mployeewasoﬁ'workasamﬂtofaninjuryaﬁsingoutofandinﬁwcomse
ofhisemploymem.]pigrsidmorc}ﬁrapmaorwhocon&wmtkeexmnbzdion The injured
employee must submit to a medical examination for his injury and file a claim for
compensation within 90 days after the date of the injury.

2. In the event of the death of the imjured employee resulting from the injury, 2
dependent of the employee, or a person acting on his behalf, shall file a claim for
compensation with the insurer within 1 year after the death of the injured empioyes.

3 mclaimforwmpemﬁmmbeﬂedmafommw&
administrator. The form must include a provision which, if signed by the injured employee,
authorizes the release of any medical or other information related to the claim to the
insurer, the administrator, the employee’s employer and any provider of health care who
provides treatment to the injured employee.

Sec. 15. NRS 616C.025 is hereby amended to read as follows:

616C.025 1. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 2, an employee or, in the
event of the death of fthe employee, his dependent} an employee, a dependent, who does

not file a notice of injury pursuant to NRS 616C.015 and a claim for compensation
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pursuant to NRS 616C.020 is barred from recovering compensation pursuant to the
provisions of chapters 616A to 616D, inclusive, of NRS . [if he fails to file 2 notice of
injury pursuant to NRS 616C.015 or a claim for compensaﬁonpmsumnto.NRS 616C.020.]

2. An isurer may excuse the failure to file 2 notice of injury or 2 claim for
compensation pursuant to the provisions of this section if:

(2) The imjury to the employee or another cause beyond his control prevented him from
providing the notice or claim;

(b) The failure was caused by the employee’s or dependent’s mistake or ignorance of
ﬁ&mofhm

(c) The failure was caused by the physical or mental inability of the employee or the
dependent; or

(@) The failure was caused by fraud, mistepresentation or deceit.

Sec. 16. NRS 616C.040 is hereby amended to read as follows:

616C.040 1. A teating physician or chiropractor shall, within 3 working days after
he first ftreats] examines an injured employee for a particular injury, complete and fmail to]
fie with the employer of the injured employee and fto] the employer’s insurer, [a] the claim
for compensation [.] filed with the physician or chiropractor by the injured employee
pursuant to NRS 616C.020. If the employer is a self-insured employer, the treating
physician or chiropractor shall [mail] file the claim for compensation fto] with the

employer’s third-party administrator. If the physician or chiropractor files the claim for

157



compensation by electronic transmission, he shall, upon request, mail to the nsurer or
third-party administrator the form that contains the original signatures of the injured
employee and the physician or ckiropractor. The form must be mailed within 7 days after
receiving such a request.

2 [Ac;aimforcompensaﬁonmqniredbymbsecﬁonlmstbeonafompmcﬁbed
by the administrator. .

3] Ifaclaﬁnforeompenmﬁonisacoompaniedbyacetﬁﬁweofdimbﬂity,ﬁ:e
cerﬁﬁmmmtincludead&sctipﬁmofanylmﬁmﬁmorresﬁcﬁmsontheizﬁmed
employee’s ability to work.

[41 3. Each physician, chiropractor and medical facility that treats injured employess,
each insurer, third-party administrator and employer, and the division shall maintain at
thgkoﬁcesaspfﬁciemsupplyofmefomsprwcﬁbedby&eadmhﬁmforﬂhga
claim for compensation.

{5.] 4 The administrator shall impose an administrative fine of not more than $1,000
on a physician or chiropractor for each violation of subsection 1.

Sec. 17. NRS 616C.045 is hereby amended to read as follows:

616C.045 1. Within 6 working days afier the receipt of a claim for compensation
ﬁomaphysidmorchﬁopramor,anemployershaﬁcomplaemd[maﬂmlﬁlewithhis
insmumﬁh&pmlyadmhiﬁatormemplo&a’smpoﬁofhdus&iﬂﬁgmymocmpaﬁonﬂ
disease.
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2. The report must:

(@) Be on a form prescribed by the administrator;

(b) Be signed by the employer or his designee;

(c)Comainspeciﬁcanswersmaﬂqusﬁonsrequiredbyﬂzeregulaﬁonsofﬂw
administrator; and |

(d)Beaccompaﬁedt_yyasmtementofthewagsofthcemployeeifﬂze claim for
wmpmﬁﬁmmeived&omthemﬁngphysidmmchhopmmhdimﬂmﬁeﬁmed
employee is expected to be off work for 5 days or more.

‘3. Anunployeeofﬁ:esystanshaﬂmtcompletemereponreqxﬁredbysubsecﬁmlor
myoﬁxerfomrdaﬁngmthcaccidemwbehalfoftheemployeruﬂssmeemployen

(@) Isnot in business;

® Haantbemlo@edbythesystmwﬂhinSwoﬂdngdaysaﬁerreceiptofaclaim
for compensation; or

(c) Refuses to complete the report.

4. An employer who files the report required by subsection 1 by electronic
transmission shall, zponrequasz,mailtothemerorﬂﬁrdqparqadmbnka—a‘orﬂzeﬁm
thatcomaimtheoﬁginalsignaareoftheenphyerarhisdesignee. The form must be
mailed within 7daysqﬂerreceivbzgsaékarequm

S. lhead:ninis&atorshaﬂhnposemadminisraﬁveﬁneofnotmomthanSl,OOOonan

employer for each violation of this section.
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Sec. 18. NRS 616C.060 is hereby amended to read as follows:

616C.060 An insurer shall accept or deny responsibility for compensatior under
chapters 616A to 616D, inclusive, of NRS within 30 working days after [claims] a claim
for compensation [are] is received pursuant to [both NRS 616C.020 and} NRS 616C.040.

Sec. 19. NRS 616C.130 is hereby amended to read as follows:

616C.130 The insurer shall not anthorize the payment of any money to a physician or
chiropractor for services rendered by him in attending an injured employee umtil an
itenﬁmds&temﬂfmtheserﬁmhsbemreceivedby&xehmmmpmﬁedbya
certificate of the physician or chiropractor stating that 2 duplicate of the itemized statement
has been fmailed or personally delivered to] filed with the employer of the injured
empioyee.

Sec. 20. NRS 616C.150 is hereby amended to read as follows:

616C.150 1. An injured employee or his dependents are not entitled to receive
compensation pursuant to the provisions of chapters 616A to 616D, inciusive, of NRS
unless fthej -

(@) The empioyee submits to a medical examination for an injury arising out of and in
the course of his employment within 90 days after the date of that injury; and

(b) The employee or his dependents establish by a preponderance of the evidence that

the employee’s injury arose out of and in the course of his employment.
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2. For the purposes of chapters 616A to 616D, inclusive, of NRS, if the employee files
2 notice of an injury pursuant to NRS 616C.015 after his employment has been terminated
formyr@ason,thmisambmblepmmpﬁmthatmeﬁ;imydidnmaﬁseomofandh
the course of his employment.

Sec. 21. NRS 616C.220 is hereby amended to read as follows:

616C.220 1. Anemployee may receive compensation from the uninsured employers’
claim fund if: )

(@) Hewashiredinﬁﬁsstateorheistegn!adyemployedinﬂﬁsstate;

(b) He suffers an accident or injury in this state which rises out of and in fhe course of
bis employment;

©) [Heﬁl&sa]HisclaimforcompemmionisﬁledwhhthesystempmsuamtoNRS
[616C.020;] 616C.040;

@ Heﬁl&sv;ﬁttmnoﬁcewidathedivision;and

© Henmk&smhrevombleassignmentmthediﬁsionofaﬁghtmbesubmgatedmthe
rights of the injured employee pursuant to NRS 616C.215.

2. Ifthesysﬁemreceiv&aclaimpu:suanttoMonl,ﬂxesystemshaﬂ
immediately:

(@) Notify the employer of the claim; and

(b)DeHvertothedivisionanyevidenceregardingiheclaimandany evidence

dicating that the employer was uninsured.
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3. Forthepm‘posesof,thiswcﬁon,theemployerhastheburdenofprovingthathe
provided mandatory industrial insurance coverage for the employee or that he was not
required to maintain industrial insurance for the employee.

4. Anymployawhohasmampmﬁdemdmrymmgerequ&edbyme
provisionsqfchaptestlGAto6l6D,inclusive,ofNRSisliableforallpaymemsmadeon
hisbehalﬁindtﬂhganybeneﬁts,admhﬁsuaﬁvewssmammey’sfe&spaidﬁomﬁ:c
uninsured employers’ claim fund or incurred by the division.

5. The division:

(@ May recover from the employer the payments made by the division that ame
described in subsection 4 and any accrued interest by bringing 2 civil action in district
court.

,(b)hany;civﬂacﬁmbmnghtagainsttheemployer,isnMreq:ﬁredmpmvetba
negﬁgentconductbytheemployerwasﬂ:emseoftheemployee’sinjmy.

) Mayemerhuoaconnactwiﬂaanypersonmassistmﬂleeoﬂecﬁonofanyliabﬂity
ofanun_insmedemployer.

@ Inﬁeuofacivﬂacﬁon,mayenterintoanagreemanorsmlememregardingﬂ:c
collection of any liability of an uninsured employer.

6. The division shall:

(@) Determine whether the employer was insured within 30 days after receiving notice

of the claim from the employes.
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®) Asignﬂaeclaim&‘ﬁxesystemforadmhﬁsuaﬁonofiheciahn,paymemofbeneﬁxs
andreimbnrsementofcosﬁofadminisuaﬁonandbeneﬁtspaidtothesystem.
Upon‘detmninmgﬂmachhnismvaﬁd,thesystemshaﬂmﬁﬁthechhnmthenamed
emploierandﬂxedivisimlhatthechﬁnwﬁlnotbeassignedforbencﬁsﬁomﬂ:e
uninsured employers’ claim fund.

7. Anypmtyaggﬁevedbyadedsionmgardingtheadnﬁnisuaﬁonofanassimdclaim
madedsionmadeby&edivisionmbyﬁ:esystcmregmdingmyclaﬁnmadepmsmm
ﬂﬁswcﬁmmyappalthatdedsionwhhmmdaysa&uﬂxededsionisrmderedmﬁ:e
hearings division of the department of administration in the manner provided by NRS
616C.305 and 616C.315 to 616C 385, inclusive.

8. Aﬂinsmemsbaﬂbwapmporﬁonateamoumdadaimmadepmsmtochaptets
61§A to 6161?, inclusive, of NRS, and are entitled to a proportionate amount of any
collection made pursuant to this section as an offset against future Habilities.

9. Anuninsmedemployerisliableforthei:ﬂer&stonanyamoﬂpaidonhisc]aims
ﬁomﬁembsmedanpioym’c]aﬁnﬁmimemmmtbedaﬂaedatameqmlm
the prime rate at the largest bank in Nevada, as ascertained by the commissioner of
financial institutions, on January 1 or July 1, as the case may be, immediately preceding the
dateoftheclaim,phszpercent,compotmdedmonﬂﬂy,ﬁomthedatetheclahispaid
ﬁ'omtheﬁmdmnilpaymemisrweivedbymedivisionﬁ'omﬁleemployer.

10. Attomney’s fees recoverable by the division pursuant to this section must be-
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@ Hapﬁvateaﬁomeyismminedbythedivision,paidathensmlandmstomaryme
for that attorney.

(b)Ifﬁxeaﬂomeyismemployeeofthedivision,paidatﬂwrateestabﬁshedby
regulations adopted by the division.
Anymoneypoﬂectedmnstbedepositedtothemﬁnsmedemployers’claimfmd.

1. Inaddiﬁonmanyoﬂaerﬁabﬂiﬁ&spmvidedforh:ﬂ:issecﬁon,meadmﬁdsuator
mayimposemadmhﬁsmﬁveﬁneofnotmmﬂ:mSI0,000againstmemployerifthe
employaﬁﬂsmpmﬁdemmMorymvemgemqtﬁredbyﬁ:epmﬁsimsofchapmﬂGA
t0 616D, inclusive, of NRS.

Sec. 22. NRS 616C.235 is hereby amended to read as follows:

616C235 1. Exceptas otherwise provided in subsection 2:

@ Whenthginsmerdaemin&sthataclaﬁnshouldbedowdbefore_anbeneﬁmm
whichtheclahnammbemtkledhavebecnpaiiﬂxemmershansendawﬁmnoﬁce
ofitsintenﬁontocloseﬂ:eclaimto&eclaimam:byﬁmt-classmailaddlmdtothelast
knownaddrmofthcdahnantIhemﬁoemnsthchdeasatmthatifﬂzechimm
do&snmagreewimmedamnﬁnﬁon,hehasaﬁghtmreqmamhnimofﬂmdispme
pursuant to NRS 616C.305 and 616C.315 to 616C.385, inclusive. A suitable form for
requ&sﬁngamoluﬁonofthedisputemustbemclowdwi&lﬁxenoﬁoe.meclosureofa

claﬁnismteﬁ‘ecﬁveunlmnoﬁoeisgivenasreqlﬁredby&issubsecﬁon
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®) Ifﬂaeinsmerdoesnotreceivearequstforthcrmluﬁonofthedispme,itmayclose
the claim.

(c) Notwithstanding the provisions of NRS 233B.125, if a hearing is conducted to
resoheﬁe@me,ﬁededsimoftheh&ﬁngofﬁcermaybeservedbyﬁrﬂchsmaﬂ.

2 Hﬂnmedimlbeneﬁ:sreqﬁredmbepaidfmaclaimmelmthmm,theclaim
dommomaﬁmnyifmechhnamdosnmmeivemedialmformehjmyfora
l&st6mombs.TheclaimamMMtappmlthedosingofmhaclahn.TheMWmax
not less than 6 months after a claim is closed pursuant to this subsection, destray the
records relating to the claim.

Sec. 23. NRS 616C285 is hereby amended to read as follows:

616C285 1. If an employer requests a hearing conceming the withdrawal of
approval pursuant to NRS 616C.280, the administrator shall set a date for 2 hearing within
20 days after receiving the request, and shall give the employer at jeast 10 business days’
notice of the time and place of the hearing.

2. A record of the hearing must be kept but it need not be transcribed unless it is
requested by the employer and he pays the cost of transcription.

3. Within 5 business days after the hearing, the administrator shall either affirm or
disafﬁmthewiﬂldrawalofapprwa]mdgivetheemployerwﬁuennoﬁcethermfby
certified mail {] or electronic transmission.

Sec. 24. NRS 616C.295 is hereby amended to read as follows:

165



616C.295 Thechiefofthehwingsdivisionofthedepamnemofadministraﬁonshalk

1. Prescribe by regulation fthe]

(@ Ihequaliﬁmﬁomanduainingreqdredbefomapersonmay,pmsuammchapters
616Ato616D,inch:sive,orcbapter617ofNRS,serveasahmﬁngoﬁeer.l‘miningfora
hearing officer muost include [techniques] -

(1) Technigues of mediation [.] ; and

(2) Instruction at the National Judicial College in Reno, Nevada, in the
admbnaraﬁveprocedwesandmbstmuiwelawrelmingtammestedcasesfar
compensation under chapters 6164 to 617, inclusive, of NRS, if such instruction is
available at the college.

(b) Procedures to ensure thatthedecisionsofhea-ingoﬁcemm'ecomirremwﬂhpﬁor
decisions issued By hearing officers for similar claims.

2. Provide for the expediting of the hearing of cases that involve the termination or
denial of compensation.

Sec. 25. NRS 616C340 is hereby amended to read as follows:

616C340 1. ‘I'hegovemorshallappointoneormoreappmlsoﬁcerstoeondnct
h&ﬁngsinwmwedclaﬁnsfmwmpemmonpmamtoNRS616C360.Eachappmls
ofﬁcershaﬂholdofﬁceforzym'sﬁ'omthedateofhisappoinnnentandmﬁlhismmor
isappoiMedmdhasqudiﬁeiEachappedsoﬁeerisenﬁﬂedmreceivemmndmlzyh

an amount provided by law and is in the unclassified service of the state.
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2. Eachappmlsoﬁcérmustbeana:t:omeywhohasbeenﬁcensedtopracﬁoe}aw
beforeaﬂthecomtsofthissﬂneforatlastZymExceptasotherwisepmvidedinNRS
7.065,anappealsoﬁicershaﬂnotengageinﬂxepﬁvatepracﬁceoflaw.

3. The chief of the hearings division of the departmemt of administration shall
prescribe by regulation:

(@) The training required before a person may, pursuant 1o chapters 6164 to 616D,
inclusive, or chapter 617 of NRS, serve as an appeais officer. Training for an appeals
o_ﬂica'mmckdemucﬁonmtbeNmionaIJudiahICaﬂegebzRem, Nevada, in the
Wivepmcedwesmdmbstmdivelawrelmingwmmedmesfor
compensation under chapters 6164 to 617, inclusive, of NRS, if such instruction is
available at the college.

®) Pmcedzgastoemethﬂthedeciﬁamafappealsqﬁcmaremiﬂemwthpﬁw
- decisions issued by appeals officers for similar claims.

4. Ifanappealsoﬁcerdetermmesﬂ:athehasapersomlinterestoraconﬂictof
m&ecﬂymhdkealy,hmymsewhichishefmehﬁn,heshaﬂdisqmlﬁyhhmeﬁ
ﬁomhﬂdngmewsemdﬁzegovemormayappoimasmdalappdsomwwhoisvmed
withthesamepowemasﬂmmgﬂaapp&lsofﬁcerwouidposses&nespedﬂappeak
oﬁcerisenﬁﬁedtobepaidatanhom'lyrate,baseduponﬁleappw]soﬁeer’ssalary.

[4.] 5. The decision of an appeals officer is the final and binding administrative
determination of a claim for compensation under chapters 616A to 616D, inclusive, or
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chapter 617 of NRS, and the whole record consists of all evidence taken at the hearing
before the appeals officer and any findings of fact and conclusions of law based thereon.
Sec. 26. NRS 616C.550 is hereby amended to read as follows:
616C.550 1. Except as otherwise provided in this section, if benefits for a temporary
total disability will be paid to an injured employee for more than 90 days, a vocational
rehabﬂhmionmmselmghaleiﬂﬁnSOdaysaﬂzrbehgasigmdmtheclaim,makca
written assessment of the injured employee’s ability or potential to return to:
(@) The position he held at the time that he was injured; or
() Any other gainful employment
2. Before completing the written assessment, the counselor shall-
() Contact the injured employee and:
. (1) Identify the injured employee’s edncational background, work experience and
career interests; and
(2) Determine whether the injured employee has any existing marketable skills.
(6) Contact the injured employee’s treating physician or chiropractor and determine:
(1) Whether the employee has any temporary or permanent physical imitations;
(2) The estimated duration of the limitations;

(3) Whether there is a plan for continued medical treatment: and
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(4) When the employee may retum to the position that he held at the time of his
hjmymmanyotherposiﬁonlhet&aﬁngphysidanmchimpmctorshaﬂdetemine
Whetheranemployeemayretumtotheposiﬁonﬂ:atheheldatﬂaeﬁmeofhisinjmy.

3. 1hewﬁnenasswsmemmustcomainadcteuninaﬁonasmwhethertheemployeeis
eligible for vocational rehabilitation services pursuant to NRS 616C.590. If the Insurer,
With&cassiMceofﬁewmselm,demmmmeanployeeiseﬁgibkforvomﬁonﬂ
rehabilitation services, ap]anforapmgmmofvocaﬁonalrebabﬁitaﬁonmnstbeoompleted
pursuant to NRS 616C.555.

4, Thedivisionmay,byregu!aﬁomrequﬁeawﬁuenassmmmincludeaddiﬁonal
information.

5. Ifanmsurerdetemm&sﬂmﬂ:ewnmaswssmentreqlmedbyﬂnssecnonls
hngmcﬁmlbeqmmeoftheexpecwddmaﬁmofmcemployee’smmlmomydisabﬂhy,
the insurer shall:

@ Completeawrhtenreportwhichspeciﬁshisr&sonsforﬂ:edecision;and

(b) Review the claim at least once every 60 days.

6. nzeinsmersha]}[maﬂ]deliveracopyofthewﬁuenass&ssmentorﬂ:erepon
mmpletedpmsmmsubsecﬁmSmthemjmedemployee,hisempbyer,theumﬁng
physician or chiropractor and the injured employee’s attorney or representative, if
applicable.
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7. For the purposes of this section, “existing marketable skills” include, but are not
limited to:
(@) Completion of:
(1) A program at a trade school;
(2) A program which resulted in an associate’s degree; or
(3) A course of study for certification,
ifthemogmmmumeofmxdypmﬁdedtheskﬂ}smdtahﬁngnmryfmﬂaehjmd
enuployee to be gainfully employed on a reasonably continuous basis in an occupation that
is reasonably available in this state.
(®) Completion of a 2-year or 4-year program at a college or university which resulted
in a degree.
© Compl:ﬁonofanyporﬁonofapmg:mnforag:ad;nte’sdegreeatacoﬂegeor
(@) Skills acquired in previous employment, including those acquired during an
apprenticeship or a program for on-the-job training.
The skills set forth in paragraphs (a) to (d), inclusive, must have been acquired within the
preceding 7 years and be compatible with the physical limitations of the injured employee
to be considered existing marketable skills.

Sec. 27. NRS 616C.560 is hereby amended to read as follows:

170



616C.560 1. A program for vocational rehabilitation developed pursuant to
subsection 3 of NRS 616C.555 may be extended:
(a) Without condition or limitation, by the insurer at his sole discretion; or
(b) In accordance with this section if:
6y Ihchjmedemployeemakmawriﬁenmqustmmdﬂ:epmg:amvﬁthh30
daysaﬁerherweivww;ittcnnoﬁﬁmﬁonthatheiseﬁgible for vocational rehabilitation
services; and
(2) There are exceptional circumstances which make it unlikely that the injured
enﬁployee will obtain suitable gainful employment as a result of vocational rehabilitation
which is limited to the period for which be is eligible.
An msurer’s determination to grant or deny an extension pursuant to paragraph (2) may not
be gppealed.
2. If an injured employee bas incurred a permanent physical impairment of less than
11 percent: |
(@) The total length of the program, including any extension, must not exceed 1 year.
(b) “Exceptional circumstances™ shall be deemed to exist for the purposes of paragraph
(b) of subsection 1, ift
(1) The injured employee lacks work experience, training, education or other

transferable skills for an occupation which be is physically capable of performing; or
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2) Sevaephysinlmﬂicﬁomasarsultofthehdmﬁialinjmyhavebeenhnpomd
by a physician which significantly limit the employee’s occupational opportunities.

3. Ifmhjmedemployeehasinclmedapemanemphysidh:mainnemofllpemem
or more:

(@ Ihetqmlleng&ﬁtbepmgmn,inchdingmyenmsion,mnstnotexoeedZM

(®) “Exoepﬁonaldrcmsm”shaﬂbedeanedmeﬁstforthepmpossofpamgraph
(b) of subsection 1, if the injured employee has suffered:

(1) The total and permanent loss of sight of both eyes;

(2) The loss by separation of a leg at or above the knee:

(3) The loss by separation of 2 hand at or above the wrist;

(4) An injury to the head or spine which resuits in permanent and complete paralysis
ofbgihlegs,boﬂ;annsoralegandanann;

() An injury to the head which results in a severe cognitive functional impairment
which may be established by a nationally recognized form of objective psychological
testing;

©) The loss by separation of an arm at or above the elbow and the loss by separation
of a leg at or above the knee;

(7) An injury consisting of second or third degree burns on 50 percent or more of the
body, both hands or the face;

(8) A total bilateral loss of hearing;
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® Thetotallosorsigniﬁmtandpennanentimpainneniofspwch;or

(10) A permanent physical impairment of 50 percent or more determined pursuant to
NRS 616C.490, if the severity of the impairment limits the injured employee’s gainful
enq:loymemmvocaﬁmsﬂ:atm'epﬁmaﬁlyﬁneﬂechnlanquuirealmgerpmgmnof
education.

4. Theinsmershaﬂ[mail]deliveracopyofilsdecisiongranﬁngordenyingan
extension to the injured empioyee and the employer. Except as otherwise provided in this
section, the decision shall be deemed to be a final determination of the insurer for the
purposes of NRS 616C.315.

Sec. 28. NRS 616C.590 is hereby amended to read as follows:

616C.590 1. Except as otherwise provided in this section, an injured employee is not
eligible for vocational rehabilitation services, unless:

(2) The treating physician or chiropractor approves the retnm of the injured empioyee to
work but imposes permanent restrictions that prevent the injured employee from returning
to the position that he held at the time of his injury;

(b) The injured employee’s empioyer does not offer employment that the empioyee is
eligible for considering the restrictions imposed pursuant to paragraph (a); and

(¢) The injured employee is unable to return to gainful employment at 2 gross wage that
is equal to or greater than 80 percent of the gross wage that he was eaming at the time of
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2. Ifthetaﬁngphysicianorchimpraaorhnposespcnnanemrs&icﬁonsonthe
injured empioyee for the purposes of paragraph (2) of subsection 1, be shall specify in

@ Ihemedicanyobjecﬁveﬁndingsmonwhichhisdetenninaﬁonisbased;and

(b) A detailed description of the restrictions.
Theh&aﬁngphyﬁdmm@opm@aﬂ{maﬂ]ddﬂwawpyof&eﬁndingsmdthe
description of the restrictions to the insurer.

3. Ifthereisaquesﬁonastowhethertheresuicﬁonshnposednponthehjmed
emi)loyeeare permanent, the employee may receive vocational rehabilitation services until
a final determination concerning the duration of the restrictions is made.

4, Vowﬁomlmhabﬂﬁaﬁonserﬁcesmmtmseassoonastbehjmedemployeeism
longgreﬁgiblefortheservicspmsuanttombwcﬁonl.

5. Aninjmedemployeeismtenﬁﬂedtovomﬁomlrehahﬂitaﬁonservic&ssolely
bewrseﬂ:eposiﬁontbatheheldattheﬁmeofhisinjuryismlongetavaﬂable.

6. Aninjmedemployeeorhisdependentsarenotenﬁﬂedtoaccmeorbepddany
incarcerated.

7. Any injured employee eligible for compensation other than accident benefits may
not be paid those benefits if he refuses counseling, training or other vocational

rehabilitation services offered by the insurer. Except as otherwise provided in NRS
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616B.185, an injured employeeshaﬂbedecmedtohavereﬁzsedcotmseﬁng,uainingand
other vocational rehabilitation services while he is incarcerated.

8. Ifaninmrermnotlomeaniniuredemployeeforwhomithasorda'edvocmional
mhabﬂimﬁmserﬁes,&ehsmermayclosehischhnmdaysaﬁmthemm
thﬂiheemployeemnotbelo&edThehsmermmtmakearmombleeﬁonmlom
the empioyee.

9. lherwppwanceofﬂ:emjmedemployeeaﬁcrhisclaimhasbemcloseddoesm
automatically reinstate his eligibility for vocational rehabilitation benefits. If the employee
vﬁshesmreesmbﬁshhiseﬁglbﬂhyfmsuchbemﬁs,hemustﬂeaMMappﬁmﬁmwhh
thehsummmhsmehisclaimlhehsmershaﬂmhsmeﬂ:eemployee’sclaimifgmd
cause is shown for the employee’s absence.

Sec. 29. NRS 616D 200 is hereby amended to read as follows:

616D200 1. i the manager finds that an employer within the provisions of NRS
616B.633:

@) Hasfaﬂedmprovideandsecmecompenﬂﬁonasreqnﬁredbyﬁxetemsofchapm
616A to 616D, inclusive, of NRS; or

(b) Has provided and secured such compensation but has fafled to maintain that
compensation,
heshaﬂmakeadeteminaﬁon!hereonmd[may]dmgetheemployeranamomnofnot

momthanthreeﬁmesmepmmimsthatwomdotherwisehavebeenowedm&xesystem'
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pmsuanttoﬁ:eteunsofchapmGIGAto616D,inc1usive,ofNRSforthepexiodthatthe
employerwasdoingbnshessmthiSSBIeWhhompmﬁding,semﬁngmmainmiﬁngthm
compensation, but not to exceed 6 years.

2. Themanagershaﬂ[maﬂ]delivaacopyofhisdaminaﬁonwtheemployer.An
employerwhoisaggﬁevedbyﬁxemanager’sdetemdnaﬁonmayappw]ﬁomthe
determination pursuant to subsection 2 of NRS 616D.220.

3. AnyanployerwithinthepmvisionsofNRS616B.633whofaﬂsmpmvide,secme
ormaintaincompensmionasreqniredbythetennsofchapters616Ato6l6D,inch:sive,of
NRS,is:

(2) For the first offense, guilty of a gross misdemeanor.

) Forawcondorsubseqmoﬂ'ensemmmiﬂedﬁﬂﬁn?ymsaﬁertbe-previons
oﬁgnsqgtﬂtypfafdony,puﬁshablebyhnpdsomemhﬂxesmtepﬁmfmadeﬁnﬁe
texmofnotl&thanlymrnormoret’aanSywsorbyaﬁneofnotmorethanSl0,000,or
bybothﬁneandhnpﬁsonmenLApexsonwhoissenmnwdtoﬁnpﬁsonmembeoomw
eligibleforparolewhmhehasservedone-ﬂﬁzdofthedeﬁnitetenﬁforwhichhehasbem
sem&lssmyaedhmdmmhismmeZWOfNR&
AnyCﬁminalpenaltyhnpowdmnstbeinaddﬁiontotheamomtchargedpmsuamw
subsection 1.

Sec. 30. NRS 616D.220 is hereby amended to read as follows:
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616D220 1. If the manager finds that any employer or any empioyee, officer or
agent of any employer has knowingly:

@ Madea&lsestaxememwhashaowinglyfaﬂedmreponamateﬁalfactcomeming
the amount of payroll upon which a premium is based: or

®) Msr;epr&sentedtheclassiﬁmﬁonordnﬁ&sofanemployee,
heshaﬂmakea@emﬁ:gﬁmﬂmeonandclnrgetheemployer’sawomanamomteqnal
mﬂneeﬁm&sthemmnoftheprenﬁumdue.lhemamgetshaﬂ[maﬂ]delherawpyof
his determination to the employer.

.2. Anemployerwhoisaggﬁevedbythemanager’sdetanﬁnaﬁonmayappdﬁomthe
deteminaﬁonbyﬁ]ingarequmahwhg.lhemqmmbeﬁledwidﬁnwdays
aﬁerﬂ:edatemwhichampyofﬁedetemﬁm&mwas[maﬂed]deﬁvaedmthem;ﬂoyer.
Thgmmgershaﬂholdah&ﬁngwmﬁn%d_aysaﬁerhemivsthereqmlhe
determination of the manager made pursuant to a hearing is a final decision for the
purposes of judicial review.

3. A person who knowingly:

(a)Maksaﬁ]sestzﬁemMorrept&semaﬁonorwhoknowinglyfaﬂstotepona
material fact concerning the amount of payroll upon which a premium is based; or

(b) Misrepresents the classification or duties of an employee,
is guilty of 2 gross misdemeanor. Any criminal penalty imposed must be in addition to the

amount charged pursuant to subsection 1.
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Sec. 31. NRS 616D.440 is hereby amended to read as follows:

616D.440 1. An insurer may withhold any payment due a provider of heaith care
pursuant to the provisions of chapters 616A to 616D, inchusive, or chapter 617 of NRS, in
whole or in part, upon receipt of reliable evidence that the provider of heaith care
| knowingly made a faise statement or representation or knowingly concealed a material fact
mobminthepaymmtThginsmermaywhhholdmhapaymmﬁﬂmmﬁxﬂnoﬁfyingthe
provider of health care of its intention to do so.

2. The insurer shall, within 5 days after withholding such 2 payment, send notice of
ﬁéwithholdingbﬂxepmviderofh&l&mbywﬁﬁedmﬂ[.]wdecﬁordc
transmission. The notice must:

() Set forth the factual basis for the withholding, but need not disclose specific

(b) Indicate that the payment is being withheld pursuant to the provisions of this
section;

() Indicate that the payment is being withheld temporarily, as set forth in subsection 4,
and describe the circumstances under which the withholding will be terminated;

(d) Specify the charge submitted by the provider of health care for which the payment is

(e) Notify the provider of health care of his right to appeal the withholding.
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3. A provider of health care may appeal the decision of the insurer to withhold
payment to an appeals officer pursuant to NRS 616C_360.

4. Any payment withheld pursuant to the provisions of this section must be made o
the provider of health care if:

(@) The insurer or the attomey general determines that there is insufficient evidence to
pmvethatﬂxepmﬁderofheahhmreknowinglymdeafalsesﬂtemeﬂmmpr&enﬁﬁmm
knowingly concealed a material fact to obtain the payment; or

(b) A final judgment or decree was rendered in favor of the provider of health care in a
criminal proceeding arising out of the alleged misconduct.

Sec. 32. NRS 617.344 is hereby amended to read as follows:

617344 1. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 2, an employee who has
hgmedmoqq:pdionaldis&semmdwisheszorewvammemaﬁmpmmzhe
provisions of this chapter, or a person acting on his behalf, shall , ar the time of the -
employee’s first medical examination jfor his occupational disease, file a claim for
compensation with the finsurer] physiciar or chiropractor who conducts the examination.
Iheenmlayeemmtsubnﬁttoameﬁwlmdnmionfwthmdiseasemdﬁleadabnfm
compensation within 90 days after the employee has knowledge of the disability and its

relationship to his employment.
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2. Inthe event of the death of the employee resulting from the occupational disease, 2
dependent of the employee, or a person acting on his behalf, shall file a claim for
compensation with the insurer within 1 year after the death of the empioyee.

3. The claim for compensation must be filed on 2 form prescribed by the
administrator. The form must include a provision which, if signed by the employee,
authorizes the release of any medical or other information related to the claim to the
insurer, the administrator, the employee’s emplayer and any provider of health care who
provides treatment to the employee.

Sec. 33. NRS 617.346 is hereby amended to read as follows:

617346 1. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 2, an employee or, in the
event of the death of fthe employee, his dependent.] an employee, a dependent, who does
mr,ﬁleamticgofanocapﬁamldiseasepwmzttoNRSﬂ?.Sﬁandadaimfor
compensation pursuant to 617.344 is barred from recovering compensation pursuant to the
provisions of this chapter . [if he fails to file a notice of an occupational disease pursuant to
NRS 617.342 or a claim for compeasation pursuant to NRS 617.344.]

2. An insurer may excuse the failure to file a notice of an occupational disease or
claim for compensation pursuant to the provisions of this section if:

(2) The employee’s disease or another cause beyond his control prevented him from

providing the notice or the claim;
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®) Thefaﬂmewasmsedbytheemployee’sordependem’snﬁstakemigmmceof
fact or of law;

(c)Thefaihrewaswmedbythephysimlormenﬂlhnbﬂigroftheemphyeemﬁm
dependent; or

(d) The faiture was caused by frand, misrepresentation or deceit.

Sec. 34. NRS 617.352 is hereby amended to read as follows:

617352 1. A treating physician or chiropractor shail, within 3 working days after he
ﬁrst{mms]exmdnesmmployeewhohashmedanoccnpaﬁonddimwmplaemd
[Iﬁail to] file with the employer of the employee and fto] the employer’s insurer, fal the
clahnforwmpenwim[.]ﬁledwﬁhdzepimidmmcﬁropmdarbythea@lme
pursuant to NRS 617.344. If the employer is 2 self-insured employer, the treating physician
ordnropractorshall [maﬂ]ﬁleﬂ:eclaimforcompenmﬁon[to]wiﬂztheemployer’sthird-
pmtyadmiﬁm;lfthepigﬁdmwch&opraawﬁlatheclabuﬁrwmonby
electronic transmission, he shall upon reguest, mail to the insurer or third-party
administrator the form that comtains the original signatures of the employee and the
Physician or chiropractor. The form must be mailed within 7 days after receiving such a
request.

2 [Aclaﬁnformnmensaﬁonrequiredbysubsecﬁonlmnstbeonafompmcibed
by the administrator.
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3] If a claim for compensation is accompanied by a certificate of disability, the
certificate mnst include a description of any limitation or restrictions on the employee’s
ability to work.

4] 3. Each physician, chiropractor and medical facility that treats employees who
- havehcmedomupaﬁonﬂdismegmhm,mﬁd-pmyadmﬁmm@hm,
mmﬁﬁﬁmwmﬁmmmdroﬁmamﬁdmmpbof&ﬁmsmwby
the administrator for filing a claim for compensation.

[5] 4 The administrator shall impose an administrative fine of not more than $1,000
agéinstaphysicianorchiropmctorforeachviolaﬁonofsnbsecﬁon 1.

Sec. 35. NRS 617354 is hereby amended to read as follows:

617354 1. Within 6 working days afier the receipt of a claim for compensation from
a physician or chiropractor, an employer shall complete and fmail to] file with his insurer or
thkd-meadmﬁﬁmmormemployu’sreponofhdusuidhﬁmymompmionddim;

2. The report must:

(2) Be on a form prescribed by the administrator;

(b) Be signed by the employer or his designes;

(c) Contain specific answers to all questions required by the regulations of the
department; and
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(d) Be accompanied by a statement of the wages of the employee if the claim for
mmpensaﬁonrweivedﬁomtheumﬁngphysidanmchiropraaorindimthatthe
employee is expected to be off work for 5 days or more.

3. An employee of the system shall not complete the report required by subsection 1 or

(@) Isnot in business;

(®) HasnotbeenlowedbythesystemwiﬂﬁnSWOﬂdngdaysaﬁerreoeiptofaclahn
f&mmpmsﬁomm

(c) Refuses to compiete the report.

4. 4An employer who files the report required by subsection 1 by electromic
transmission shall, upon reguest, mailtotheimurerorthird-pwtyadminim-atorthefarm
timaomabmthearigimlsigmtweoftheemplmrorhisdesignee. The form must be
mailed within 7 days after receiving such a request.

5. Theadmhﬁsnatorshaﬂimposeanadminismﬁveﬁneofnotmorethanﬁ,ooo
against an employer for each violation of this section.

Sec. 36. NRS 617.356 is hereby amended to read as foliows:

617356 Aninmnersha]laweptordenymponm'biﬁtyforcompensaﬁonlmderthis
chapwrwhhm30woﬂdngdaysaﬁer[chhns]aclabnfmwmpenmﬁm[m}isreceived

pursuant to fboth NRS 617.344 and] NRS 617.352.
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Sec. 37. NRS 617.358 is hereby amended to read as follows:

617358 1. Anemploy&mﬁsdepmdmmmmtaﬁﬂedwrmﬁewmpeMOn
pmsuanttotheprovisionsofﬁxischapterml&ss[ﬂze]:

(@ Iheeml@eesubmmmamecﬁcdmmﬁonfarmocaqmmndd&methm‘
mmafmdinthemmeoflﬁse@la)mw&iandays@aﬂwemoneehas
bwwledgeofthedzkabilitymzdimrelaﬁomthtoh'smlaymm:and

6] Iheanployeeorhisdependemsmbﬁshbyaprepondemceofﬁaeevidmceﬂm
- theemployee’soccupaﬁonaldismearoseoutofandintheoomseofhisemployment.

.2. IfﬂleemployeeﬁlsanoﬁceofanoccupaﬁonaldisasepmnanttoNRS617.342
aﬂerhisemploymemhasbem&minatedformymon,thaaisambuﬂablemmpﬁm
ﬂmﬂ:coccupaﬁonaldimsedidnmaiseomofmdinﬂ:emmeofhisempldymm

Sec. 38. NRS 617.401 is hereby amended to read as follows:

617401 1. An employee may receive compensation from the uninsured employers’
claim fund if:

@ Hewashiredinthisstamorheisregulaﬂyemployedinﬂﬁsstate;

®) Heconnacsanoccupﬁonaldisaseasaresu]tofwoﬂcpeﬁormedinﬂﬁsstate;

© [Heﬁlesa]Hisc]aimforcompenmionzkﬁledudththesystempmsuantmNRS
[617.344;] 617.352;

(d) He files a written notice with the division; and
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(2) He makes an irrevocabie assignment to the division of 2 right to be subrogated to the
rights of the employee pursuant to NRS 616C215.

2. If the system receives a claim pursuant to subsection 1, the system shall
immediately:

(3) Notify the employer of the claim;

(b) Deliver to the claimant any forms necessary to make 2 claim pursuant to this
section; and

(©) Notify the division of the claim by sending a copy of the claim, any evidence
regarding the claim and anry evidence indicating that the employer was uninsured.

3. For the purposes of this section, the employer has the burden of proving that he
provided mandatory coverage for occupational diseases for the employee or that he was not
re,giﬁredtomgimainindnstﬁalizmn'ancefortheemployee.

4. Any employer who has failed to provide mandatory coverage required by the
provisions of this chapter is Hable for all payments made on his behalf, including, but not
Iimited to, any benefits, administrative costs or attorney’s fees paid from the uninsured
employers’ claim fund or incurred by the division.

S. The division:

(@) May recover from the employer the payments made by the division that are
described in subsection 4 and any accrued interest by bringing a civil action in district

court.
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(®) In any civil action brought against the employer, is not required to prove that
negligent conduct by the employer was the cause of the occupational disease.

(c) May enter into 2 contract with any person to assist in the collection of any Habikity
of an uninsured employer.

(d) In lieu of a civil action, may enter into an agreement or settiement regarding the
collection of anyﬁabi]itypf an uninsured employer.

6. The division shali-

(@) Determine whether the employer was insured within 30 days after receiving notice
oftheclaimﬁ‘omtheemployee.

(b) Assign the claim to the system for administration of the claim, payment of benefits
and reimbursement of costs of administration and benefits paid to the system. -

Upon determining that a claim is invalid, the system shall notify the claimant, the named
employer and the division that the claim will not be assigned for benefits from the
mnimsured employers’ claim fund.

7. Any party aggrieved by a decision regarding the adminjstration of an assigned claim
or 2 decision made by the division or by the system regarding any claim made pursuant to
this section may appeal that decision within 60 days after the decision is rendered to the
hearings division of the department of administration in the manner provided by NRS

616C.305 and 616C.315 to 616C_385, inclusive.
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8. All imsurers shall bear a proportionate amount of a claim made pursuant to this
chapter, and are entitled to a proportionate amount of any collection made pursuant to this
section as an offset against future liabilities.

9. An uninsured employer is iiable for the imterest on any amount paid on his claims
from the uninsured empioyers’ claim fimd. The interest must be calculated at a rate equal to
theprhnemteatthelargwbankmNevada,asasceminedbythcmmmisionerof
financial institutions, on January 1 or July 1, as the case may be, immediately preceding the
dateoftheclaim,plm3pacengcompomdedmoﬂy,&ommedmmeclahnispdd
éom!heﬁmdunﬁlpaymemisrweivedbymedivisionﬁ'omﬁmemployer.

10. Attorney’s fees recoverable by the division pursuant to this section must be:

(@) Ifa private attomey is retained by the division, paid at the usnal and customary rate
for that attorney.

(b) If the attorney is an employee of the division, paid at the rate established by
reguiations adopted by the division.

Any money collected must be deposited to the uninsured employers” claim fumd.

11. In addition to any other Habilities provided for in this section, the administrator
may impose an administrative fine of not more than $10,000 against an employer if the
employer fails to provide mandatory coverage required by the provisions of this chapter.

Sec. 39. Section 1 of chapter 580, Stattes of Nevada 1995, at page 1997, is hereby

amended to read as follows:
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Section 1. NRS 612.265 is hereby amended to read as follows:

612265 1. Except as otherwise provided in this section, mfornmation
obtainedﬁomanyemployh:gmitorpersénpmsmmmtheadnﬁnisuaﬁonof&is
chapter and any determination as to the benefit rights of any person is confidential
and may not be disclosed or be open to public inspection in any manner which
wouldrevmldxgperson’soremploying umit’s identity.

2. Any claimant or his legal representative is entitied to information from the
records of the division, to the extent necessary for the proper presentation of his
claim in any proceeding pursuant to this chapter. A claimant or an employing unit
is not entitled to information from the records of the division for any other
purpose.

3. Subject to such restrictions as the administrator may by regulation
prescribe, the information obtained by the division may be made available to:

(@) Any agency of this or any other state or any federal agency charged with
the administration or enforcement of fan] laws relating to upemployment
compensation , flaw,] public assistance fiaw, workman’s] , workers’ compensation
or labor flaw,] and industrial relations, or the maintenance of a system of pubtic
employment offices;

(b) Any state or local agency for the enforcement of child support;

(¢) The Internal Revenue Service of the Department of the Treasury;
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(d) The department of taxation; and

(e) The state contractors’ board in the performance of its duties to enforce the
provisions of chapter 624 of NRS.

Information obtained in connection with the administration of the employment
service may be made available to persons or agencies for purposes appropriate to
the operation of a public employment service or a public assistance program.

4. Upon written request made by a public officer of a local government, the
administrator shall furnish from the records of the division the name, address and
place of employment of any person listed in the records of empioyment of the
division. The request must set forth the social security number of the person about
whom the request is made and contain a statement signed by proper authority of
thelqc;algovemmenteerﬁfyingthattherequstismadetoaﬂowthepmper
authority to enforce a law to recover a debt or obligation owed to the local
government. The information obtained by the local government is confidential and
may not be used or disclosed for any purpose other than the collection of a debt or
obligation owed to that local government. The administrator may charpe a
reasonable fee for the cost of providing the requested information.

5. The administrator may publish or otherwise provide information on the
names of employers, their addresses, their type or class of business or industry,

and the approximate mmber of employees employed by each such employer, if
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the information released will assist unemployed persons to obtain employment or
will be generally useful in developing and diversifying the economic interests of
this state. Upon request by a state agency which is able to demonstrate that its
imended use of the information will benefit the residents of this state, the
administrator may, in addition to the information listed in this subsection, disclose
the number of employees employed by each employer and the total wages paid by
each employer. The administrator may charge a fee to cover the actual costs of any
administrative expenses relating to the disclosure of this information to a state
agency. The administrator may require the state agency to certify in writing that
the agency will take all actions necessary to maintain the confidentiality of the
information and prevent its unauthorized disclosure.

6.:._Upmrequ&aﬂxerefor1headmixﬁsuatorshaﬂfunﬁshm§nyagmcyofﬂze
United States charged with the administration of public works or assistance
through public empioyment, and may fumnish to any state agency similarly
charged, the name, address, ordinary occupation and employment status of each
recipient of benefits and the recipient’s rights to further benefits pursuant to this
chapter.

7. To further a current criminal investigation, the chief executive officer of
any law enforcement agency of this state may submit a written request to the

administrator that he firnish, from the records of the division, the name, address
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and place of emplo&mentof any person listed in the records of employment of the
division. The request must set forth the social security number of the person about
‘whom the request is made and contain 2 statement signed by the chief executive
officer certifying that the request is made to forther a criminal investigation
currently being conducted by the agency. Upon receipt of such a request, the
: athninisuatorshgﬂﬁnnishﬂxeinfomaﬁonrequsted.Hemaychargeafeeto
cover the actual costs of any related administrative expenses.

8. In addition to the provisions of subsection 5, the administrator shall
provide lists containing the names and addresses of employers, the number of
employees employedbywchemployerandthetomlwagapaidby&éhemployer
to the department of taxation, upon request, for use in verifying retums for the
business tax. The administrator may charge a fee to cover the actual costs of any
related administrative expenses.

9. Each insurer shall submit to the administrator a list containing the name of
each person who received benefits pursuant to chapters 616A to 616D, inclusive,
or 617 of NRS during the preceding month and request that the administrator
compare the information so provided with the records of the division regarding
persons claiming benefits pursuant to chapter 612 of NRS for the same period.
The information submitted by an insurer must be in a form determined by the

administrator and must contain the social security number of each such person.

191



Upon receipt of fsuch a] the request, the administrator shall make such a
comparison and fprovide to the insurer a list containing the name, address and
social security mumber of each person who appears,] , if it appears from the
information submitted [, to be] that a person is simultaneously claiming benefits
under chapter 612 of NRS and under chapters 616A to 616D, inclusive, or 617 of
NRS [] . the administrator shall notify the autorney general or any other
appropriate law enforcement agency. Upon receipt of a request therefor, the
administrator shall provide to the insurer 2 copy of the form used by any person
whose name appears on the list to claim benefits under chapter 612 of NRS. The
administrator shall charge a fee to cover the actual costs of any related
administrative expenses. The insurer shall use the information obtained pursuant
to this subsection only to further a cumrent investigation. The insurer shafl not
discl;:setheinfonnaﬁonforauyoﬂxerpurpose.Asusedin&ﬁsmMecﬁon,
“msurer” has the meaning ascribed to it in NRS 616A.270.

10. The administrator may request the Comptrolier of the Currency of the
United States to canse an examination of the correctness of any retumn or report of
any national banking association rendered pursuant to the provisions of this
chapter, and may in cormection with the request transmit any such report or return
to the Comptrolier of the Currency of the United States as provided in Section

3305(c) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954.
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11. If any employee or member of the board of review or the administrator or
any employee of the administrator, in violation of the provisions of this section,
discloses information obtained from any employing unit or person in the
administration of this chapter, or if any person who bas obtained a list of
appﬁmrsforwork,mofclahnmzsorrecipiemsofbeneﬁtspmmmthis
chapwrmmpgmhstheuseoftheﬁstforanypoﬁﬁmlpmpose,heisglﬁhyofa
gross misdemeanor.

12 Al letters, reports or commumications of any kind, oral or written, from
theemployeroremployeetomhotherortothgdivisionoranyofitsagmts,
mprsentaﬁvesoremployesaepﬁvﬂegedandmzstmtbeﬂxesubjectmaﬁeror
basisformylawsuitifﬂzeleﬂer,reportoroomnmnimﬁoniswﬁﬁm,m
deﬁve;edorprepmedpmsnammﬂ:ereqnirememsofmisdmpter._

Sec. 40. Section 54 of chapter 580, Statutes of Nevada 1995, at page 2011, is hereby
amended to read as follows:

Sec. 54. NRS 616B.012 is hereby amended to read as follows:

616B.012 1. Except as otherwise provided in this section and in NRS
616B.015, 616B.021 and 616C.205, information obtained from amy insurer,
employeroremployeeisconﬁdenﬁalandmaynotbedisclosedorbeopento

public inspection in any manner which would reveal the person’s identity.
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2. Any claimant or his legal representative is entitled to information from the
records of the insurer, to the extent necessary for the proper presentation of a
claim in any proceeding under chapters 616A to 616D, inclusive, of NRS.

3. An insurer, the administrator, an employer or a provider of health care is
entitied to any medical or other mformation released by an injured employee
pursuant to subsection 3 of NRS 616C.020 and subsection 3 of NRS 617.344.

4. The division and administrator are entitled to information from the records
of the insurer which is necessary for the performance of their duties. The
[manager] administrator may, by regulation, prescribe the manper in which
otherwise confidential information may be made available to:

(a) Any agency of this or any other state charged with the administration or
enforq:memafhwsrelnbzgmindnstﬁalinsmanoe,memploymeMwmpMOn,
public assistance or labor and industrial relations;

(b) Any state or local agency for the enforcement of child support;

(¢) The Internal Revenue Service of the Department of the Treasury;

(d) The department of taxation; and

(e) The state contractors’ board in the performance of its duties to enforce the

provisions of chapter 624 of NRS.

194



. Information obtained in comnection with the administration of a program of
industrial insurance may be made available to persons or agencies for purposes
appropriate to the operation of a program of industrial insurance.

5. Upon written request made by a public officer of a local government, the
manager shall furnish from the records of the insurer, the name, address and place
ofemploymemqfanypmsonﬁstedinthemrdsofthem.memqmmnst
set forth the social security number of the person about whom the request is made
and contain 2 statement signed by proper authority of the local government
certifying that the request is made to aliow the proper authority to enforce a law to
recover a debt or obligation owed to the local government. The information
obtained by the local government is confidential and may not be used or disclosed
for any purpose other than the collection of a debt or obligation owed to that local
government. The manager may charge a reasonable fee for the cost of providing
the requested information.

6. To further 2 current criminal investigation, the chief executive officer of
any law enforcement agency of this state may submit a written request to the
[manager] administrator that he furnish from the records of the insurer, the name,
address and place of employment of any person listed in the records of the insurer.
The request must set forth the social security number of the person about whom

themquestismadeandcomainasmemenisignedbyﬂ:echiefexecuﬁveofﬁcer
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cerﬁfyingthattherequﬁtismademﬁnﬂ:eracrhninalinvsﬁgaﬁonamenﬁy
being conducted by the agency. Upon receipt of a request, the [manager]
a&nbukvmorshaﬂfunﬁshtbehfomaﬁonreqnested.Hemaychmgearasomble
fee to cover any related administrative expenses.

7. The [manager] edministrator shall provide lists containing the names and
addresses of employers, the number of employees employed by each employer
and the total wages paid by each employer to the department of taxation, upon
requoritsnseinvaiﬂingmforthcbusinssmx.lhe[mger]
administrator may charge a reasonable fee to cover any related administrative
expenses.

8. If the imanager or] administrator, any empioyee of the fmanager.] division
or thecamzzmaner in violation of this section, discloses mfomanon obtained
from files of claimants or policyholders, or if any person who has obtained a list of
claimants or policyholders under chapters 616A to 616D, inclusive, of NRS uses
or permits the use of the list for any political purposes, he is guilty of a gross
misdemeanor.

9. All letters, reports or communications of any kind, oral or written, from the
insurer, or any of its agents, representatives or employees are privileged and must
not be the subject matter or basis for any lawsuit if the letter, report or
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commmimﬁoniswﬁtten,sengdeﬁveredorpmpmedpmsaammthereqlﬁremem
of chapters 616A to 616D, inclusive, of NRS.
Sec. 41 Section 55 of chapter 580, Statutes of Nevada 1995, at page 2012, is hereby
amended to read as follows:

Sec. 55. NRS 616B.018 is hereby amended to read as follows:

616B.018 1. The administrator shall establish 2 method of indexing claims
forcompensaﬁontbatwillmakeinfonnzﬁoncomemingthzclaﬁnmofone
insurer available to other insurers.

2. Every [self-insured employer, association of self-insured public or private
employersandﬂ:esystan]mshaﬂpmvideinfomaﬁonasrequiredbyﬂm
administrator for establishing and maintaining the index of claims.

3.. If an employee files a claim for compensation, or if a claim for
compensation is filed on behalf of an empioyee, the insurer is entitled to receive
ﬁ'omtheadmhﬁsuatoraﬁstofﬂ:epﬁorclaimsoftheemployee.lftheinsna
desires to inspect the files of another insurer that are related to one or more of the
prior claims, he must provide the other insurer with a copy of the claim for
compensation filed by or on behalf of the employee.

4. Any information obtained from the index of claims must be admitted into
evidenceinanyhmﬁngbeforeanapp&lsoﬁcer,aha:ingoﬁioerorthe
administrator.
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5. The division may assess and collect a reasonable fee for its services
provided pursuant to this section. The fee must be payable monthly or at such
_ other intervals as determined by the administrator.
Sec. 42. Section 56 of chapter 580, Statutes of Nevada 1995, at page 2012, is hereby
amended to read as follows:

Sec. 56. NRS 616B.021 is hereby amended to read as follows:

616B.021 1. An insurer shall provide access to the files of claims in its
offices.

2. A file is available for inspection during reguiar business hours by the
employee or his designated agent, the employer or his designated agent and the
administrator or his designated agent.

3. . Upon request, the insurer shall make copies of anything in the file and may
charge a reasonable fee for this service. Copies of materials in the file which are
requested by the administrator or his designated agent, or the Nevada attomey for
injured workets or his designated agent must be provided free of charge.

4. Except as otherwise provided in NRS 616C.235, if a claim has been closed
for at Jeast 1 year, the insurer may microphotograph or film any of its records
relating to that claim. The microphotographs or films must be placed in
convenient and accessible files . |, and provision must be made for preserving,

examining and using the records.
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5. This section does not require the}

5. The administrator shall adopt regulations concerning the:

(a) Maimtenance of records in a file on current or closed claims;

(b) Preservation, examination and wuse of records which have been
microphotographed or filmed by an insurer; and

(c) Location of a file on a closed claim.

6. This section does not reguire an insurer to allow inspection or reproduction
of material regarding which a legal privilege against disclosure has been
conferred.

Sec. 43. Section 104 of chapter 580, Statutes of Nevada 1995, at page 2032, is hereby
amended to read as follows:

Sec. 104. NR8616D.200isherebyamendedtomdasfollcv_vs:

616D.200 1. I the jmanager] administrator finds that an employer within
the provisions of NRS 616B.633:

(a) Has failed to provide and secure compensation as required by the terms of
chapters 616A to 616D, inclusive, of NRS; or

(b) Has provided and secured such compensation but has failed to maintain
that compensation,
he shall make a determination thereon based on any information that is within his

possession or that may come within his possession and charge the employer an
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amount of not more than three times the premiums that would otherwise have
beenovéedtothesystemifhehadbeenmedbythesystempm:amtoﬁze
terms of chapters 616A to 616D, inclusive, of NRS for the period that the
employer was doing business in this state without providing, securing or
maipﬂiningthatmmpenmﬁon,bﬁnotmexowd6ymwmoneywﬂeaedby
the administrator pursuant to this subsection must be deposited into the uninsured
employers’ claim fund.

2. [The manager shall deliver a copy of his determination to the employer.] If
the manager is not satisfied with the amount of a premium required to be paid to
the system by any person, he may compute and determine the amount required to
be paid on the basis of any information within his possession or which may come
mtohzspossesnorz. Oneormaredetenninaziamofadeﬁciemymbemadeof
the amownt due for one or more periods.

3. Except for a determination made pursuant to subsection 1, a notice of a
determination of a deficiency issued by the manager must be served personally or
mailed within 3 years after the last day of the calendar month following the period
Jfor which the amount that is proposed to be determined is due. An employer who
is aggrieved by fthe manager’s] a determination made pursuant to this section or
NRS 360.300 may appeal from the determination pursuant to sabsection 2 of NRS

616D.220.
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BB.] 4 Any employer within the provisions of NRS 616B.633 who fiils to
pmvide,semneormaimaincompenmﬁonasreqmﬁmdbyﬂnetemsofcbapte:s
616A to 616D, inclusive, of NRS, is:

(@) For the first offense, guilty of a gross misdemeanor.

(®) For a second or subsequent offense committed within 7 years after the
previousoﬁense,guiltyofafdony,punistablebyﬁnpﬁsonmenththestate
pﬁsonforadeﬁnitctennofnotlesthanlywnormoreﬁnnSymorbyaﬁne
ofnotmorethanSl0,000,orbybothﬁncandimpﬁsonment.Apersonwhois
sentenced to imprisonment becomes eligible for parole when he has served one-
third of the definite term for which he has been sentenced, less any credit eamed
to reduce his sentence pursuant to chapter 209 of NRS.

Any criminal penalty imposed must be in addition to the amount charged pursuant
to subsection 1.
"Sec. 44. Section 106 of chapter 580, Statutes of Nevada 1995, at page 2033, is hereby
amended to read as follows:

Sec. 106. NRS 616D.220 is hereby amended to read as follows:

616D.220 1. If the [manager] administrator finds that any employer or any
employee, officer or agent of any employer has knowingly:

(2) Made a false statement or. has knowingly failed to report 2 material fact

concerning the amount of payroll upon which a premium is based; or
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(b) Misrepresented the classification or duties of an employee,
heshallmakeadetenninaﬁonthereonandclmgetheemployer’s account an
amount equal to three times the amount of the premium due. The {manager]
administrator shall deliver a copy of his determination to the employer.

2. An employer who is aggrieved by the [manager’s] administrator’s
detenninaﬁmmgyapp&l&omthsdetemﬁnaﬁmbyﬁﬁngamqustforahazing.
The request must be filed within 30 days after the date on which a copy of the
determination was delivered to the employer. The [manager] administrator shail
hold 2 hearing within 30 days afier he receives the request. The jdetermination]
decision of the [manager] administrator made pursuant to a hearing is a final
decision for the purposes of judicial review. The amount of the determination as
Jinally decided by the administrator becomes due within 30 days after the decision
is served on the employer.

3. A person who knowingly:

(2) Makes a faise statement or representation or who knowingly fails to report
a material fact concerning the amount of payroll upon which a premium is based:
or

(b) Misrepresents the classification or duties of an employes,
is guilty of a gross misdemeanor. Any criminal penalty imposed must be in

addition to the amount charged pursuant to subsection 1.
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Sec. 45. The amendatory provisions of sections 20 and 37 of this act must not be
appﬁedtoreduceﬂleamomnofcompenmﬁonandbeneﬁtsofanemployeewhois
rweivmgwmpcnmﬁmandbeneﬁsformindustﬁalhjmymmoccnpaﬁamlcﬁm
beforeOcmberI,l997,ormredncetheanoumofﬂ1emmpensaﬁmmdbmeﬁ!softhe
dependents of such an employee.

Sec. 46. 1. Thisxcﬁonandxc&onslto9,inclnsive,ll,123ndl4to45,inclusive,
of this act become effective on October 1, 1997.

2. Sections 10 and 13 of this act become effective at 12-01 am. on July 1, 1999.
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SUMMARY—Makes various changes to provisions goveming eligibility for and payment
of benefits for workers’ compensation. (BDR 53-953)

FISCAL NOTE: Effect on Local Government: No.

Effect on the State or on Industrial Insurance: No.

ANACImhﬁngwindusujalinﬂmce;expmdingﬂ:eckcumstancesmderwhichan
employee and his dependents are barred from recovering compensation; requiring
anemployeewiﬁapemanemparﬁaldisabﬂitymselecthisraﬁngphysician;
expandingtheciramslanc&sunderwiﬁchanemployee’suseofaoontmlled
substance is presumed to be the proximate canse of his injury; prohibiting a
phy;idanorchﬁopmﬁorﬁomissningacer&ﬁwionofdisbﬂityformypeﬁod
prmdh:gﬂxedateofanﬁjmedemployee’seminaﬁon;revisingthestandard
fordetenni:ﬁngfeﬁandcharg&sforaccidembeneﬁls;andpmvidingoﬂzer
matters properly relating thereto.

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEVADA, REPRESENTED IN

SENATE AND ASSEMBLY, DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS:
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Section 1. Chapter 616C of NRS is hereby amended by adding thereto the provisions
set forth as sections 2 and 3 of this act.

Sec. 2. An employee or, in the evert of the death of the employee, his dependent, is
barred from recovering compensation pursuamt to the provisions of chapters 6164 to
616D, im:lgsive, of NRS if the employee misrepresented or falsified any document or
information submitted to his employer as evidence that he has been lawfully admitted for
residency in the United States.

Sec. 3. An employee or, in the event of the death of the empioyee, his dependent, is
bﬁrred Jrom recovering compensation pursuant to the provisions of chapters 6164 to
616D, inclusive, of NRS if, in violation of a written policy of his employer, the employee
wasﬁsdwgedﬁomtheenplomentoutofwfdchhisiry’wymeﬁr;

/I. Refusing to submit to a test conducted for the purpose of determining the presence
of a controlled substance in his system; or

2. Testing positive after submitting to such a test.

Sec. 4. NRS 616C.060 is hereby amended to read as follows:

616C.060 [An] Except as otherwise provided in NRS 616C.490, an insurer shall accept
or deny responsibility for compensation under chapters 616A to 616D, inclusive, of NRS
within 30 working days after claims for compensation are received pursuant to both NRS
616C.020 and 616C.040.

Sec. 5. NRS 616C.065 is hereby amended to read as follows:
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616C.065 1. [Within] Excepr as otherwise provided in NRS 616C.490, within 30
warking days afie [the] an insurer has been notified of an industrial accident [, every] and
hmreceivedaclaimfarcon@ensazianpwszmtoJVRS6l6C.040, the insurer shall:

(@ Commencepaymentofaclaimforcompenmﬁon;or

(b) Deny the clzim and notify the claimant and administrator that the claim has been
denied- .
Paymemmadebymhmmpmsuammﬂﬁssecﬁonmnotanadnﬁssionofﬁabﬂhyfor
the claim or any portion of the claim.

-2. Ifaninsmermrmsonablydehysormfus&smpayﬂleciaﬁnwitthOdaysaﬂer
ﬂleinsurerlmsbeennoﬁﬁedofanindnstrialaccidem,]thetz‘mesetﬁmhinsubseaion 1,
thehsmshaﬂpayuponordcroftheadHﬁanaddiﬁomlamomeqmmthree
ﬁnigstheamomnspeciﬁedhﬂworderasmﬁmedmmomblydelayeilhispaymem
isfmﬂ:ebeneﬁtoflheclaimantandmustbepaidmhhnvﬁmmemmpms&ﬁonassmd
pursuant to chapters 616A to 617, inclusive, of NRS.

Sec. 6. NRS 616C.100 is hereby amended to read as follows:

616C.100 1. Ifmﬁjmedemployeeﬁmgre&swﬂhthepemenﬁgeofdisbﬂhy
determined by a physician or chiropractor, the injured employee may obtain a second
determination of the percentage of disability. [If] Except as otherwise provided in this
subsection, if the employee wishes to obtain such a determination, he must select the next

physician or chiropractor in rotation from the list of qualified physicians or chiropractors
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maintained by the administrator pursuant to subsection 2 of NRS 616C.490. Jf the next
physician or chiropractor in rotation from the list has entered imto a contract with the
insurer to provide medical and health care services to employees with industrial injuries or
occupational diseases, the injured employee may select the next physician or chiropractor
in rotation from the list of qualified physicians or chiropractors who has not entered into
such a contract with the insurer, according to the area of specialization reguired. If 2
second determination is obtained, the injured employee shall pay for the determination.

2. The results of a second determination made pursuant to subsection 1 may be offered
at any hearing or settiement conference.

Sec. 7. NRS 616C230 is hereby amended to read as follows:

616C230 1. Compensation is not payable pursuant to the provisions-of chapters
6},6A to 616]?, inclusive, of NRS for an injury:

(2) Cansed by the employee’s willful intention to injure himself

(b) Caused by the employee’s willful intention to injure another.

(¢) Proximately caused by the employee’s intoxication If the employee was intoxicated
at the time of his injury, intoxication must be presumed to be 2 proximate cause unless
rebatted by evidence to the contrary.

(d) Proximately caused by the employee’s use of a controlled substance. [If the

employee had] The use of a controlled substance must be presumed to be a praximate

cause of an injury if the employee:
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) RgﬁsestbmﬂMatestwndudedﬁ;rthepwpaseafdeta‘nﬁrﬁngthepresmce
afacomdled:ubstamebzlzismematthetimeofﬁsi)gfwy;or

(2) Hadanyamom:tofacomroﬂedsubstanoeinhissystemattheﬁmeofhisinjmy
fmwhichﬂwemployeedidmthaveacmremmdhwﬁ;lprwaipﬁmisswdhhisname,
[ﬁecomolledmbstancemnstbepmmedmbeapme:se}unl&sthe
presw@tianisrebunedbyevidencetothecommy.-
For the purposes of paragraphs (c) and (d), the affidavit of an expert or other person
described in NRS 50315 is admissible to prove the existence of any alcohol or the
eﬁﬂencqquanﬁtymidenﬁtyofawmﬂedmbminmemployee’ssystem.ﬁme
affidavit is to be so used, it must be submitted in the manner prescribed in NRS 616C_355.

2 Nowmpmmﬁmispayableforthed&atb,dimbﬂityormofaﬁmloyeeﬁ'
hisﬁ&ﬁiscm@dby,mhso&rasﬁsﬁmbﬂﬁyisaggavamimmmnﬁnnedby,m
unreasonable refusal or negiect to submit to or t follow any competent and reasonable
surgical treatment or medical aid.

3. Ifanycmployeepersis!sinanlmsanimryorhijmiouspmcﬁcethathnpaﬁsor
retards his recovery, or refuses to submit to such medical or surgical treatment as is
nwssarympmmotehisrecovery,hiswmpensaﬁonmayberedlmdorsuspended

4. An mjured employee’s compensation, other than accident benefits, mmust be

suspended if
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(a) A physician or chiropractor determines that the employee is unable to undergo
treatment, testing or examination for the industrial injury solely because of a condition or
injury that did not arise out of and in the course of his employment; and

(b) It is within the ability of the employeetooorrecttbenoqindnstﬁalcondiﬁonor
The compensation must be suspended until the inmjured employee is able to resume
treatment, testing or examination for the industrial injury. The insurer may elect to pay for
the treatment of the nonindustrial condition or injury.

‘Sec. 8. NRS 616C.260 is hereby amended to read s follows:

616C260 1. Allfees and charges for accident benefits must not |-

(@) Exceed] be:

(a) Less than the fees and charges [usually paid in the state for similar treatment.

(b) Be unfairly] established by the administrator pursuart to subsection 2.

(b) Unfairly discriminatory as between persons legally qualified to provide the
particular service for which the fees or charges are asked.

2. The administrator shall, giving consideration to the fees and charges being paid in
the state, establish a schedule of freasonable] the lowest fees and charges aliowable for
accident benefits provided to injured employees whose insurers have not contracted with an
organization for managed care pursuant to NRS 616B.515. The lowest fees and charges

allowable must be equal to 50 percent of the fees and charges usually paid in the state for
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similar treatment. The administrator shall review and revise the schedule on or before
October 1 of each year. The administrator may increase or decrease the schedule, but shall
not increase the schedule by any factor greater than the corresponding annual increase in
the Consumer Price Index (Medical Care Component), unless the advisory council of the
division approves such an increase.

3. Theadminisuatorgxayreqmah&dthinme:,hd&maintemceorganimﬁmm
provider of accident benefits, an agent or employee of such a person, or an agency of the
state, to provide the administrator with such information concerning fees and charges paid
ﬁﬁmﬂmsaﬁmmhed&msnmymmyom&emvﬁomofaﬁsecﬁmlﬁe
administrator shall require a person or entity providing records or reports of fees charged to
émvidehnerpretaﬁmandidenﬁﬁmﬁonmncemingtheinfomaﬁondeﬁvmm
adg;hﬁm;payimposemadmhﬁmaﬁveﬁneofssmformhmﬁmlmpmﬁdeme
information requested pursuant to this subsection.

4. The division may adopt reasonabie regulations necessary to carry out the provisions
of this section. The regulations must include provisions concemning:

{a) Standards for the development of the schedule of fees and charges;

(b) The periodic revision of the schedule; and

(¢) The momtoring of compliance by providers of benefits with the adopted schedule of

fees and charges.
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5. Ihedivisionshaﬂadoptregﬂaﬁonsquﬁﬁngtheuﬁﬁmﬁonofasystemofbiﬂhg
codes as recormended by the American Medical Association.

Sec. 9. NRS 616C.330 is hereby amended to read as follows:

616C330 1. The hearing officer shall:

@ Wrﬂ;inSdaysaﬁcrrecdvingamqnestforahwing,settheh&ﬁngfmadateand
time within 30 days after his receipt of the request; .

(b) Givenoﬁcebymailorbypemonalservicetoa]linterestedparli&stothehmringat
lastlSdaysbeforethedaxaandﬁmeschedﬂed;and

' (¢) Conduct hearings expeditiously and informally.

2. Themﬁcemnstincludeastatememﬂmttheinjmedmployeemayberepr&sented
byapﬁwteaﬁomeymseekassisﬁmeandadviceﬁomtheNevadaaﬁomeyfmhjmed
workers.

3. [H] Except as otherwise provided in this subsection, if necessary to resolve a
medical question concemning an injured employee’s condition, the hearing officer may refer
the employee to 2 physician or chiropractor chosen by the hearing officer. If the medical
question concems the rating of a permanent disability, the hearing officer may frefer]
require the employee to select a rating physician or chiropractor. The rating physician or
chiropractor must be selected in rotation from the list of qualified physicians and
chkopmcmmmainminedbymeadmmism:pmmtmsubsecﬁonzofNRSGIGCAQO,

ml&sstheinmrerandﬁjmedemployeeotherwiseagmetoaraﬁngphysidanor
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chiropractor [.] or the next physician or chirapractor in rotation from the list has entered
Moawmraawﬂhthebzswertopmﬁdemediwlandheakhwesmma@byees
wﬁbindsmhlirjwiesmdox@aﬁanddﬁme&lfthemp@sidmwddmﬁmmm
rotatior. from the list has entered into such a comtract with the insurer, the imjured
empioyee may select the next physician or chiropractor in rotation Jfrom the list of qualified
physicians or chz'ropractqrs who has not entered into such a comtract, according to the
area of specialization required. The insarer shall pay the costs of any medical examination
requested by the hearing officer.

.4. lhehmingoﬁcermayaﬂoworforbidthepresenceofacomreponerandtheuse
of a tape recorder in 2 hearing.

s. 'Ihehwingoﬁicershallrenderhisdecisionwithm15daysaﬁen

(@) The hearing; or

®) Hereceivsacopyofﬂ:ereportﬁ'omﬂ:emedimlexanﬁnaﬁonherequmed.

6. Ihehmingoﬂicershaﬂmderhisdecisioninﬂlemosteﬁidmfommdevdoped
byﬂ:echiefofﬁeMingsdiﬁsionofthedepamnemofadministraﬁon

7. Thehwingofﬁeershaﬂgivemﬁeeoﬂﬁsdecisionmachpartybymaﬂ.ﬂeshaﬂ
includcwiﬂathenoﬁceofhisdecision&lenec&myfonnsforapp&]ingﬁ'omﬂaedecision.

8. Except as otherwise provided in NRS 616C.380, the decision of the hearing officer
isnotstayedifanappmlﬁomthatdecisionistakenzmlessanappli@ionforaslayis

submitted by a party. If such an application is submitted, the decision is automatically
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stayed until a determination is made on the application. A determination on the application
must be made within 30 days after the filing of the application. If, after reviewing the
application, a stay is not granted by the hearing officer or an appeals officer, the decision
must be complied with within 10 days after the refusal to grant a stay.

Sec. 10. NRS 616C.360 is hereby amended to read as follows:

616C360 1. A stenographic or electronic record must be kept of the hearing before
the appeals officer and the rules of evidence applicable to contested cases under chapter
233B of NRS apply to the hearing.

.2. The appeals officer must hear any matter raised before him on its merits, including
new evidence bearing on the matter.

3. [H] Except as otherwise provided in this subsection, if necessary to-resolve a
medical question concemning an injured employee’s condition, the appeals officer may refer
the empioyee to a physician or chiropractor chosen by the appeals officer. If the medical
question concerns the rating of a permanent disability, the appeals officer may [refer]
reguire the employee to select a rating physician or chiropractor. The rating physician or
chiropractor mmust be selected in rotation from the list of qualified physicians or
chiropractors maintained by the administrator pursuant to subsection 2 of NRS 616C.490,
uniess the insurer and the imjured employee otherwise agree to a rating physician or
chiropractor .} or the next physician or chiropractor in rowation from the list has entered

into a contract with the insurer to provide medical and health care services to employees
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with industrial injuries or occupational diseases. If the next physician or chiropractor in
rotation from the list has entered into such a comract with the insurer, the injured
engrloyeemayselectthenextpigrsicianordﬁropmaarinmtaﬁonﬁomthelis'tqfqualzﬁed
pigmiciansorchiropractarswhohasnotenteredbztosudzacamact, according to the
area of specialization reguired. The insurer shall pay the costs of amy examination
reqm&dbyﬂxeapp&lsqﬁw.

4. Anypartymtheappalortheappmlsoﬁcermayorderauansmiptofthemordof
' the hearing at any time before the seventh day after the hearing. The transcript must be filed
within30daysa&aﬂ1ed&eofﬂmorderml&ssﬁeapp&dsoﬁoeromerﬁseordﬁs.

5. ‘The appeals officer shall render his decision:

@ Hamscriptisordetedwhhin7daysaﬁerthehm&within30&aysqﬁerthe

®) If a transcript has not been ordered, within 30 days after the date of the hearing.

6. Iheappedsoﬂicermayafﬁm,modifyorreverseanydecisionmadebytheh&ﬂng
oﬁicerandissuemynqc&esaryandproperordertogiveeﬁ'ectmhisdecision

Sec. 11. NRS 616C.475 is hereby amended to read as follows:

616C475 1. Except as otherwise provided in this section, NRS 616C.175 and
616C_390, every employee in the empioy of an employer, within the provisions of chapters

616A to 616D,inch15ive,ofNRS,whoisinjmedbyaccidentaﬁsingoﬂofandinﬁ1e
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course of employment, or his dependents, is entitled to receive for the period of temporary
total disability, 66 2/3 percent of the average monthly wage.

2. Except as otherwise provided in NRS 616B.185, an injured employee or his
dependents are not entitled to accrue or be paid any benefits for a temporary total disability
during the time the injured employee is incarcerated. The injured employee or his
depmdqmmen&ﬂedtqreceivesuchbeneﬁmwhenthehjmdemployeeismlmdﬁom
incarceration if he is certified as temporarily totally disabled by a physician or chiropractor.

3. If a claim for the period of temporary total disability is allowed, the first payment
I;msuamtothissecﬁonmnstbeimdbyﬂleinsurerwithmnq 30 working days after
receipt of the initial certification of disability and regularly thereafter.

4. Any increase in compensation and benefits effected by the amendment of
subsection 1 is not retroactive.

5. Payments for a temporary total disability must cease when:

(@) A physician or chiropractor determines that the employee is physically capable of
any gainful employment for which the employee is suited, after giving consideration to the
employee’s education, training and experience;

(b) The employer offers the employee light-duty employment or employment that is
modified according to the limitations or restrictions imposed by a physician or chiropractor
pursuant to subsection 7; or

(¢) Except as otherwise provided in NRS 616B.185, the employee is incarcerated.
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6. Each insurer may, with each check that it issues to an injured employee for a
temporary total disability, include a form approved by the division for the injured employee
to request continued compensation for the temporary total disability.

7. A certification of disability issued by a physician or chiropractor must:

(2) Include the period of disability and a description of any physical limitations or
restrictions-imposedupontheworkof the employes;.

(b Speciﬁrwheﬂzertﬁelhnimﬁonsorr&suicﬁonsarepemanemarmpormand

(c) Be signed by the treating physician or chiropractor authorized pursuant to NRS
616B.515 or 616B.527.

8. If g certification of disability specifies that the physical limitations or restrictions
are temporary, the employer of the employeeatthethneofhisaccidentisnotfeqlﬁredto
comply with NRS 616C.545 to 616C.575, inclusive, and 616C.590 or the regulations
ac{opmd by ﬂ:e division governing vocational rehabilitation services if the employer offers
the employee a position that is substaptially similar to the employee’s position at the time
of his injury in relation to the location of the employment, the hours he is required to work
and the salary he will be paid.

9. A physician or chiropractor shall not issue a certification of disability for any
period preceding the date on which the physician or chiropractor examined the irjured

employee.
Sec. 12. NRS 616C.485 is hereby amended to read as follows:
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616C.485 1. The administrator shall adopt, by regulation, a schedule which, in his
judgmemhbestmlaﬂmedwcompmefa&lymdadeqmlymirﬁmedemployeefor
the loss of, or permanent damage to, a tooth. The administrator shall review the schedule at
lwstmceevayzywsmensm:theﬁirn&mdadequamssofmeschedzﬂa

2 Aniry‘uredemployeewhosetoathhasbeerzrepaz‘redtoaconditianthatisequalto
or better than the condition of his tooth before kis. injury, and the dependent of such an
employee, is not entz‘tledl lo receive compensation for a permament partial disability
pursuant to NRS 616C.490 unless the employee or his dependent establishes by a
preponderance of the evidence that the employee suffered a permanent disability.

Sec. 13. NRS 616C.490 is hereby amended to read as follows:

616C490 1. Except as otherwise provided in NRS 616C.175 [.] and 616C.485,
every anployeg, in the employ of an employer within the provisions of chapters 616A to
616D, inclusive, of NRS, who is injured by an accident arising out of and in the course of
employmemisen&dedtomeivemewmpensaﬁonpmvidedforpemancmm
disability. As used in this section, “disability” and “impairment of the whole man™ are
equivalent terms.

2 thinBOdaysaﬁermmﬁomaphysicianorchhopmmorareponindimﬁng
that the injured employee may have suffered a permanent disability and is stable and
ramble,themsmershaﬂschxﬂemappomemwimamingphysidmmchkopmmrm

determine the extent of the employee’s disability. The [insurer] employee shall select a
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phyﬁdmmdﬁmpmﬂorﬁomagoupofraﬁngphysidmsmdchkopm@omdsignﬂedby
the administrator, to determine the percentage of disability in accordance with the
American Medical Association’s Guides to the Evaluation of Permanent Impairment as
adopted and supplemented by the division pursuzant to NRS 616C.110. {Rating] Except as
otherwise p(avidedbzz}zissubseaion rating physicians and chiropractors must be selected
inmtaﬁonﬁomtheﬁstofquaﬁﬁedphysidans-andchhopmcwmd&signamdbyﬁle
a&ninis&mm,axordhgfothehmofspedaﬁmﬁmmdmeorderinwhichthe&mes
appear on the list. If the next physician or chiropractor in rotation from the list has entered
b&oamWadtviththebmertopravidemedicalandhealthcareservicestoerrq)loyees
with industrial injuries and occupational diseases, the injured employee may select the next
piguidmwcfdropmd&hramianﬁmthelﬁtqfqmléﬁedp@ddmm'cﬁmpmmm
who has not -emtered into such a contract with the insurer, according to the area of
specialization required |

3. At the request of the insurer, the injured employee shall, before an evaluation by 2
rating physician or chiropractor is performed, notify the insurer of:

(@ Any previous evaluations performed to determine the extent of any of the
employee’s disabilities; and

(b) Any previous mjury, disease or condition sustained by the employee which is

relevant to the evaluation performed pursuant to this section.
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'Ihenoﬁcemnstbeonaformapprovedbytheadmﬁ:isu-atorandpmvidedtotheh:jmed
employee by the insurer at the time of the insurer’s request.

4. Uniess the regulations adopted pursuant to NRS 616C.110 provide otherwise, 2
rating evaluation must include an evaluation of the loss of motion, sensation and strength of
an injured employe if the injury is of a type that might have caused such a loss. No factors
other than the degree of physical impairment of the whole man may be considered in
mlculaﬁngtheenﬁﬂ@&mmpmsaﬁonforapemmmpaﬁaldimbiﬁty.

5. The rating physician or chiropractor shall provide the insurer with his evaluation of
the injured employee. After receiving the evaluation, the insurer shall, within [14] 30 days,
provide the employee with a copy of the evaluation and notify the employee:

(2) Of the compensation to which he is entitled pursuant to this section; or -

‘(b) 'mat}__:eisnotemiﬂedtobeneﬁmforpemanentparﬁaldisabﬂity.

6. Eachl percent of irpairment of the whole man must be compensated by a monthly
payment:

(@) Of 0.5 percent of the claimant’s average monthly wage for injuries sustained before
July 1, 1981;

(b) Of 0.6 percent of the claimant’s average monthly wage for injuries sustained on or
after July 1, 1981, and before June 18, 1993; and

(c) Of0.54 percent of the claimant’s average monthly wage for injuries sustained on or

after June 18, 1993.
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Compensaﬁonmustcbmmcnoeonthedateoftheinjmyorthedayfollowingﬂle
tgminaﬁonofwmpomydisabﬂitymmpengﬁomifmy,whicheverism,mdmust
continue on a monthly basis for 5 years or until the claimant is 70 years of age, whichever
is later.

7. Cor_npensaﬁonbencﬁismaybepaidmmuallytoclaimanswhowiﬂbemeiving
less than $100 2 month.

8. Wherethereisa‘previousdisability,asthelossofoneeye,onehand,onefoot,or
myothapreﬁompemmemdisabﬂity,mepmcemgeofdisabﬂityfmambsequmhjmy
must be determined by computing the percentage of the entire disability and deducting
thereﬁomﬂ:epememageofﬂlepmviousdisabﬂityashe:dmdatﬂmthne‘ofme
/9. lhediyisimmayadoptscbedlﬂ&sfo;raﬁngpemanemdisabﬂhisrsulﬁngﬁom
mjuries sustained before July 1, 1973, and reasomable regulations to carry out the
provisions of this section.

10. The increase in compensation and benefits effected by the amendment of this
section is not retroactive for accidents which occurred before July 1, 1973.

11. This section does not entitle any person to double payments for the death of an
employee and a continuation of payments for a permanent partial disability, or to a greater

sum in the aggregate than if the injury had been fatal.
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Sec. 14. Chapter 617 of NRS is hereby amended by adding thereto a new section to
read as follows:

An employee or, in the event of the death of the employee, his dependent, is barred from
recovering compensation pursuamt to the provisions of this chapter if the employee
misrepresented or falsified any document or information submitted to his employer as
evidence that he has been lawfully admitted for residency in the United States.

Sec. 15. ThepmviﬁonsofsecﬁonslBand 14 of this act must not be applied to
reduoe&eamonmafwmpex;ﬂﬁonandbeneﬁxsofanemployeewhoisrweiving
compensation and benefits for an industrial injury or an occupational disease before
October 1, 1997, or to reduce the amount of compensation and benefits of the dependents
of such an employee.

_Sec. 16. . 1. This section and sections 1 to 4, inclusive, and 6 to 15, inclusive, of this
act become effective on October 1, 1997.

2. Section 5 of this act becomes effective at 12:01 am. on July 1, 1999.
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SUMMARY—Provides for industrial insurance coverage for certain pupils and teachers
participating in program to provide pupils with skills 1o make tramsition

from school to work. (BDR 53-954)

FISCAL NOTE: Effect on Local Government: Yes.

Effect on the State or on Industrial Insurance: Yes.

AN ACT relating to industrial insurance; requiring a school district or community college
to insure itself against Liability for the indnstrial injuries and occupational
diseases of a teacher who, as part of the program to provide pupils with the skills
to make the transition from school to work, works without pay for an employer

; other than the school system or community college with which the teacher is
employed; authorizing industrial insurance coverage for 2 pupil who works
without pay as part of the program; and providing other matters properly relating

thereto.

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEVADA, REPRESENTED IN

SENATE AND ASSEMBLY, DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS:
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Section 1. Chapter 616A of NRS is hereby amended by adding thereto the provisions
set forth as sections 2 and 3 of this act.

Sec. 2. Any teacher who, as part of the program to provide pupils with the skills to
make the tramsition from school to work established pursuant to NRS 388.368, works
without pay for an employer other than the school district or commumity college with which
the teacher is employed shall be deemed for the purposes of chapters 6164 to 616D,
inclusive, of NRS to be an employee of the school district or community college with which
he is emplayed at his normal monthly wage, and is entitled to the benefits of those chapters.

Sec. 3. 1 A pupil who, as part of the program to provide pupils with the skills to
make the tramsition from school to work established pursuant to NRS 388.368, works
without pay for an employer shall be deemed for the purposes of chapters 6164 to 616D,
inciusive, of NRS to be an employee if:

(a) The employer for whom the pupil works;

(&) The school district or community college the pupil attends; or

{c) Any other person,
pays the premium rate for industrial insurance established by an insurer pursuant 1o
subsection 2.

2. An insurer who provides industrial insurance for such pupils shall, for the purposes
of determining and fixing the premium rate for that insurance, place the pupils in a

separate class, the premium rates of which must be sufficient 1o provide an adequate fund
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Jor the payment of the proportionate administrative expense and compensation on account
of injuries and death of pupils of this class.

3. Apzpilwhoisdeemedtabeana@loyeepmmmmbseaionIshaﬂbedeemed
to worlcatthewageafﬁperdayandisemitledtathebeneﬁmafchaptm 6164 to 616D,
inclusive, of NRS.

Se-c.4. NRS 616A.025 is hereby amended to read as follows:

616A.025 As used in chapters 616A to 616D, inclusive, of NRS, unless the context
otherwise requires, the words and terms defined in NRS 616A.030 to 616A.360, inclusive,
and sections 2 and 3 of this act, have the meanings ascribed to them in those sections.

Sec. 5. NRS 616A.230 is hereby amended to read as follows:

616A.230 “Employer” means:

A Thesfzte,andmcheomny,chy,schooldisuict,andaﬂpnbﬁcandquasi-pubﬁc
corporaﬁonstbcreinwithomregardtothenumba-ofpexsonsemployed.

2. Everyperson,ﬁrm,vohmmymdaﬁmandpﬁvatewrporaﬁon,inchdhgmy
pubﬁcservicecorporaﬁon,whichhasinserﬁcemypersonmderacomactofhha

3 lhelegalrepresemﬁvepfmydecasedemployer.

4. TheNevada rural housing authority.

S. Any person who pays the premium established by an Insurer pursuant to section 3

of this act for a pupil who, as part of the program to provide pupils with the skills to make
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the transition from school to work established pursuant to NRS 388.368, works without pay
Jor an employer.

Sec. 6. NRS 617.110 is hereby amended to read as follows:

617.110 “Employer” means:

1. The state and each county, city, school district, and all public and quasi-public
corpomﬁonstherein,wiﬂmmregardtoﬂxennmberofpersonsemployed.

2. Every person, firm, voluntary association, and private corporation, including any
public service corporation, which has in service any employee under 2 contract of hire.

3. The legal representative of any deceased employer.

4. The Nevada rural housing authority.

5. Any person who pays the premium established by an insurer pursuarit to section 3
of this act for a pupil who, as part of the program to provide pupils with the skills to make
the transition from school to work established pursuant to NRS 388.368, works without pay
Jor an empioyer.

Sec. 7. The provisions of subsection 1 of NRS 354.599 do not zpply to any additional
expenses of 2 local government that are related to the provisions of this act.

Sec. 8. This act becomes effective upon passage and approval.
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SUMMARY-Revises requirements for Imposition of solvency surcharge for state
industrial insurance system. (BDR 53-955)

FISCAL NOTE: Effect on Local Government: No.

Effect on the State or on Industrial Insurance: Yes.

ANACTmlaﬁngmmdtsuialmsmoe;memingtheanhorhymhnposeamhargem
ensmethesolvencyofthemindusuialinsmoesystemwthelegislaive
committee on workers’ compensation; requiring the committee to establish the
formula to calculate the surcharge based on a percentage of the total amount of
claims paid for certain industrial injuries or occupational diseases; and providing
other matters properly relating thereto.

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEVADA, REPRESENTED IN

SENATE AND ASSEMBLY, DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS:
Section 1. NRS 616B.110 is hereby amended to read as follows:

616B.110 1. If after conducting an examination of the affairs, transactions,

acwm,ﬁmd;recordsandassesofmesymthecommissionerdewnnimthathe
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system is insolvent, he shall give written notice of his determination to the fmanager and
administrator.

2. Except as otherwise provided in this subsection, npon] legisiative committee on
workers’ compensation.

2. The legislative committee shall review the determination of the commissioner at its
next scheduled meeting or at @ meeting specified by a call of the chairman of the
committee. If, after considering all other reasonable methods for ensuring the solvency of
the system, the committee determines that the imposition of a solvency surcharge is
‘necessary, it shall give written notice to the administrator requiring him to collect a
solvency surcharge pursuant to the provisions of this section.

3. Upon receipt of such a notice, the administrator shall {impose and] collect a
§plvency surcharge from {:

(@) Each employer who was insured by the Nevada industrial commission or the system
at any time during the period beginning on July 1,.1979, and ending on July 1, 1995;

(b) Each employer who is insured by the system at any time after July 1, 1995;

(c) Each self-insured employer; and

(d) Each association of self-insured public or private employers,
in an amoumt calculated to produce the revenue that is required to pay the outstanding
obligations of the system as they become due.] each employer doing business in this state.

The formula used by the administrator to calculate the surcharge required to be paid must
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be [approved] established by the legislative committee on workers’ compensation fcreated
pursuant to NRS 218.5375.] based on a percentage of the total amount of claims paid for
industrial injuries or occupational diseases to the employer’s employees and their
beneficiaries during the immediately preceding calendar quarter. Any claims paid for a
disease of the heart or lungs pursuant to NRS 617.455 or 617.457 must not be included in
the calculation. Each employer shall pravzde to the administrator such information as the
administrator deems necessary to determine the amount of any surcharge required to be
collected pursuant to this section.

4. The administrator shall collect the surcharge quarterly until he receives notice to
cease the collection of the surcharge pursuant to subsection 6. The surcharge must be paid
in the manner prescribed by the administrator. [The manager shall collect the surcharge
i;nposedagainstﬂmseemployeswhominsmedbythesyswmatmythneaﬂerm 1,
1995.

3] 5. All money received by the administrator fand manager] from any surcharge
hnposedpmmmthissecﬁonmustbeaeditedontherecordsofthes'stemmthe
acwumfmsolvencyszchmg&gwhichisherebycrmmdinﬁleminsmoefund The
money in the account:

(a) Constitutes a part of the assets of the state insurance fund.
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()] Mustbeusedsoleiytopaythe operating expenses of the system and any obligations
ofthesystemasﬂ:eybecomedue.'fhemoneyintheaccountmaynotbemedbytbe
system to incur any additional obligations.

[4. K, at any time after the imposition of a surcharge pursuant to this section, the
manager determines that the system is no longer insolvent, he shall file a request with the
commissioner to cease the collection of any surcharge imposed pursuant to this section.
Upon the receipt of the request, the commissioner shall, for the purpose of determining the
ﬁnandalmndiﬁonofthesys&m,mnductanexaminaﬁmofﬁeaﬂahs,tansacﬁom,
éccom,ﬁmdgrecordsmdassetsofﬁzesyﬂmlﬂaﬁermducﬁng&emﬁnﬁomthe
commissioner determines that the system is no longer insolvent, the commissioner shall
approve the request.

S16 K tke manager wishes 1o cortinue the collection of a surcharge imposed
pursuan to this section, he shall, not later than January 715 of the year following the
imposition of the surcharge, and anmually thereafier, file a reguest with the legisiative
committee on workers’ compensation to continue the collection of the surcharge. If such a
request is filed, the commissioner shall, for the purpose of determining the financial
condition of the system, conduct an examination of the affairs, transactions, accounts,
Junds, records and assets of the system and report his findings to the legislative committee
on workers’ compensation. The legislative committee shall give written notice to the

administrator ordering kim -to cease the collection of the solvency surcharge if
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(a) A request for the continuation of the collection of the surcharge is not filed by the
manager as required by this subsection; or

() After reviewing the findings of the commissioner, the legislative committee
determines that the imposition of a solvency surcharge is no longer necessary.

7. Any employer [, self-insured employer or association of selfiinsured public or
privateemployersthal]_ who fails to pay any surcharge imposed pursuant to this section is
hiable in a civil action commenced by the administrator for:

(@) The amount owed pursuant to this section;

(b) lherwsombleexpenseshcmedbytheadminismﬁnenforcmgthisswﬁommd

(¢) Payment of interest on the amount due at the rate fixed pursuant to NRS 99.040 for
theperiodﬁ-omthedatenponwhichﬂxemhzrgewasdnetoﬂzedatehponwhichﬂle
surcharge is'paid.
Anymoneymﬂeaadbytheadmhismrpmmtmthismbsecﬁonmustbedeposhed
into the account for solvency surcharges.

[6.] & For the purposes of this section, the system is insolvent if the system is
reqlﬁredmseﬂmoﬂ:emiseﬁqxﬁdaeanyofﬂmeinvestedassesmredpmpenyofme
system for the purpose of paying its outstanding obligations as they mature in the regular
course of business.

Sec. 2. NRS 218.5377 is hereby amendedw.mdasfollows:

2185377 The committee:
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1. May review issues related to workers’ compensation.

2. May study the desirability of establishing a preferred employee program which
provides exemptions from the payment of premiums and other financial incentives for
employers who provide suitable employment for injured employees and any otherprog:am
for returning injured employees to work.

3. May review the manmer used by the division of industrial relations of the
department of business and industry to rate physical impairmems_-of injured employees.

4. Shall, to ensure the solvency of the state industrial insurance system:

() Review and study the financial condition of the state industrial insurance system;

(b) Determine the extent of any apparent insolvency of the system; and

(c) Establish a formula fwhich will be applied to calculate a surcharge that is equal in
amount to any deficiency in the cumulative amount of premiums paid by an employer who
is subject] 2o be used to calculate any solvency surcharge required to be paid pursuant to
the provisions of NRS 616B.110.

5. May conduct investigations and hold hearings in comnection with carrying out its
duties pursuant to this section. |

6. May direct the legislative counsel bureau to assist in its research, investigations,
bearings and reviews.

Sec. 3. This act becomes effective upon passage and approval.
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SUMMARY—Requires législaﬁveoommitteeonwoﬂms’ compensation to contract with
private party to conduct study of system for providing compensation for
permanent partial disabilities. (BDR S-957)

FISCAL NOTE: Effect on Local Government: No.

Efiect on the State or on Industrial Insurance: Yes.

AN ACT relating to industrial insurance; requiring the legislative committee on workers’
compensaﬁonmconnactwiﬂxapﬁvatepanymeonductasmdyofthcsystmh
this state for providing to injured employees compensation for permanent partial

disabilities; and providing other matters properly relating thereto.

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEVADA, REPRESENTED IN

SENATE AND ASSEMBLY, DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. 1. The legislative committee on workers” compensation created pursgant
to NRS 218.5375 shall cause to be conducted a stdy of the system in this state for
providing workers’ compensation for permanent partial disabilities.

2. The study must include:
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(@) An evaluation of the system for determining the amount of compensation to be paid
for permanent partial disabilities.

(b) A comparison of that system and the systems in other states for determining the
amount of compensation to be paid for permanent partial disabilities.

(c) An evaluation of the rating system used in this state to determine the extent of an
employee’spennanentpérﬁaldisabﬂitjr. | |

(d) An evaluation of the manner in which rating physicians and chiropractors are
selected.

(¢) Such other mformation as the legislative committee on workers’ compensation
deems appropriate.

Sec. 2. 1. The legislative committee on workers’ compensation shall, not later than
March 1, 1998, enter into a contract with a private person to conduct the study required by
section 1 of this act.

2. The legislative committee on workers’ compensation shall ensure that a copy of the
study is submitted to the director of the legislative counsel burean for transmittal to the

70th session of the Nevada Legislature.
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